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Architects
of tomorrow

As the world’'s leading
compound semiconductor
supplier with a global
footprint, we are critical
enabilers of the digital world.

Highlights

Revenue
2021: £154m

Net operating loss

£(73)m

2021: £(20)m
Adjusted EBITDA
2021: £19m

Adjusted net debt

£(15)m

2021 £(6)m

Capital expenditure

£9m

2021: £15m
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Our vision Oour mission

Our vision is to deliver the Our mission is tobe at the
most advanced compound forefront of technology to
semiconductor solutions help address global
to our customers. challenges and enable
the next wave of
innovation.
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Our business at a glance

Who we are

IQE is the world’s only
pure play compound
semiconductor provider
with a global footprint,
strategically positioned
to enable the next wave
of innovation. We can
service our customers in
their geographies with
our three-continent
manufacturing footprint,
offering world-class
technology, flexibility and
supply chain security.

Our global footprint

Europe Newport
Cardiff
Milton Keynes

North washington

America Massachusetts
Pennsylvania
North Carolina

Asia Taiwan

What we do

IQE offers compound
semiconductor
manufacturing services
that deliver powerful
enabling technologies
that change how we live
and work. We understand
that in an intelligently
connected world,

the megatrends of the
future will require the
advanced performance
characteristics of
compound semiconductors.

We are uniquely
positioned for security
and scalability.

Company number 03745726



Our growth potential

We are focused on enabling key capabilities
within growth markets.

+ Read more about our strategy for growth on page 28
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Connect

Wea live in an
interconnected digital
world where connectivity
is no longer optional,
From mobile handsets
and 5G communications
infrastructure, to smart
devices In our homes
and cars, iQE's connect
products enable high-
performance wireless
communication.

Our future

We have ambitious
growth plans.

Incredase revenue

3X

by 2027

Sense

The connected digital
world has become
intelligent The global
sensing market is
forecast to grow
significantly in the
coming years, driven by
the need for smart
connected devices to be
able to detect and
communicate with the
world around tham With
a stellar 30 semsing
pedigres, IQE 1s focused
on enabling healthcare
wedarabte devices, LIDAR
for gutonagmous vehicles
and industrial
automation.

Power

Power is fundamental to
the digital world and for
averyday ife. Compound
semiconductors will og
needed to address the
world's power
challenges, such as
climate change, as their
performance
advantages resuit in
maore efficient power
usage. Power electronics
'8 O growth market
driven py demand for
glectnc vehicles, smart
power gricls and efficiert
consurmer appiications,
which will be necessary
to achieve Net Zero.

Display

Display technologies
have undargone
significant
transformation as
consumers and industry
demand richer,
‘mmersive display
experiences. IQE is well
placed to deliver
MIcroLED solutions that
offer mproved
performance and lower
powear consumption. We
are proud o work with
our key strategic
partners to deiiver the
future of display,

Capacity growth of

3X

possibie within current footprint

Over

0%

adjusted EBITDA margin by 2027

IQE pic Annual Report and Accounts 2022 3
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“We have
unprecedented
opportunltles"
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Architects
of tomorrow

The world around us is
changing rapidly and IQE is at
the forefront of technologies
that enable smart connected
devices and intelligent
transportation, and offer
energy efficient and carbon-
responsible solutions.

We have unprecedented
opportunities to enable our
customers’ technology
roadmaps as they respond
to the demand for ‘'more’.

By 2030, the global
semiconductor market
is estimated to be

$S1tn

driven by the onsetand
multiplication of megatrends*

T Source. SiA, MceKinsey 2022

1QE ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745728
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Architects
of tomorrow

Compound semiconductors
are critical to the future of
technology. As the world’s
only pure play epitaxy
foundry with a global
footprint, IQE is able to
address the regionalisation
of global technology
supply chains.

We have manufacturing
operations on three continents
for flexibility and supply chain
resilience. Operating across

a full breadth of materials
platforms, we are uniguely
positioned to capitalise on

the megatrends of the future.

22%

epiwafer market CAGR
2022-2027*

$4.6bn

totul epiwafer marketin 2027*

T Source Yole Inteligerce Q4 2022 1QE sources
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“We are
uniquely
positioned”

Tim Pullen
Chief Financial Officer

+ Read about where we sitin the value chain on page 20

IQE ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726

jlodes 3 Bayons



Architects
of tomorrow

We are market-led, and this
is at the core of our approach
to innovation. We partner
closely with our customers,
the market makers, to really
understand what they need.

IQE's technologias directly
address chalienges that the
market has, enabling us to pull
solutions through the supply
chain for full value capture.

Our growth markets
sSmart Automotive
Connected and industrial
Devices

—_
-~
)

Communications
Infrastructure
and Security

+ Read more about our growth markets

on page 24

Company number 03745726



“We are
market-led”

Rodney Pelzel
Chief Technology Officer

1QE ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Compdny number 03745726
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- “We areready
to scale and
grow”

Christine Dunbar
sonior Vice Presidens, Global Soles

+ Read more about cur strategy on page 28
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Architects
of tomorrow

IQE is transforming at pace and
we are ready to scale and grow
to deliver our future plans. We
have the facilities and expertise
to respond rapidly to market
needs within our current

site footprint.

Our growth ambitions are focused
on our strategic sites for high
volume manufacturing. We have
significant first mover advantage
to get to scale with the tool
expansion capacity currently
possible at our globat sites.

Our unique
timeto
market
advantage

3X

capacity growth possible within current
footprint

Only

global
pure play

epitaxy provider

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726
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Our investment case

We are the

architects
of tomorrow

Connectivity is no longer optional. It is our way of life. Every day each of us
makes powerful connections allowing us to share stories, work intelligently
and power efficiently. As demand grows for more connections, better
energy efficiency and improved performance, our world is increasingly
dependent on compound semiconductors to realise the possibilities

of tomorrow’s megatrends.

For over 30 years, IQE has been at the forefront of advanced semiconductor
mdterial innovation, and remains uniguely positioned to capitaiise on the next
wave of industry innovaotion.

Company number 33745726



Architects
of tomorrow

yoday aibaypays

Only global
pure play epitcaxy
provider
Cur unmaiched global footprnt

Capturing
value for what we
do

gy
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We are transtormung our -
commerciat and agsrationdl and stiategic positioning n
modael to cnhance value capture tha semiconductor ecosystom
for all of our stakeholdars, SOLE Us apart. W ofter
including our SUSTOMers our custormers flexiility.
parthers, employecs and scatabiity and
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Megatrends
require compound We are the Market-led
semiconductors architects of technology approach
Compound sermicenductors tomorrow for an We create solutions to address
are vital to enabie an inte"igent]y market challengas, waith the
rmast comprehensive portfato

irteligently connaaeted, low
caran world dae o their high
cortormance and efflcency
~haractenstics

connected, low
carbon world

of scatable materials
plattorms in the industry.

Ability to grow
and scale

Ina market with igh barrers o
antry e bave a signdicant hrst
mover advantage to scale our
Spparatons to mect tuture
damand, with the potential for
I capacity grovith withim our
CUFeAT §ILe todtprnt

Decades of expertise

Az tne gtobal epitaxy leadors vwath
awer throe docades of expertise, we
have an unmatchod ntelloctucal
property porttons and 4----"
ighly skilled teams.

-
-__—
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Chairman’s statement

1QE’s products enable the
world to connect, power, sense
and display, and we operate at
the forefront of technology.

“We care
industry
leaders”

Phil Smith
Crarmon
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Dear Shareholder,

The last 12 months have been
incredibiy important for the
busingss. IQE gchieved real and
continued strategic progress,
underpinned by our customer and
product piatforms which have
peen built over many years

Most notably, Americo Lemos
Joined as Chief Exacutive Officer in
January 2022 the first change of
CEO at 1GE in over three decades.
Amerco’s ambition and impact in
his first year have confirmed what
the Board saw duiniy Ureir
axacutive sedrch; he was the right
candidate for the position. with
exceptional ndustry knowledge
and a network comprising the
world’s top technology leaders,
Americo’s feadership and strategy
have built a strong and solic
platform for future growth.

Wwith a renewed focus on
deepening existing customer
relationships and forming new
strateqic parmerships, this
customer-centsic approach was
demonstrated throughout 2022
We were pleqsed to announce
many strategic and long-tarm
custormer partnerships, including
with Lumenturm, AWSC, SK siltren
and two MicrolED partners.

During our Capital Markets Day
{CMD) held in Novermber we were
able to feature many video
testimonials from our customers
and strategic partrers The CMD
was an ncredible event where we
set out our refreshed strategy and
longer-term financial goals,
unveiling ocur growth targets and
ambitions for the business We
simultaneously revealed our
updated branding and a new logo
which sedmigssly [inks our
heritage to our pioneering plans
for the future

QOur strategy of diversfication is
the right approach and wil. see us
maintain and grow 'n the connect
and sense Markets, which
encompass our historcal Wirgless
and Photonics products We will
diversify by entering into new
markets aligned with cur
customers’ needs These are the
Power and Display segrments,
which are poised for huge growth
in the coming years

For a ful: replay of our CMD, please
visit erndigep.com

Trading performance

Wwhile the effects of COVID
lessaned in 2022, thare was sfill a
Jot of uncertainty In the macro
environrmant, notatly with the war
in Ukraine, the resulting increase In
energy costs and inflationary
pressures.

In the second half of the year,
longer than expected lockdowns
in China resulfted in weaker
semiconductor demand, leading
to inventory build-up throughout
the supply chain. This unfortunataly
impacted our end of year revenus
performance and has led to 1QE
guiding recuced HI 2023 revenues
after the reporting period.

While our reported revenue for FY
2022 was up 9% year-on-year at
£167m, excluding the impact of
foraign exchange, revenue was
broadly in I'ne with our 2021 figure.

As part of his ESG Committee
duties, 8ir Derek Jones aiso
became the Board member witn
responsibility for employee
engagement, Sir Derek toured IQE
sites to speak with employees
directly and held roundtables with
a selection of empioyees from
various departments, asking for
their feedback on engagement
actwities and the generat culture
of the business.

yodes aibeynas

Looking ahead

We dre industry leaders in a sector
that underping critical technology
supply chains. However, we are
operating in a difficult external
anvironment in the first half of the
year, with the glcbal semiconductor
industry downturn negatively
impact.ng our HI 2023 revenue
forecast. In light of this, we nave
taken actions to strengthen our

“IQE achieved real and continued
strategic progress over the past year,
underpinned by our customer and
product platforms which have been

built over many years.”

it was disappointing we did not
achieve the low single digit growth
we sought, however despite
chailenging external conditions In
2023, we rernain confident in our
strong business fundamentals
and market-leading position, and
have a solid platform to deliver
our ambitious growth trajectory.

Board matters

In 2021 1QF's Environmental, Sociai
and Governance (ESG) Committes
was formed, which s tasked with
ensuring Board-level oversight of
the important ESG ssues facing
the Company. A key Committee
achievernent in 2022 was
formalising 1QF's commitrment to
Net Zero and carbonr ceutraiity We
are on an important journey
towards implementing scierce-
pased targets and this is the first
step towards ou- longer-term
environmenta; goais.

1QE ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726

balance sheet after the reporting
period, including an equity
fundraise and the refinancing of
our banking facility Our belief
remains unchanged that our
longer-term strategy is aligned to
weather the cyclical uncertainty
which s a periodic feature of the
industry 1 am confident we will
amaerge from this temporary
downturn in the best possible
position to capitalise on the
rmegatrends of the future and
delwer for all of our stakeholders

Phil Smith
Chairman

22 Mav 20232



Chief Executive Officer's statement

IQE is focused on delivering the
most advanced compound
semiconductor solutions to our
customers to help address
global challenges and enable
the next wave of innovation.

“We are
positione
for the
future”

Americo Lemos
Chie! Exqoutive Offcer

Cormpany number 03745726



itis hard to believe that over o
yedar has already passed since |
joinad IQE. Looking at the business
today, it confirms that the decision
to join the Company was without
doubt the night ene 'm as excited
today for the future of IQE as | was
when | walked through the door
for the first time in January 2022
Despite a chatlenging macro
environment, our team putin g
huge effort to deliver strategic
progress against our objectivas in
2022 to ensure we are well-
positioned for the future.

Strategic progress

There are several strategic
achievernents that stood out to
me during 2022 Firstly, | remember
saving on day one to the sSanior
Leadership Team that we need to
get even closer to our customers,
and to their customaers. This s
particularly importart given the
unigque position of !QE in the global
semiconductor supply chain,
where it is essential for us to align
with our customers’ roadmaps so
we can plan for their needs many
yedars into the future. Throughout
the year we had ¢ significant
incregse in the quaity and
quantity of our customer
engagements.

AS G result, | was pleased we were
able to announce strategic
partserships with Lumentum,
MICLEDI, SK sitron, AWSC and
Porotech, all svidence of d new
customer engagement model for
the Company. This approach wili
remain central to our strategy
going forward. When we work
closely and aiign with our
customers, we are stronger
togetner

One of the factors driving these
strategic partnerships is the
growing recognition of the critical
role that semiconductors play in
the gQloba! economy. in August |
was invited to Westminster to
apoear in frort of the BEIS Select
Committee as they gatnered
evidence about the importance of
semiconductors, not just to the
tech sector, but to the UK
sConormy as a whole This was a
proud momaeant for IQF and for me,
d~d the subsequent 3EIS Select
Committee report that was
published in November was an

important finding. It highlights the
ieopardy facing the Uk if it doesn't
guickly and meaningfuily build a
strategy to support a domastic
semiconductor ecosystem in the
UK, at a time when our giobal
supply chains are transforming
before our eyes to become much
more siloed and regionalised and
a matter of important foreign
policy. | welcome all continued
engagermeant with the government
as we move to recognise the
importance of increased
investmeant in the sector

However, economic and political
ieadership is only meaningful
when supported by true
techinological leadership. IQE has
a long history of being pioneers of
innovation, and i May | was
thrilled we were abie to announce
the developmaent of the world's

IQE's products enable the world Lo
connect, power, sense and display,
and key to our future strategy wili
be maintaming and growing our
position In the connect and sense
segments, while also diversifying
into power and display which are
poised for huge growth. { was
proud to showcass the strategic
importance of IQE as well as to
share our updated strategy and
growth ambitions with the market.

Qur CMD also gave us an
apportunity to highiight our new
market-led approach to
technology innovation. We are
orienting the business towards our
key end markets. This means we
are mere focused than ever on
our customers, and aligning our
technolagy innovation ta mest
market needs. This new market-
led approach ensures our

“When we work closely and align with our
customers, we are stronger together.”

first commercially available
200mm (8") VCSEL spiwafer. This
acvancement is revolutionary and
will transform the economies of
scale possible within the
compound semiconductor
industry, teading to the expansior
of the market for IQE As
technolagy ieaders, we are
focused on market-led innovation
and this is the first step in scaling
ali our materials platforms to
200mm and beyond. This step wil
increase our addrassabie market,
aliow greater access to sikcon
fabs, and enabie the scaling of
compound semiconductors

In Novermber we held our first
Capita: Markets Day (CMD) in four
years, wnere we defined our
strategy to diversify and grow our
future business against the
packdrop of our new brand
identity. Focusing on key growth
markets, we set out targets for the
next five years, whie being
suoported by testimomals from
our customers and strateg'c
partners Their support was
outstanding, and we ware
fortunate to haar from a number
of CEQs and senior executives

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726

technoiogy deveiopment is linked
to a market need to enhance our
technoiogy value capture

The development of the Group's
commercial engmne would also not
be possible without the key
appointments we made
throughout the year, particutarty in
the Global Sales and Customer
Excelence functions.

These accomplishments over the
last year only serve to reinforce
our key strategic advantages:

- IQE has the broadest technology
roadmap in the industry, across
all key rmatarials piatforms;

» Our unmaiched global footprint
makes us the preferred suppiler
for custemers that require a
secure and resilient supply
chain. 'n a complex geopolitical
environment, and

+ We nave unique infrastructure
and a timea to market advantage

These three advantages are o
compell ng proposition for our
customers, including for those
whao prefer to outsource their
epitaxy to 1QE instead of irvesting
in In-house capabiities.

wodes a[ﬁamns]




Chief Executive Officer’s statement continued

“IQE’'s products enable
the world to connect,
power, sense and
display.”

Operational performance

2022 was a year inwhich 1QE made
strong operational progress as part
of the Group's refreshed strategy
which was focused on building o
solid platform for growth throughout
the year, in orcler to deliver further
prograss in 2023 and beyond.

Tris has seen the business take
a number of actions to create

an operating mode! that is more
agile and efficient. In H1 2022 we
closed our Singapore site, as part
of our global site rationalisation
programme.

We aiso continued to implement
the Group's systems transformation
The first release of our new
manufacturing system is now live
in South Wales. We will continue to
buitd on those capabilties during
2023 og we continua to drive agile
and efficiert business operations.

offsetting in favour of systemic
organisational change

The announcement of cur Net
Zaro and carbon neutrality plans
are an impaortant step which
reflects our commitreant to
continuous improvement and
Implementing best practice
across the business While we
recogmise that we arg at the
beginning of our sustainab ity
journey, our consigeration of ESG
issues 1s materially important to
our future strategy and will be
critical to ensuning a sustanable
and vialle business in the long term.

Financial performance

IQE's 2022 financial performance
reflactad the challenging external
anvironment in which we operated

“IQE focused on building a solid platform for
growth throughout 2022, in order to deliver
further progress in 2023 and beyond.”

ESG progress

important progress was also
made n resatior to our ESG
commitments. in May 2022 we
baecame sigratones to the
Science Based Target Inmtiative
{5BT1). commutting to abide by
their venficatior framework to
‘mMpiernent science- based
emission reduction targets with.n
our organisation

Our decisior to commit to Net
Zaro and carbon neutrality was an
obvious one. We recogntse that
clmate cnange 1s ore of the kay
chatergss facing the worid, and
as a company we bave a duty 1o
resgcnd (1 a reean.ogiul way Our
orgea-tern goa. s ach.eving het
Zero ond carbon neutranty.
mear:ng our casbon dioxde ard
greennouse gas ertissions are
nactraiised ny our 277155308
reductior activities. We Qre
currantly in the 24 month targst -
settirg penod. ond while the finas
shape of cur emiiss.ons reducton
alans are ~ot exact at thrs stoge,
wa w100k to aoide by the SET
g dance whick disToUrages

Company number 03745726

Cur Photorics business, which
8NCOMPAsses our Sensing
aroduct portfoiio, benefited from
continued strength in demand for
VCSELs used for 3D sensing, with
reveruss increasing 30% yvear-on-
vear Additonaly this performance
was supported by the
announcement of a new multi-
vear strategic agreement with a
global electronics ignder. and the
rephasng of certam orders from
2021 :ntoc Q1 2022

Unfortunately our Wiretess
ravenues, comprising our
conrectvtv-related products
decreased 9% for the period,
reflect ng o declre 1n sales tnked
to brogader softnass in tne
smartonone nandset mareet, as
well s weakrass ' wafer saes for
EG nfrastructure reiated products

Cur CMOS++ ravenuss ware stap's
vaqr-on-year at £28m

{2021 £2 8} Qur Display and
Power divisions were rot repcrted
saoarataly n 2022



Outlook

Entering 2023 it is hard to ignore
that the industry is operating
against a backdrop of economic
and geopolitical uncertainty, and
we are seeing related softnass
across the semiconductor sector.

While the forecast for the first half
of 2023 looks chaitenging, it is
widely expected thatthisis
tempeorary downturn Ours 1s an
industry that has consistently
demonstrated penods of growth
over many decades and which s
forguasl Lo conunue, We
anticipate that IQE, along with the
rest of the industry, will return to
growth. During HI 2023 we have
taken a number of actions to
strengthen cur balance sheet
and rationalise our cost base, In
order to fund our future growth
strategy and emerge strongly out
of the downturn.

Iremain as confident as aver in
IQE's growth potantia;,
underpinned by the megatrends
that are continuing to shape the
woy we live, move and
communicate. | am excited about
the future as we continue to
exacute our diversification
strategy, and the pipeline of
opportunities beng devetoped for
2023 and beyond.

As demand grows for more
connectivity, higher performance
and better efficiency in the Net
Zero world of the future, | am
proud of the role that compound
sermiconductors and IQE can play
n an intelligently connected, low
caroon world,

Americo Lemos
Chief Exccutive Officer

23 May 2023

Partnerships

in action

Capturing value through
long-term and strategic
agreements

In 2022 we were pleased to announce the signing of
several major strategic partnarship agreements. A
focus on this type of customer engagement model
gives |QE greater predictability and visibility, aliowing
for greater value capture.

IQE ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Cormpany number 03745718

yodai 31fapns l




Value chain

Strategically positioned
in the global value chain

IQE has a unique and strategic position within the global semiconductor
value chain as the only pure play epitaxy provider with a global footprint.

1I0E

Epitaxy is where the value is created
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Growth markets

) &

Smart Connected Automotive
Devices and Industrial
—_
~
0

Communications
Infrastructure
and Security

+ Read more about our growth markets an page 24

Foundries Fabless Device makers
Device fabrication Design Device manufacture
IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 2
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Business model

What makes our
model work

Long-standing partnerships
with customers

iQE is a matericlis solutions
pravider, enabling advanced
technologies throughout major
giobal supply chains, We work
with customers up and down the
value chain.

Highly skilled and experienced
people

IGE attracts and develops the
top talent in the compound
semiconductor industry, and is
therefore able to offer a wealth

of technical expertise across our
product portfolio

Breadth of intellectual property
portfolio

With a strategic patent portfolio
and signficant progess 'P, 1QE

has an enviable and protected
position within divarse

technology markets,

Widely recognised technology
leadership

As a materials spacwalist with

a commitrent to innovation,

IGE is at the forefront of new
tachnology ard has a track record
of enabling major techrolog.ca:
product trends, from R&D to

mass prodection.

Giobal manutacturing footprint

Headgquartered in the UK ard
with manufacturing operations
N three major contirents,

'QE ~as proad market access,
cipsa custorar proximity ard
g.obal manufactur.ng flexibility
and rasi'ence

Superior quality is acore
competence

1QE has g reputatior for
marufacturing products of tre
nighest quarity and our wafers
driva suoenor yieds ond unit
2conom cs for our chip customers.

22

How we

create value

e
OE=
Resedarch & New products Manufacturing |
development Developing cupacity
A programme of lsading edge Investrnent in the
innovertion that products with mnfrastructure of
drives leading superior oUr Mass \
edge technologies, performance production
working in and qualty foundries ir tnree
partnersnig with characteristics, continénts has
tne world's malor enabling the creatad the scale
technological technologies for us to capitalise :
supply chains. of today and on the expanding
tornorrow compeund '
semiconductor
market '
Underpinned by:

pol

Our cutture & values
(OE's strength a5 i the
expertise and diversity of
our workforce and we

Our strategic goals |
By invasting in tha futt.re of

cormpound semiconductors

and scaliing tre business for

recognise tnat teamwork and growth, IQE is targeting

colioporatior are at the neart expanding margins ard cash
of the Company Our valuss fiowes ‘ntagra to this s the

of trinki~g o g ard striving for developmert and mass
mere being driver to deliver oroductor of advanced

~ore and arcritesting
oo ow, guide ous

maternials that dre ey to
engbirg macro trends sLoh

penaviours. as the orolferaton of 3G
comrmitncations Wi 6
correctivty, the nteraet of
Tings. Augmented Reaity
a~d the Metovarse
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6/%

Customer
qualification
Exacting quality
standiards,
worldg-jeading IP

)
77

Mass production

As volumes
increase within
an expanding
industry, supernor

and process economies
know-how enables  of scale and
broad product cperating

quahfication
with ieading
international
customers

leverage can
be achieved.

D

Sound governcance and risk
management

As a giobdl operator with a
30-vear neritage, IQE has an
enviable record of operating
safely, compliantly and with
continuity of operations

The semiconductor industry

g dynarric and fast-paced,
however, oversight from our
Board ensures the strategy
ard execution of our business
incorporates best practice
and proactive risk management

&84
[=»

Responsible business
operations

The heaith and safety of

our people, tre environment
and the commurities in which
we operate dre of paramount
importance We view our
global supply cham as an
axtension of our business

and for this reason we are
committed to operating
responsibly.

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Caompany number 33745726

The value we share

Customers

£f4dm

Technology-related
development expenditure

2021 £3m

Employees -

2,064

Hours of learning
completed in 2022

202t 2,719

Investors

£9m

Cash capital expenditure
investment in 2022

2021: £15m

Communities -

1day

Annual paid employee
volunteering leave entitlement

2021: Tday

Environment

22,180tCO,e

Total GHG emissions

202%:25,5911C00
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Market review

Growth markets

Growth market

Market opportunity

Smart Connected
Devices

Communications
Infrastructure and
Security

—
=
ﬁo

Automotive
and Industrial

&

24

$5.5bn

muarket size by 2027*

Srnort Connocted Devices oncompass
averything which detines our connected worla
Smaryphonas are one koy plotform hosung
high-spead wireless, ugh-resolution displays
and aavancod sensing. Augmentad and virtaat
realty technotagios and hoalthcare wearables
alzq create ranstormative growth cpportumties
tor our industry \WIth over onc bilkon dovicas
cannaested to the mrternst tha internat of Thinas
1z already transtormatonal and 1s dependant on
rehdbie ana seounz digiear nfrastructura
povizred by IQC matenals

$10.1bn

communications
infrastructure market size by
2027+

Crtting oedge Sompound scmiconductors anabic
the whole datn path High speoed areless and
wrchne netwaorks guarantes rapid relable data
ransmIs3ian, oNsurng tat Cver - INSreasing
zandwdth requrrements can b met. Dafence
Hatoms and plattorms alse reguire compound
scmiconductors to poner secure Somrurmeation s
and ondnle 2pical sansng and dereeton

a S MLDRIC JCrosnocs soruhmy and
nwiligenae nlattorms

32%

CAGR 2022-2027*

Sourne

Compound serniconductons tRat assist wath
sensing ard powaer canversan are at tho care
ohtne digiia’ cha which s revoa utonising
weh e functionality maay Qur matenals are
boing architocted Nt muitple new autemotve
Swoctrone s piatforms vonich nchude drrecr
asystarce LADAST outo connoctivh, mult moda
ant pov.ortrer lechactegios The car as wor

b s avoleng rap dh ot sectng

~ausiigl haiher e oo by
g roat anc digital sorlds irt

75 such a3zt o

Ine
NG mrareatactunng ard o
[P wTle [eioldaaliaals i
solLlinme are a Snncst erabien oilraonin, 1o

<tng and m

v COF sourtns 01 20727
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IQE is focused on three strategic markets which offer significant growth
potential due to the proliferation of technology megatrends. As these develop,
the unique performance characteristics of compound semiconductors will
be necessary to enable their success.

Megdatrends and opportunities

Augmented/Virtual Reality
and the Metaverse

Devices such as smart glasses or hoodsers
that snabie people to interact n the rootl
and aigital warlds rely on compound
semiconguctors, Frrom microliD for
nigh-resciution disploys 3D sensing
Systoms and wireless connactivity,
compound semconductars endble the
smart davices of today and tomaorrow
Qur loadarshyn 1n the matenal systems
which enaple this fanctonality results in
QL momtent already boing designed mito
new piatforms being poncerod by
ndustry leadors,

MicrolED displays

Uitra-high resolution displays madao from
extremaly small LEDs are geanng up to
revolutonise the industry Thase displays
Rave very [ow power consumption ovar
lang ifetimes Only with compound
semiconductor materials can this e
achieved. MicrolED s poised to becomoe
the consumeoer platform with the highast
level of compound sermiconductor
contont and wil require mass
manufacturing capabiiity that only
mega toundries can daliver.

Hedlthcare wedarables

The smartwateh 15 evohang into a
sophusticated health and Ytestyle trackor,
with sensing capabiites only mado
possible by advanced lasers and
detectors enginecred from compauind
semiconductor maternals. Those deoviecs
can non-invasively meaasure vital oodily
tunctions and will revalutionse
healthcare. Additienally thera will be
Intarconnectivity between wearablo
technalogies, smartphones and the
Cloud, drving growth in connactivity
nebvorks also powared by 1IQ0y matanals.

yoded s1Beybiys

5G/66

LG dedvers tigh performance mobile
ond fixaed wiralass access. made possible
by technologies pioncerad by QL
Compound semiconductors transmit
and corvert data up to 00 ttmos fastar
than silicar and are maorc pawer ethcient
with greatly reducad netwark iatency
with datg bandwidth neads growmg
axponcntialyy, driven by the Motaverse,
machire learning and connactad
nteligent devices, sixth genoratron '6G)
nenvorks vl defing tho second datocom
revolulion and those products ar Now
peing developed with 1IQE matenals

Optical networks

IQE 15 a3t the heart of the fibre opte
netwotks which satisty aur nsatatle
appctite for data. The adaptior ot &
and 8G will seo o rapkd Increasae n bbrae

connecting naw sMmdll cells to fronthadl
networks, while 5G and 6G will also
generate very signibicant increascs

i backhaul tratfic over optcal ibre
Scaling optical ransport capacity will
require now eehnalogees such as siecon
Photonics which are epabbkad by 1Q0's
matenals selutions,

Data centres

The phanomeanal growth :nintarnat
roffic comined with the migratuaon

to cloud-based services s drving rapid
grawth in new hyper-scale data contres
requinng oxtrome data rotes only
achigvabic thraugh compound
semiconductors ploncered by 108 As
spaad neraases snergy consumption
dlso scakes Qs green photonics and
Povver electronie matenals solubons koo
SNargy ConsuMEpnon in chaeck and alkow

the data revolution to be achioved ina
sustainabie manner

intelligent sensing

Ontcal sensors allow the conhectaed
world to sce, and compound
somiconductor-basad detectors anable
thex world around us to bemaged with
vivid reselution, This proviaos
nformatan-nch data which allows
botter decistons to b mMada whoen real
and digital worlds intersact Today's
geopaltical cnvironment makas
mtalligant sensing 4 scourity megatrand,
and IQL's 'ongstanding leadorship in
sensirg matenials s at the very core of
the platforms that protect us today

Power train

Drive CyCle cthicizncy 1 at the torctront
of vohiclne povertrain desigr INareasca
randc and taster charging times ars
only made possible with compound
stmicenductors iQE's wide bandgap”
POV G SOMIcondUCEor selutions provide
cempetitve odvantege at scake anatling
CUSLGMEr Gast coMmpetitiveness across
muttizle By segments and vehicie charging
ntrastructure platforms. The demand for
power compound semicondiuctors wall
cvceod that of incumbent silicon
terhnology positoning IQE at the
forefront ot transport clectnfeation

Advanced sensing

Optical 3D sensing ralios on cutting edge
QL VCSEL technology. Tha sama materniabe
that power smartphona 30 sensing are
being designed Into commaeraial
aAutomotive LDAR systoms, onabling
vehicles o see’in ltra-high iesolution,
This provides autonormous dnving
functionanty which s sabe cost sffective
and scalable The sama sensing
technoiogy ss oxpanding into othe -
wavelengths, enabkng migher lovets of
formation capture, with bettar
informeation resulting m groaier autonGnmy.
Culr teehnology s further enhancing
vehcle sotchy, with in-cabin sonsing using
compaund semiconductar photcnics
mitigatrg dganst the dangars of
distracton through drvaer monitonng

sy stemswhich wall be a satery standardd in
next-genoraton veheles,

IQE plc Annual Repert and Accounts 2022
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Communications

vaohizles exchanging data with cach
other, the Cloud and surrounaing
infrastructure will revolutiznise trafhe
saftety and incraaso tho etficwency of
remnsport Dedicated shart rango
communication and loeal collistar
Aghorks are creatng row LG oxploitaton
paths for vatueis @ evarything (w2x)
communications Theae rogura
compound scrmcenductar-besad 50
daviceos dua to thar ultra rehabie low
atency performancs anabing the ropoed
cxchange of tima sensitive and satety
soitical mtorratan This oy date wail also
on requiract for automaied driving and
melgest mability
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Strategy

Strategic progress in 2022

Throughout 2022, we made strong progress in the execution of our strategic
priorities, strengthening our platform for growth to deliver further progress

in 2023 and beyond.

Description

Placing customers
at the centre of
everything we do

We consider our customers at every stage of our
business cycia: from our technology roadmap, to
our scaling plans and business model. Increasing
our customer pipeline and deepening relationships
with our existing customers Is foundational for IQE's
future growth

Toking a markets/
products-based
approach

A rew market-led approach to business was
announced in 2022 whereby we better aligr with
ou- customers' neegds Tnis allows us to continue
to lead in inmovation whilst increasing commercial
success and reducng time to market.

Maintaining our
technology innovation

As a technology company, we "ecogn.se our industry
rewards nnovation We are focused on maintaining
our ieading position across the widest breadth

of materal systems .n the markét, and scalng our

value through long-
term and strategic
agreements

ORNORRORRCONL

|eudership epwafer diarretars for better economies of scale
and to ynlock rew ma-kets
- Througnout 2022, we focused on increasing our
cuptu"ng greater strategic engagerments through long term customer

partnersh ps We wiil seex to build on this :n 2023

and beyond, ir order to .ncredse business "esilience
a~d predictabity ard achieve greater vaus caoture
for anat we do

Scaling while
optimising our
global footprint

@

We a2 transfo™ rg at pace to sta~da-dise
centralise ard scae Dur site "at ona saton
Drogram ™2 s a«ev step Ir ophimising ou” g'ong
footorrt ta ~ealise greater aeff.cliercies We are ~eady
with the faciites and expert so to scale for growth
woth-nour ex stng sites

256
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In the year

Woded ojbeynns l

Significantincrease in customer
engagement

« Key appointments in Customer
Excelience and Giobal Sales functions

* Maintain and grow our position in
connect and sense markets

Diversify into power and display markets

« World’s first commercially available
200mm VCSEL

Cardiff HQ transitioned to global
Innovation Centre for R&D

+ Multi-year supply agreement
with Lumentum

Multi-year agreement with global
consumer electronics leader

Strategic agreement with SK siltron

SOOI

Singopore facility closed and site
optimisation on track

Standardisation roadmap to incorporate
systems and processes, manufacturing
intelligence and automation

-

Customer diversification strategy,
inctuding both product and
market mix

Entry into microLED market through
strategic partnerships

Continued to lead in innovation whilst
increasing commercial success
and reducing time to market

Epitaxy partner of choice for
Lumentum'’s LiDAR for automotive

Multi-year supply agreement
with AWSC

Strategic partnerships with two
microLED technology partners

Focus on ESG best practice as we
prepare to scale, including the
formation of a Board-level

ESG Committee and commitment to
Net Zero and Science Based Targets

IQE pic Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Strategy continued

Our strategy for growth

Our refreshed strategy is to focus on key capabilities within growth markets
and partner with market leaders to diversify and grow our business

in a sustainable way. We will leverage our cutstanding technology
roadmap and unique global footprint to capture value for what we do.

Strategic

goals Capabilities Description

With a long hertage in Wireless

applications, from smartphores to
Connect 5G infrastructure, we remain focused

or enaoling the next geraration

of smart connected devices

Maintain and
grow IQE’s o \
position

As a pioneer dnd leader ir '

advanced sénsing, QE I1s focused ;

s on mamntaining our technology f
ense leadership in this market through '
exparding use cases and demard |

from new market applications !

Qur stratagy to diversify py enterinrg

nto power @'ectronics is in response

to the substantial growth forecast
Power In this market. From 2022-2027 power

spitaxy has a projected CAGR of

29%, resulting ir a 52on market

by 2027

Diversify S

The waor'd is at the begnnng

of a mucrolEl revolution and 1QE

ras partnerad witr bwo microlED
tachnology custorars to ensure

we are engbling tre future of d'spay
Tne dispoy market eoitaxy CAGR from
2022-2027 stforgcast to e 172%
signanirg ruge growtn potantal

Display

ToSeueny eain rwl gance Q1 2022

28
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Key objectives

Protect existing business while diversifying customer base through the establishment of
strategic partnerships

Leverage our technical leadership gained over decades of manufgcturing leading edge epitaxy
for front~-end modutes

Mdintain our market-leading position 1n 33 Sensing

Develop next-generation sensing products, focusing on .arger watsr diameters and
leng-wavelength technology

Key angagements with partners who are integral to the UDAR supply chain

.

teverage longstanding Galium Nitnde (GoN) capabilty for RF applications

Develop teading edge GaN-based power products for voltages up to 850 volts (E/D mode)
Standardise and scale to ensure cost-effective volurme manufacture

Estanlish unique commercial engagemsents so that IQE products can enabie virtual vertical integration
Engage with market leaders to create mutually bersficial agreements for improved value capture in
power elactronics

NNV

.

Partner with technology iecders to create mutudlly beneficia agreements that enable value capture
Create a ful: portfolio of matenas sciutions for high-performance red-green-biue (RGE) dispays
Cverse product offerings that enable both pick and piace and tri-colour manufacturing

Focus on large diameter substrates (greoter thomn QOGmr“) for GaAs a~d GaN-2ased products

IQE ple Annugl Repaort and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726
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Key performance indicators

2022 performance
review

Financial highlights

Revenue Adjusted EBITDA* Adjusted net cash/
(£m) (em) (debt)**

(£Em)
Capital expenditure Adjusted operating Operating profit/
cash flows profit/(loss)* {loss)
{em) {gm) {Em)

e P IITTOIn MRAaTLia s s oo woed mothte b L pagn 2%

rotronIca . L 2 orpans ?

30
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We recognise our success is dependent not only
on our financial performance, but achieving our
operational and social goals.

Non-financial highlights

Adjusted diluted EPS Gender diversity Safety course
{ep)** Group level completions

Read mere about our people

an page 40
Diluted EPS Total GHG emissions Learning hours
(£p) (tco.e) completed

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726
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Financial review

The Group’s trading in 2022
was largely resilient to the
challenging macro environment.

“Laying the

32

foundations
for growth”

Tim Pullen
Chicf Financial Officer
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The Group reports financial
performance in accordance with
International accounting standards
in conformity with UX adopted
international accounting
standards (UK adopted iFRS') and
provides disclosure of additionat
aiternctive non iFRS GAAP
performancea measures to provide
further understanding of financial
perfarmance. Details of the
alternative performance measures
used by the Group, Including a
reconciliation to reported UK
adopted IFRS GAAP performance
measures, dre set out n note 5

to the financial statements.

Current outlook

The Group's trading in 2022 was
impacted by the broader
semiconductor industry downturn,
in particular increasing softness in
smartphone-related demand and
weakness n bG infrastructure
demand n the |atter part of the
yedr Group ravenue of
£167,494,000 (2021 £154.086,000)
has increased 8 8% benefiting
from a foreign exchange taillwind
of 10.6%. The Group has reported
anoperatling 1oss of £72,976,000
(2021: £19,978,000) which includes
a non-cash impairment charge of
£62,716,000 rejated to the write-
down of gocdwill resulting from o
change in forecasts related to the
current semiconductor downturn
and the associated market
softness rmpacting the Group.

Current trading s affected by the
temporary semiconductor
ndustry dowrturn, with reduced
customer forecasts, orders and
assoc.ated revenue. First half
revenue is expected to be in the
range of £50,000,000-£56,000,000.
Net debt as at 31 March 2023 was
£.£24,000,000 (nat debt is defined
as cash 1ess borrowings put
exciuding leqase liabiities and fair
vaiue gainsilosses on derivative
instruments) Full year revenue for
F¥231s expected to include a
return to yedr-on-year growth
during the second half The Group
s target’ng diversification into the
nigh-growt~ markets of power
and advanced display by
investing in the expanson of its
Gan capdcity The Company
expects PP&E capex related to
assential mantenance and heglth

& safety items aned existing
commitments to be approximately
£7,400,000 in FY23. In addition, the
diversification strategy will iead

to investment in GanN of
approxirmately £8,300,000.

Steps have been taken oy the
Directors to strengthen the balance
shest of the business in the
short-term, including the rengwal
of the Group's £28,688,000
{835,000,000) multi-currency
revolving credit facility provided
by HSRC Rank ple and the
£31,098,5486 squity fundraise.
These steps, combined with a
number of post-year end cost
rationalisation and cash
preservation actions that have
been implemented by the Directors
will provide the necessary liquid'ty
for the Group to navigate the
current semiconductor market
downturn, provide sufficient
headroom to protect against the
racovery oceurnng later than
forecast, and alow the Group to
continue Investing in its growtn
and diversification strategy.

Review of the year

Group revenue of £167.494,000
(2021 £154,096,000) has increasad
8.8%, benefiting from a foreign
exchange tailwind of 106% o a
reported basis where increases in
Photonics revenues have offset
decines in Wireless revenues

Revenue

£167m

2021: £154m

Operating loss

£(73)m

2021: £(20)m

Adjusted EBITDA

£23m

2021: £19m

IQE pic Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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The Group's Photonics business
segment represents the largest
proportion of the Group’s revenus,
accounting for 52.9% {2021 44.2%)
of total wafer sales with Wireless
representing 43 4% (2021 54.0%)
and CMOSS++ representing 1.7%
(2021 18%).

Photonics wafer revenues
increased 30.2% to £88,637.000
(2021 £68,067,000). The incraase in
Photonics wafer revenues reflects
the continued strength in demand
for VCSELs used in 3D sensing,
including the impact of increased
customer diversification following
the Group’'s announcemeant of a
riaw muiti-year strategic agreement
with a global consumer electronics
leader in early Q4 2022, and as a
result of higher other photonic
product sales linked to a
combination of factors including
the re-phasing of certain defence
and security orders associated with
large programimas and strang
dernand for the group’s substrate
related products.

Wireless wafer revenues
decreased 8.7% to £76,016,000
{2021 £83,217,000). The decrease in
wirgless wafer revenues reflects a
decline In wireless Gaas spiwafer
sales, continued weakness 1IN GanN
epiwafer sales for 5G infrastructure,
and the impact of the closure of
the Group’s manufacturing facility
in Sirgapore that focused on the
manufacture and sale of legacy
pHEMT epiwafars. The reduction in
wirgless Gaas epiwafer sales in
particular has neen impacted by
softness in the broader smartphoneg
handset market which bas led to
increased inventory levels
througnout the manufacturing
supply chain. This has continued
to adversely affect demand for
wiraless GaaAs epiwafers in H1 2023

Statutory gross profit increased
from £17,644 000 to £26,383.000.
The increase in gross profit reflects
a combination of a favourable
shift ir sales mix with a h'gher
propartion of the group's revenrue
derived from higher margin
photonics products ard the
impact of a favouranle foreigr
exchange tailw:nd which has
heiped to increase gross profit
margin percentage to 15.8%

{2021 15%) Adjusted gross profit,
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Financial review continued

which excludes the chiarge for
share based payments, ncreased
from £18,771,000 to £26,532,000
with an increqase \n gross margin
from 12.2% to 15.8%

Selling, general and administrative
('sG&A’) expenses have increased
29% in the year frem £30.322,000
to £3121,000, excluding the
separately disclosed impalrment
loss on Intangible assets of
£66)55000 (2021 £7,41L,000) and
the impairment loss of £2300,000
{2021: £34,000 credit) related to a
small number of customer specific
recelvables. Adjusted SG&A
expenses, which exclucle
adjustments for share based
payments, restructuring costs,
Chief txecutive Officer recruitmeant
costs and asset impairments have
increased from £25336,000 to
£26,780,000 (5.7%), reflecting
combination of nflationary nressure,
certgin amployee-related
nvestrment and increases in certain
legal and professional costs,

As part of the Group’s global
footprint optirmisation plan
restructuring costs totailing
£4152,000 (202) £3,681,000) have
peen incurred relating to costs
associated with the announced
closure of the Group’s
manufacturing faciity in
Pennsylvania, USA and the ciosure
of the Group's manufacturing
facility in Singopore. Withir the
rastructuring costs are £3,.616.000
(2021. £3,020,000) retating to

a cormpination of site
decommissiening, asset write-
downs and ampioyeae relatad
costs 1IN Singapore and £1,136000
(2021 £686100C ) relating to errployes
related and asset decommissioning
costs dssociated with tne closure
of the Pernaylvania, USA site

Cheef Ixecutive Offcer recruitment
costs of £205.000 {2021 £741,000)
neiude share award and casn
costs assacated with the rew
Croef Executve Officer's starting
sorus and tne oarta re eass of
accrued pror period externa’
Cref Executive Officer recru trent
faas that ware linked to first yaar
anruch borus awards. Chiaf
—xecutive Off cer recruitrent costs
in 2021 nciuded settiemenrt costs
and iegon tees of £318C60
associated with the transton of
the former Chief Executve Cfficer

34

to a non-executive role and
external recruitment fees of
£423,000,

Impairment of goodwill of
£62,716,000 (2021 £nil) principaty
relates to the Group’'s wireless
operating segment where
reductions jn sales volumaes,
prmarily inked to lower levels of
smartphone-related demand
and continuing weakness in bG
infrastructure 1s forecast to result
n lower levels of capacity utilisation
and operating segment profitabiity
The non-cash impairment resuits
from the near-term softness in
forecasts for wirelass products

as a result of the industry-wide
serniconductor downturn which,
has i turmn, resuited from increasing
inflation, gecopolitical shifts and the
lingenng effects of the pandemic
inwhich inventory levels built up
in the industry.

impaiyment of intongiies of
£3,430000 {2021 £7 41,000) relates
to the impairment of distributed
feedback laser technology
development costs wheare the
Group has taken the decsion to
discontinue the development
and commerciaisation of the
technotlogy The impairment in
2021 relatad to the write~down in
varue of the Group's cREQ™ filter
technoiogy deveopment cost and
satent assets totailing £4693.000
and the impairmsnt of Photanic
quas: crystal technology-reiated
development costs and patent
assets totailing £2.718.060

A reported operating 1oss of
£72,976,000 has been incurred
{2021 £19.878.000), prmariy due
to the non-cash mpairrent of
goodwll of £62.716.000. Reflecting
the adjustments noted above. an
adiLsted nperating loss of
£3,557,000 1 2022 compares o
ar adiusted ocperat rg oss of
£5,454,000 :» 2021 The "eductor
1 the ass principaily efiects the
0os tive impact of a favourable
stift i sales mix ard a fore.gn
axchanga taw ~d at a gross proft
evel partia’ly offset by ncreases
 5G&A expanses The segrmerta
analysis .n note 4 refiects tne
ad'usted operat rg margins for
the orengry segments

{pefore cantra’ corporate supoort
costsj Fhotorcs-adusted
operating —argins rcredsed

Company number D3745725

from 2.6% in 2021 to 12.6% i 2022
reflecting a combination of
improved capacity utiisation ana
favourable customer and product
mix. Wreiess-adjusted operating
margins declined from 8 8% in 2021
to 6.2% in 2022, primarily reflecting
reductions in volume and the
associated under-utiisation of
certain manufacturing capacity
The Group is targeting a reduction
in under-utiiised capacity through
the closure of ooth the Singapore
manufacturing site (completed

in Mig-2022) and the Pennsylvania
site (due to be completed by 2024).

Finance costs of £2,427000

{2021 £2,213,000) refiect £1,098,000
{202} £905,000) of bank and other
interast costs and the interast
expense or iease liabilities of
£1328,0060 {2021 £1,308,000). Bank
and other irterest costs principally
refate to the Group’s HSBC Bank
plic revolving credit and asseét
finance facifities with the increase
' intarest cost reflecting a
combinatior: of an increase in

rat debt ard ar ingcradgse 0 the
nterast rate as both the Bank of
Englond Base Rate and the
Sterling Overnight index Average
('SONIA") interest rate benchmarks
have increased during the year

The tax credit of £882,000

{2021 £881,000 charge) consists
of a current tax charge of £83,000
(2021 £1124,000) primary relating
to taxanis profits gene-ated by
the Groun's Tawanese operations
and a deferred tax credit of
£951L000 {2021 £7.887.000 charge).
Deferred tax dsset recognition: nas
peen -astricted In the UK to £nil to
~ef'ect future forecast profitanility,
ar assassrment that includes the
‘mpact of market softness in
tradng forecasts as a -esut of
the mdustry-wide semiconductor
dowrturn a~d the 'mpaoct of the
Group's consocdation and
nvastment in cantra and

funct onar roles, whist US deferred
tax asset -ecogrition has beer
restricted to £nil to refisct lower
futurs forecast profitabiity ar'sing
fror a comonat.on of markat
softrass. the Group's consolidatonr
of its LS marufactur.ng operat ors
and tre co~tinued shft ir the
oarance of future forecast
ranufacturing and rence profits
from the Groun's US operatiors



to its JK and Asian operation.

The effective tax rate of L1%
(20211123%) applicable to the tax
credt of £798,000 {2021: £1,803,000)
on adjusted items is ‘ess than the
UK statutory tax rate of 19%,
primarily due to the non-
recognition of deferred tax assets
for current year UK, US and
Singapore trading losses which
irclude the adjustad Chief Executive
Officer recrutment, Singapore and
Pennsylvania site closure costs
and intangible asset impairments.

The increase in the toss for the ysar
to £74,541,000 {2021: £31,002,000)
reflects a combination of the
underlying trading performance
noted above and the impact of
adjusted non-cash and other
non-operational items, which at
an adiusted ‘evel, has reduced the
oss to £5,920.000 {2021, £19,281,000)

Basic and diiuted loss per share
has increased from a loss per
share of 3.87p to a loss per share
of 927p In the current year with
adjusted basic and dilutad loss
per share of 0 74p (2021 2 41p),
reflecting the Groun's ioss at a
statutory and adjustad profit leve!

Cash generated from operations
decreased in the year to
£8,873,00C (2021; £18,883,000),
refigcting the Group's favourgble
trading performance cffset by
adverse working capital and the
cashimpact of adjusted non-
operational tems. The Group has
continued to invest in growing
capacity to meet demand with
capital expenditure of £9,438,000
{202% £15,051,000) principolly
focused in Tarwan and
Massachusetts to support future
growth opportunities, intangible
asset expenditure of £4,688,000
(20721 £345.000) focused on a
combination of intellectual property
and the Group's multi-yaar strategic
iT transformation programme and
investment in targeted capitolised
technology developmeant of
£3,795,000 {2021 £2,994000).

The decrease in cash generated
from operations, combinad with
investing activity cash costs of
£10,729,000 (2021 £15,305,0600) and
repayvrent of lease habilities of
£4,926,000 (202]: £3,705,000), net
of proceeds from bank borrowings
of £6,588 000 (2021 £6145,000
repayment) have combined to

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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maintan the Group's cash position
of £1.520,000 (2021 £10,781.000), but
increase net debt {excluding 'ease
laiities and derivative financial
instruments) from £5,804,000 to
£15,248 000 as at 31 December 2022

Since the year end, the Group has
experisnced a deepening of the
market softness that has :impacted
2022, resulting in an increqase in the
Group's net debt position prior to
the successful steps that have
Deen taken to strengthen the
balance sheet of the Group.

The £31098,546 equity fundraise
and refinancing of the Group's
£28,688,000 ($35,000,000) multi-
currency revolving cradit facility
provided by +SBC Bank pic provide
the necessary liquidity for the
ousiness to confinue to operate
and invest in its growtk ard
diversification strategy

Equity shareholder funds total
£175,060,000 (2021: £234,521,000)
with the rmovernent from 2021
primariy reflecting the loss for
the yvear and foreigr exchange
differerces ar’sing on the
retransiatior of net investments
in overseqas subsidiares.
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Stakeholder engagement

Consistent
engagement

Engaging with our stakeholders is

critically important as we progress

our strategic goals and develop our Tom Dale

future plans for continued success. Gercrat Counsel and Company Sccretary

Our impact on, and engagerment with, our kay stakehoider groups is consdered within the implementation
of our strategy, which is ovarseen by the Executive Leadership Tearn and supported by the Board of Directors.
We consider the impact we have on our stakeholders, as well as what our stakehoiders consider important
when devsloping IQE's strategies for future success. We hgve sel oul below our key groups of stakenolders,
the issues and factors relevant to those stakeholders and how we have engaged with those stakeholders,

How the Board has engaged with sharehoiders, the workforce and other stakeholders

Stakeholder Stakeholder description TMctericl issues J
we provide the best advanced semiconductar - Consistently high guglity products
. rmaterials solutions to our customers. suppaortod by « High standord of busincss conduct
200 bospoke product offenngs and personalised customer

Cortunucus ImMprovermaent
Fair pricing
Excellent ongoing customer support

support We have a wide and divetse range of customers
o serving end apphcations aligned with our threc core

Customers rmarkets of Srart Connected Dovicss. Automotive &

INncdustnal and Communications infrastructure & Security

.

Cur emplovees are fundamenrtal to our busiress + Opportunities for personal

SuCCess, Wo continually invest ir our people. dovelapirg development and careor progression
. : the capabilitios thot we vall need to succecd over the + Trust ond encouragement to contribute
®@® lerget toim We arc commtied to being the company ro the succoss of the business

where the bost in our sectorn wan! towark and sirve X0 | —snsideration of thoir health

offor opportunites that will attract, motvato and rotain

Employees N ) o and wellbeing
5 . i ' L b he 251 -
alerted employeass, cnabling therm to give ir bost . Working as part of an nclusive and
amworse cllture
. - we ploce considerable importarae on the s Current and future finanoigl
%g rramntenance of regular and apen dialoguc with our petformance
sharoholders Our goalis to deliver out mvestors and © MOXIMisINg OpPOrUTItIcs far growvet

sharckolders with returns through profitable ord

- + Environrmental secial and
investors and |sustainable growth with the officient use of capital

govermanco 1ISsues

Shareholders
wWe rocognise the value of our partrers and supphicrs « Forocasting visiiiity
@ QL supphor chom playvs a vital roic in sepporfiing our « Product quality
busiross growth and efficiency 7o moet the Cxpectalions .« ray prgirg
of cur custocMmors we govolop strorg working relaaonsbipg

i . ) torg term portrerships
Partners and | with odr supplicrs and ook “or 2ur sdppliers o provide = P P

- Yaloln) ‘e
suppliers addod valuee
edo We believe that our techrolagy ard products will « Leocohirvestment
@‘ bonafit arnd advance society We wwork bard 1o oersure + Opperturiios for icoal mvesteens
that we hove a posiine impect en all thoso aiourd us.

« rpccton local erd wider
society arvirermentcl and social 1ssees

35
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Section 172(1) statement

Engaging with our stakehoelders
anc acting In a way that promotes
the long-term success of the
Group, while taking into account
the impacts of our business
decisions on our stakeholders,

is central to our strategic thinking
and our statutory duty in
accordance with Section 172(1)

of the Compadnies Act 20086,

This constitutes our Section 172
Statermert as required under

tha Companies (Miscellaneous
Reporting) Regulations 2018

The Board of Directors considor,
both individualy and collectively,
that they have acted in a way that
they consider, in good faith, would
e most likely to promote the

success of the Company for the
hengfit of its members as a whole,
having regard to the matters set
wul it Section 172 {a) to (1), in the
decisions taken during the year.

Recognising that compameas

are run for the benefit of their
shareholders, but that the long-
term success of a business is
dependent on maintaining
relationships with stakeholders,
the Board continuously reviews
which relationships support the
generation and preservation

of value i the Campany.

These relationships Include those
with our customers, employees,
investors and shareholders,
partners and supphers and society,

As a Board, our intention is to
behave responsibly and ethicaliy
at o times, in iine with our
Company values, and to ensure
that our management teams
operate the business ina
responsibie manner and to the
highest standards of business
conduct and good governance.
As we act in o way which reflects
our values, we will contribute to
the long-term succeass of the
Company and continue to develop
our reputation as a responsible
and successful Company that
celivers stakeholder value.

Further information as to how the Board has had regard to the Section 172 factors:

Section 172 Factor Key Examples Ipqge
A.Consequences of any  + Consideration of how IQE gencrates tong term value in the Page 22
decision in the Iong term through development of our Business Modcl and Strategy
B. Interests of employees - Parucipation in Diversity, Eguity and Inclusion pianning for Page 40
the business
+ Promotion of cmployec wellbeing inttiatives and benefits awareness
- Participation in Town Halls and employee forums
C. Fostering business » Building strong relationships with customers and suppliers within. Page 38
refationships with the Group’s supply chain, which 1s essential for achicving tho
suppliers, custormers Group's long term strategic goals
and others
D. Impact of operations + Constderation of Environmental, Sccial and Governance Page 48
on the COmI’\"\unity and improvement strategies
the environment Roviow of environmental performance, 1ISC 1400t Environrrental
rmanagernent systermn and crmissior reduction initiatives
E. Maintaining high Fromotion of responsible business operations, wath @ focus on pPage 39
standard of business the Group's Ant bribery and Corruption, Confidentiality and
conduct whistleblowing policies, and Anti Slavery Statement
F. Acting fairly between + Shoreholder engogoment Page 36

members of the Company - Investor information and the Annual General Mecting

IQE ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Responsible business

Supply chain

We work closely with our suppliers to uphold
the highest standards so that the people and
environments connected to our supply chains
are safe, protected and treated with respect.

Qur 'One IQE Managerment’
philosophy reflects our core values
cnd our ongomng commitment to
doing business in a responsible
manner. Our supptiers share a
commitment ta responsible
sourcirg practices which is more
important now than ever, They are
key partners and continue to play
a crtical role in heiping us achieve
our vision and goais We expect
our supply cnan portners to
uphold the same high standards
as 1QE leaders and employees,
and a'ways to act ir an ethical
efficient ard transparent manner,

2022 supply chain review

after two tumuituous years, the
global economy and supply
chains started 2022 with what
appea-ed to be rew strength
Urfortunately in February rews of
the war 'n Lkraina broke and
~aommaodity prees spiked, notasily
for erergy. emphasising tne
opportunty and need for atsrnate
clear energy sources. Forturatery
we were able to 1ock nto lower
energy costs in 2020 ancd hoid
this through to Q4 20232 Looking
forward, IQE is octivary working to
secure future supply through
1IC0% renewan.e energy sLpply
agreaments. "2~forcing our
com™.itment to g het Zero future

'GE recogses that ore way out of
sLPPly chain shortages is through
ar ncreased move towa ds a
Ciroular economy it wWhch rmore
waste s recye.ed ord reused.
ALGT we are actvery rvolved e
projects o successtu 'y recyolg
10C% of what bave previous'y beer
vidasta roatency’s 0 2022 we
strengtnened tnat nrocess, wits Q.
our GoaAs and nP water waste
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being 100% recycled inta high purity
-aw matertial that feeds drectly
back into our supply chain.

This has only been possible through
ongoing kay intigtives with our
strategec supply chain partners.

Lookirg back, 2022 was yet another
vear of upheaval and the changsas
we have seen are evidence of a
ionger-term global geopolitical shift
IQE's supply chain management
continues to focus and adapt our
supplier relationships and sourcing
strategies to mest these challenges,
aligring 1QE for rasponsible and
carefully planred scaing nline witn
our future growth fargets

+ Read mote at https:/ fwww.iqep.com/

respaonsibility Jsupply-chainf

“Itis critical that IQE’s
ethical standards are
upheld by our supply
chain partners, and

we see these as key
strategic relationships.
Strong partnerships
with our suppliers help
to minimise supply
chain disruption,
minimise cost, increase
efficiencies and
reduce waste.”

David Bishop
Heoodo of Gloka!l Supply Thair

Company number 03745726
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Anti-bribery and corruption

IQE maintains o zero-tolerance approach to
brivery and corruption. We have an estaolished
Anti-bribery and Corruption policy, which includes
guidance on the giving and receiving of gifts and
hospitatity A Gifts and Hospitality Register is also
maintained to ensure transparency Our Anti-
bribery and Corruption policy applies throughout
the Group and was updated in 2020 and s
supported by appropriate training which was
updated in 2021

Whistleblowing

1QE offers staff a confidential reporting mecharism,
overseen by the Group's General Counsel and
Company Secretary. which enables empioyees to
raise concerns of malpractice, non-compliance
or unethical conduct The aptions for rarsing
corcerns are widely communicated to ermmployees
and are clearly set out in ocur Whistieblowing
policy.

Confidentiality

Maintaining confidentiality is engrained in our
culture. Qur policy and practice ensure that all
staff fully undarstand wnat constitutes confidential
information and restrict internal accass on a
naad-to-know basis Information relating to third
parties 1s not disclosad without the third parties’
written consent.

Human Rights and Anti-Slavery Statement

IQE is committed to respecting the human rights
of all those working with or for us. We do not
accept any form of child or forced labour and

we will not do business with anyvone who fails to
uphold these standards. IQE has a zero-tolerance
approach to modern siavery and 1s committed

to acting ethically and with integrity in all of its
business dealings and reiationships and to
implermenting and enforcing effective systems
and controls to ensura rodern siavery 1$ not
taking place anywhere ir its business or in any of
its supply chains. The Modern Slavery Act addresses
the role of businesses :n preventing modern siavery
within their organisations and in their supply chains
IGE has deveicped and implemented policies to
cormply with the requirements of the UK's Modern
Slavery Act and our Anti-Siavery Statement can
be found at igep.com.

+ Read more at igep.com/responsibility

ssubuiaanb ajprodior
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Responsible business continued

Our people

Gender diversity

40

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion
and Belonging (DEIB)

\QE's population is Mmade up

of different races, genders,
ethnicities, backgrounds, religions
ard beliefs across our global sites
IQE is comm'ttad to providing
squal opportunity, far treatment
ard inciusion for all, without
regard to race, gender, age,
religion, ethnicity, identity, sexuaiity,
disability, geretic disposition,
naurcdiversity, veteran status,
perspective, experience or Any
other aspect wnich makes an
individual unique Following
Americo Lermos arnval as CEQ,
we are revisifing our Cormpany
values to make sure we are
cuitivating a work environment
where differert perspectives,
nclusive reigtionships and diverse
networks can unlock unlimited
potential for ail

A certral part of our DEB
commitment s our desire to
demonstrate inclusive leadership
and represent the diversity of our
organ.sation and the communities
where we lve ard work, r 2022
we invested 'n deveinping our
Cormpany culture, with our
Executive and Senior Leadershio
Teams beginning thewr own

ieart ng and cudural awarensss
programmes so they can insoiie
a cu'ture of belongicg from witnin
IQE ard ultmately drive greater
~epresertatior at tha nighest
lave's We sourced Diversity
partrers across the Sroup who
nove a shared interest in DE B
education and advocacy

we recogn.se that gender dversity
rfeTIING AN HNgoINgG SsLe witnin
our mdustty, hawesver we are
comm™tted to ~orovng ou”
genrder oarance. (n 2022 our
percentuge of termaie ernpoyess
nereasad fror 167 to 187, We dre
supporting nur Taient Acquisition
Team to increqse iNc LsioN dur 7y
theg mirng process, witl ire a e

of attractrg, deveiopng and
cetai~rg STEM talent and secur rg
arrore diverse poo of joire’s

Campany humber 03745726

We gre investing in the success
of women at 1IQF with the roll aut
of the IOf Women's Network on
nternationat Women's Day

A hignly anticipated employee
resource group, the network wilt be
focused on sharing information,
suppofting developmant,
encouraging leadearship,
strengthening networks,
uncovering opportunities ard
championing success for women
across the IQE Group

we celebrate diversity througn
our cultural calebration caendar
Recognising the traditions ard
celebrations that are important
to our employees recogrises and
emoraces the diversity of our
globa' team and fosters a positive
and communcative environrment

We are aiso airm.ng to ouid
strategic partnersrips with diverse
organ sations and natworks who
shiore our commitmeant ta DE'B
and can suppart us with aur
avolving journey of effective a~d
sustcrnabie transformation

In 2022

30%

of vacancies were filled by women,
up from 21%in 202}



“Our employees are at the heart of the success of
IQE and are core to our ability to meet our growth
ambitions. To succeed, IQE will attract, develop,
reward and retain the best talent across the globe.”

Williarn Chin
Interirn Chiof Pcople Officor

Employee wellbeing

IQE is focused on the physical and
mentagl heaith of cur empicyees.
particularly ofter the pressuras
brought about over the last two
years by the global pandemic.

We routinely promote wellbeing
support available through our
employee benefits platforms and
undertake benefits sessions
facihtated by our brokers to ensure
our flgaders, people managers and
employees are owaie of the
assistarce available to thern.

January is Benefits Menth and

N 2022 we agan focused on
communicating our employee
penefits across the Group, with

an emprasis or what we offer
and how to access and effectively
utilise personal benefits. IQE
continuolsly reviews our benefit
offerings to ensure our ptans are
attractive and market competitve
for our empioyees and, where
possibie, their families By the end

of 2022, we saw a 104% increase
irn the number of employees
accessing their benefit offering.

We also increased our quaiified
Maental Heaith First Aiders at IQE n
2022 from 16 to 23 (13 in the LUK and
101N the US} We recognise Mental
Health Awareness Week, World
Mental Heaith Day and other key
Mental Weliness days with a range
of communications and support,
including a series of webinars for
managers to aid their errployees
with harm prevention strategies
and mental health intervention
support when required.

Our Employee Assistance
Pragrammes (EAP) offer 24/7
support and include bareavement
assistance, counselling, legat and
financiai support. Early intervantion
assistance is provided through
axterna. speciaiists and employee
wellness pians, mitigatinrg absence
and aiding returns to work

IQE pic Annugl Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 3745726
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Black History Month {UK)

in October we celebrated UK
Bigck History Month. The
nighlight was CEQ Americo
temos hosting a live
conversation wherg he
discussed his background, the
journey he has taken with his
career in the technology
industry, and how he champions
diversity and inclusion The
event had a fantastic furnout
both in person and online, and
fociitated fots of valudbse
discussions In recognition of
the importance of bringing
diversity, egquity and inclusion
issues to the forefront
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Responsible business continued

Communication and
engagement

In 2022 we engaged with Best
Companies, a leading employee
engagement specialist who
dehvers powerful data and
insights to kelp positive change
in the workplace.

We undertook our second formail
employee engagement survey
titted ‘o-Heard', and were delighted
to receive an 85% response rate.
We achieved "One to watch'
status for the secand year running,
which represents ‘Good’ fevels of
workplace engagerment, as well as
uncovering 3, 2 — and 1-Star
functions armangst our Group

We aiso ranked in the Best
Companies to Work for in the
Manufacturing Sector Q3 2022,

The b-Heard feedback encouraged
us to creats action pians where
areqas of imorovement weare
identfied. These were driven
pattom-up, ~eflecting what our
employveeas believe we do well,
where thev believe we could close
angagement gaps whilst also
shanng pockets of graat practice.
Wa are very proud of cur Gne to
watch status which we will seak to
retain and ‘mprove upon We have
a strong desire to achiave a star
for the Croup overan!

Procuremeant of Warkpiace in 20620,
on internaliy focused connectivity
platform developed by Facebook,
Inc, has enabled tha continuad
use of groups, instant messagng
anc a rews feed to encourdge
amployes communication. At the
time of writing, we nave 477 users
and 33 dedcated groups, a 20%
ncredse N users since 2021

Our leaders and ermployees Qiike
utilise the functionalty to taik,
share and generaly angage with
acich othar v ritud ly. Th s bas oeen
a resoundirg success for our
nusiness ard aliows us to ma-tan
ar o~ mbortart soc'a’ cornection
wihilstworking hvordiy. 0 2022,

we saw "89 nosts created with
14C9 zommaerts ard 5474 reactions
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In 2022, we iaunched our UK HR
Information System {HRIS) to
support our HR and payroll teams
to effectively manage employee
data and payroll processes, The
system also encompasses an
employee and manager self-
service alement, allowing employees
to book their annual ledave, and
update their personal information
as well as store correspendance
relgting to thair employment.

Empowering and supporting
our talent

IQE attracts the best and brightest
global taient and we work hard o
offer an unbeatable experience,
recruiting, retaning and developing
the best talent in our sector.

We are continuing to use our
Competence Manogemsnt Systern
which encompasses a formal
edrning and assessment process
and various training and
developmeart forms, p'ans and
iogs Trdining processes dre now
communicated within departrments
and farmalised via our documert
cortrot systems.

in 2022, 347 of our ervployees
partcipated in Personai
Daveiopment Plans with 63% of
employees completing thetir
targets by the year end. Our Talent
Development team wiit continue
to work with managers and
employseas to effectvely identify
source and facilitate learring and
deveipprnent achivities, supportad
where possible, oy governmant
funding. Th's inciudes supoorting
professional develooment through
formal qualifications, as wel' as
erhancing on-tne-job know'edge
and skil.s

n partrership with Results Sxpioraton
Group and Tne Engagemeart
Coach, OF cortinued leadership
deveioprreant with a focus on
engagamant, 2rmotiora,
rteligerce. and teamwork i 2022
The b-Heard sunvey supoorted our
forus to develop our peopie and
we contirue ta do so as we strive
to create angagement

oonosfun ties for o
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Learning and Development

in 2022, we celebrated Learning
at Work Week by showcasing the
various ways in which employges
can learn and deveiop in both in
a professicnal and personal
capacity. We held webinars with
local traning dand Further Education
providers as weall as improving the
offering on our interncy Learning
Management Systern ‘The vault’,
we have been working with our
globar teams to create nespoke
content talored to our colleagues
Recertly this has included G series
of Risk and Governance courses,
and Quakity, Health and Safety
Modules are being re-worked to
‘Qise awargness and Titigate risk
We nave aiso ergaged wth an

17 provider to further support
«howledge within this area

Early ctareers

Ove! the past year, iQE Nas
nvested time i~ fosterirg
retationsnips with iocal schools,
corages and universites, to
provide education and knowledge
to students and education leadiers
on the sermicordustor industry
ard career offer ngs From tnis, we
“ave begur to see d gradua rise
i~ sermconductor moduies i the
school currculum Trs ws an
mpotant step K rasing awarensss
of STEM careers. particularly for
studerts from diverse packgrounds.

2027 aso saw us attend uS ard
ux cgraeers fors whicn have peen
o greof SUCCess, secuning Nres
and puild~g “ooust talzt pideinss
we cortnue to partrer wat™ o oca’
urnwversty n South Wales to create
cortent-spectc courses to or dge
the skiis gap



Communities
and sociadl review

Making a positive contribution to the communities in which we live and
work is something that IQE, and our employees, care deeply about. IQE
provides time for each employee to make a difference, with one full or two
half-days paid volunteering entitlement annually. All team members are
encouraged to get involved in activities that give back to their communities
throughout the year.

Giving Something Back

IQE's Giving Something Back Committee was formed to support charitable and community engagement
at all of our global sites. We are focused on a global approgach to giving, but with local execution.

Each IQE site has a 'Site Champion” who administers a Grving Semething Back budget, making sure we are
supporting the engagements ard initiatives that mean the most to our people and therr communities.

Habitat for Humanity

IQE's Ponnsyhvanid team
supphed awaorkforce and
gava a monctdry donation
to Habitat tor Humanity or
muitiple oocasions
throughout the year. hiootat
for Humanity 2ssists m
Rroviding commearity
housing. Statf painted
irterior walls, land floors, oyt
Aand instalicd rim and
hralped watn deck blilding.

Food hank donations

Ona of the first Giving
sorrathing Back iniiatives
wo launched aas a food
Bank grive at all of aur
globai sites. This proved to
e very succasstul wath
urncd tood and othoer
non-poenshacies bemng
collectad for both pragle
and pots alike. In 5outh
wales denations piotisrad;
vezrs spht betwean
Caerphilly Food Bank and
Cardift Tood Bank

Taiwan beach
clean up

WQC's tear: 1 Tonan
participated in o beach
cloon up n Octolar as O
Wy [0 Give back to their
sommunity and mare a
differance Twenty
amployees and ther iamily

memibers joined in the avent

For ovar tour nours they
collected as much rubbish
as they could, ncluding
abandonad fishing nets. Tha
Benchits of the beack clean
up vere 'olt oy alb ana ot
waAS Q greal way wnglz the
TN IONmaNE got Saxsesiss
2INc Mact rew poople.

1QE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Angel Tree

In 202 QL hMassachusatts
debuted an Angat Tree for
the students at Cavara £
Loddy Praschool n Tauntor
Dus 1o 11s overyvhelmmg
success, QL MA again
porhicipated in 2022 The
rae was located or a aklc
i the lebby and its
ornaments consistad of
numbaerea tags that held
e information speaitc to o
student in need aillowing
qitts to be solectod based
on the age gandoer and
interosts of the ahdd
Donations wore alsn
matshed with a VISA gift
cand that was distributea to
the child's family Alongside
tr angel Trao gifts we also
collentad new or gently wseo
childrens wnter doerol,
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Responsible business continued

Intellectual property

IQE has a world-leading inteliectual property portfolio born
from over 30 years of experience. Our IP strategy mirrors and
complements our broader business strategy and is
concentrated on both core and developing markets.

IQE technology is underpinned N "
by our intellectual property (1P} IQE’'s patent applications IQE has more patent

partfoho. in 2022 we streamilined are aligned to our growth families than other

our partfolio to better match our .
strategic dims and technology markets pure play epiwafer

projects, We have around 140 companies
granted patents, witn 2022 yielding

eight new grants and i6 new patent

appiications We have plenty more

N the pipeline with our portfolio

growth targeted to support IQE's

five-year plar and beyond

Qur patents cover all aur
technoiogy developmsnt areas
and are aigned to our market
verticals: Smart Connected Devices,
Communications infrastructure,
and Automotive and Inrdustnal

Our process know-how, the secrats
of our trade which nave been
gained through more thar 30 years
n the field, enhances this work and
15 closaly protected by 1QE

With sigorous internal processes
to identify and review invertions in

our tedms, we are abie to harvest  |QE’s patent filing profile is growing and adapting to mirror

nventions efficiertly and to make
strategic decisions over those that the Company strategy

we protect by patent and those
we protect py trade secrets and
confidentiality. Training of our staff
ensuras that everyone understands
the value of our IP 0 our technoogy
and products

“A strong, strategic

approach to IP enables

our strategy by

positioning IQE to

articulate its intangible

asset value, whilst

identifying and

minimising risks.” © 2003 hgiren e targel I and pretic

Victoria Yeomans
Heoad of IP
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Health & Safety review

During 2022, IQE increased its
alreddy considerable focus on
Envirgnment, Health and Safety
(EHS) in order to drive the necessary
improvements required to support
our future ambitions. Deployrment
of the Company’s EHS strategy
continuad, further solidify'ing the
solid foundations put in place
curing 2021 whilst working to evolve
and align systerns and processes
across IQE to ensure they are
world class ard fit for the future.

Drive to world class

To drive the journey to world-ciass
performance, focus was placed
o1 Six key pillars which are criticdl
to achieving our vision:

+ Visibie Leadership - Increase
the visibilty and engagement
of leadership to help develop
G positive culture
+ Governarce - implement robust
governance processes for EHS
+ Compilance Assurance
— ‘mplement robust compliance
ASSUranNce processes
+ Compstence - Depicy a
framework for demonstrable
competence at ali
ordarisatioral levels
Learning Crgonisation — Deploy
a framework to support sharing
and learning from events and
best practices across the
organisation

» Continuous Improvement —
Actively seek out best practices
internally and externaily to drive
continuous improvement across
EHS. Existing processes are also
reguiarly reviewed in order to
identity opportunitios for
improvemert

Key approach in 2023

During the coming year, EHS
initiatives wili remain lasar-focused
on continuing to deploy our
strategy, driving towards world-
class performance and developing
a positive EHS culture at ail levels
of the organisation As IQE looks

to scale and achieve our future
revenue targets, EHS systems and
processes are critical to our future

success. A focus on standardisaton,

centralisation and preparing our
sites and the EHS systemns for scale
is key. To support this, a change
in reporting structures will bring
site-based EHS persannel under
the management of the centra:
FHS function. This will allow for an
expedience of alignment which s
critical to our growth trajectory.

Repotrting

As part of cur drive for continuous
improvement, data reporting
within EHS was further reviewed
during the past year and aligned
to ensura consistant, compurable
data can be recorded, trended
and analysed, while ensuring key
corractive actions can be tracked
moving forward

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company humber 03745726

“As IQE looks to scale
and achieve our future
revenue targets, EHS
systems and processes
are critical to our future
success.”

Scott McKinnon

Health, Safoty and
Ervirorment Rircctar
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Responsible business continued

Health and safety performance

3

lost time injuries

20

total injuries

1,630

near miss reports{OFls

46

Near miss/opportunities vs positive conversations

Durirg the year tne focus within
the business an identifying

and reporting opportunitias for
improvement and nea? Miss events
ntensified As an organisation,

we reclise that by capturing these
lessors and taking swift act.on to
remediate any deficiencies, we can
orevent averts dnd incidants in
tne longer term tis Also G xay
siement in driving a positive cu'ture
of openness and reporting ' the
orgarisation Toacneve this,
sducation activites were corpleted
ocross the busiress dlongside
av/oreness-raising campdaigrs
suppenerted v reguar ev.ew
anddrwve frorm the top of the
arganisaton. The number of reports
graw more thar 2y frorm the previous
veor which s atremeandous
acrevermsri in the Coming ved”
s focus win continug. vtk an
ampNass oo the guaity of the
reports peing dentfied

Company number 03745726

Trnree of our colleagues sufferad
ost e injuries during the year
This was a reductior from sx the
previous yvear, nowever, as an
orgarisation we sti’ see this as
three too mary. Al of the emplayees
ware supportad following the
everts and have ali beer able to
reture to work on normal duties.

Cne of these injur.es was
reportable fo tne regulato- after
tne irjurad employees was Lnaole
to atterd work carrying out normae
guties for sever days No achion
wias taken oy the reguator

Tre ~uper of ove gl niunes
{‘rouding those which led to iost
t—e) rarmaims fariy constant at
20, a reducton of ane from the
orevious year Within QF we
encourage repertrg of alinjunes,
ro matter now iror 1 ordser that
tray can be robust rvest gated
to prevent re-occurrerce



The majority of the injuries reported
wWere very minu und employees
were able to return to work or:
normal duties during the same
shift. Al injuries were investigated
to prevent re-occurrence.

During 2022, in addition to our
Taiwan faciiity, a further two of
IQE's sitas attained certification to
the 15045001 Occupatiornal Health
and Safety standard

2022 Safety performance

This certificate Jaintly covers two
of the three sites in South Wales,
with the tnird site scheduled to
receive certification during 2023,
Work 1s well progressed to ensure
we are positioned to attain
certification across our US sites
and the remaining UK site in the
near future.

2022 201

1odes aibeynig ‘

2022 EHS performance

Lost Tirme Injuries 3 5
All Injurics re LTis) 20 21
2022 ol
Noar Miss OFt 1,630 452
163* 45

Average per site

© Two $:10s opcrated for -six Months nach so classed a5 one site for

AVeraging pPurposes

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726
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Responsible business continued

Environment overview

Environmental performance

Following the attainmant of an
50 14064 certification last yedr
independently verifying the
Company’'s greenhouse gas
{GHG) ermissions, IQE's ESG
Comrittee reviewed the collated
data and agreed 1o further
strengthen the Company's
environmental goals. in 2022, IQE
became a signatory to the
Science Based Targets nitigtive,
publicly makng commitrments to
acrieve Net Zero and carbon
neutravty by 2050, As part of this
proceass IQE wil ba requirad to
outhne our near-te r emissions
recdjuctiors p'ans

Disappomtingly, dunng the year at
one of cur operatioral sites a it
set out in our operating permit was
axceaded. The exceadance was
very ol nowever, this was rotified
to the relevant authortes in o
timely rmarner alorg with details
of the rerredial Qctions taken to
prevent re-occurrence Followirg
review by tha loca: authorities

no furthear action was required.

Pleasingly the focus regard.ng
tne reporting of Opportunties for
morovement and Nedar Misses
across the business had a positive
effect on environmental reporting
across cur stes. Trhe averags
numper of Environmentai
Opporturitiss o eqr \Misses
raported rorecased Sx ~the past
year from 2.5 average ocer site 1o
12 6. pli of these were remadiatad
ard ~vastigated to pravent
re-ocourrence.

ZerQ.

48

2022 Environmental performance

2O

2022
Envirormental incidents (reportabie) 1 0
Environmental inciderts {not roporrobio) 2 2
NM/OFI erivironmentat 126 25
Average per site 12.6 2.5
Waste generation summary
Teatemt s te: Coonanrion (fontes 2022 Ny
Landfill {(nen hozardous) to land 102 12!
Recycled 1548 1341
Hozardous 2386 353
Energy (iIrcineration) 47 13
Totual waste 1,933 “B28
Water usage summary
TOtcH oratet uSe e bk et 2022 ISV
NMunicipal supply 103,610 12063
Recyeled water 373 3425
Purchased wator 647 309
Total water used 104,630 125,350
Energy consumptioh summary
{elstber 7 7 ) 11)21 'D:JVJ
Gas 17,788,539 19,4845
Elcctricity 50,014,066 539,514,203

Cormpany number 03745725



GHG emissions

Trere was a 13.32% reduction in
absoiute ermissions for 2022 in
compansen to 2021 This s due to
a nurnber of factors, most notably
the closure of the Singapore facility
and another smadllar site along
with the scaling down of the
Parnsylvania faciiity's operations
in preparation for closure. These
organisational corsolidation
exercises resultad in o significant
drop in electric and gas
consumption. Other elements such
as air travel witnessed signif.cant
rises during 2022 as the restrictions
imposad as aresut of COVID were
lifted across the globe.

Emissions data
Inventory summary (tC0.e)

Caaledgery

Again, this was not unexpected,
however, such situations will be
monitored to ensure they remain
controlied A small increase in our
2021 total GHG emissions data was
Seen as fast year we were onty
able to collate category 1Tand 2
data This yedr we wera able to
collect data for categaories 3 and
4, and we chose to update our
histoncal figures with this
additional informatior.

Certification

IQE successfully achieved
certification for 1ISO 14064-1for a
secord consecutive yvear in 2022
This shows we nave quantified
and reported our GHG emissions
inforrmation to an internationally-
recognsed SO standard. Thes s
a requirement for the design,
deve.opment, management,
reporting ard verification of an
organssation’s GHG inventory.

SOfR

(M T e} L 0 ey 2022 S
Caotegory & Direct emissions Scope | 3,334 3,089
Category 2. Indwect ermissiors fiom impeorted energy Scope 2

{locatior based method) 16,751 20.084
Category 3:Indwrect ermissions from transportation ) 1,083 581
Category 4. Indircct emissions from procucts used by organisation 1,012 1167
Category 5 Indircct emissions associatod with the use of products Scope 3

frorm the organisatior 0.00 000
Category 8 Indirect ermissiens frorn other sources 0.00 000
Total direct emissions 3,334 3,689
Total indirect emissions 18,846 21,902
Total gross emissions 22,180 25,591
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Risk management

Our approach and

appetite for risk

We recognise risk s an inharent
part of our business operations
and we approach risk with the
same deliberate, strategic

consideration as other aspeacts of

the business. The effective
management of risk contributes
significantly to the successful
delivery of the Group’s strategic
plans anrd objectives. The Group
Risk Committee monitors the risk
environment, in particular those
risks identfied as pnncipal or

emerging risks on a regular basis,

whiig the Board s responsible for
the overall stewardship of risk

managemeant and internal cortrol

The Group Risk Committee
considers rigks using o top-down
and bottorm-up approach,

with tha Cormmittee members
obtairing input from around the
pbusiness, which together with
oversight and support from the
Audit & Risk Committee and the
Board, creates an effective
system for monitoring, planning
and developing a Group-wide
culture and approach o risk
The Group Risk Committes will
periodically report to the Audit

& Risk Committee on the Group’s
principal risks and the mitigating
actons being taker, to address
those misks.

[ Board

Reports to

lT\udit & Risk Committee

Works with

The Group Risk Committee 1s
responsible for the maintenance
and reguar updating of a risk
registe” which articulates the
Group's principal risks and the
actions being taken to address
those risks. The risk register isin
a standordised format andg
ncludes the likelihood of arsk
materialising, and an assassment
of that risk both before and after
the Group’s mitigation activities

Group Risk Commiittee

Risk Reviews

N
N
—~

+ Regular tovicws of Greup’s prircipal nsks

Risk Assurance

« Specialst functiors setting policics and

performirg roview.s

Risk Register

« Growp nsk rogistor marioirad ard revicsyed by

Group Risk Cormrmitiog:

517Cs. business umits £ suppor: furctliors provice

sprcific nsk registars for reviow.

Bottom-up reviews

N

s moadel The Group s

Operating sites, business units, support functions, R&D

The Group continucs
o devolop its nsk
ranagemoert
framowork towards o
Three Limes of Geferce

focused on ostablishing
the recossary processos
ardiriornal oxpertise
‘or the fust cna sccond
Wiros of defence and

sl theroafter lock to
cstobhsh arirternal
cudt functior

- mlqmqmunoo::v
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Principalrisks and uncertainties

The table below sets out the Group's principal risks ond dascribes the likelihood, potential impact and the
Group's mitigation measures for those tisks. We have also identihed the direction of change from 2021,

Maijor health and safety incident and/or major accident to the environment - @ @

IGE operatesina
highty controiled
and regulated
environment due
ta the nature of the
materials used in
its manufacturing
processes.

Mitigation

Effect

« Strong internat controls, mcluding technical
and engingering control measures

+ Continuous improvement of health, safety and
cnvironment management systems

« Continuous audiing and monitoring of
production systerms and equipment and close
down of audit octions

+ Crly trained and compectent perscns parmitted
ta work with potentialty harmful materials

+ IS0 14001 for alt operationat sites

Harm to IQE’'s people or the
cnvironment. reputational
domage. regulatory investigation
andor legal proceedings. fimes
and penafties

Loss of key people

rTO®

IQE's people are
fundamental to its
stccess and IQE
has a number of
individuals in

Mitigation

Eftect

+ Competiive roward schemes including
comprehensive benefits and or ofi employce
share option scheme

+ Employes communication and engagemont

Quality issucs, preduction ISsUcs,
technology develapment aelays.
wage infigtion

including risks from
malware, malicious
actions, accident
and other
unauthorised
access.

key roles. strategy Talent develepment and retention plans

+ Successior maragerment

- Corporate processcs and infrastructure
Cybersecurity - @&
Cybersecurity Mitigation Effect

+ irvestment in poopic, processes and technology

» Third party vulnerability asscssmerts, testing and
close down of actions

« Stoff training and (T policies regerding usc of 1T
and sysems

Operational disruptior. loss of
intellectual property, loss of data

Intellectua! Property

-=@

Infringement or foss
of IQE’s intellectual
property rights. IQE's
intellectual property
rights are a core
element of its

Mitigation

Effect

competitive offering.

- Patent straregy

- Procctive and rigorous defence of 1QE's nghts

+ Appropriate contractual confidentahty oblgations
ond cortrols around the sharing of sensitive
irfarmation

+ Interral controls to protect IQF's conhdental
infarmation

Key: Likelihood ¥ Low = medium a High
Trend @ Increased risg @ Decreased risk @ No charge to rsk @ New isk

Impact @ Low @ Medurmn @ High

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745716

Degradotion of IQE's competitive
advantoge, loss of morkoet
opportunity, significant legal fecs
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Risk management continued

Breach of legal and regulatory requirements

T-00

IQE operates on a
global scale and
must ensure
compliance with
laws and
regulations
wherever we do
business.

Mitigation

JEffect

Global monitoring of commercial arrangemeoents and  Harm to IQE's people or the
agreemeants cnviranment, reputatienal

+ Global policics and procedures to cnsure
compliance with our legal obligations  particularly
around. health, safety and snvironment. taxation.
oxport controls and antl bribery and corruption laws

+ Global whistieblowing policy

« Monitonng and reporting of legal and regulatory
1ssues to the Audit & Risk Cemmittee

and,'or logal procoedings, fincs
and penaltics.

damage, regulatory invesugation

International trade compliance

[Fo®

Changes in
international export
cantrols laws which
impact IQE’s ability
to serve global
markets.

Mitigation Effect

_

Conunued developrment of praducts and
technologies which car be supplicd to a numbeer of
different geographical markets in comphance with
export control laws

+ Dwversificauen of customaors and products

+ Use of production cquiprnent which is subjoct to
lesser export contro! restnesons

- Monitoring of changes in oxport control laws

Loss of market opportunity
leadinrg to reduction in
revenues and profit

Increasing
geopolitical risks
leading to customs
disputes and trade
restrictions ie. those
between USA and
Ching, and the
ongoing conflict
between China and
Taiwan, may
constrain global
trade and
semiconductor
supply specifically.

Greater geopolitical conflict

_——

Mitigation

o S - —

o9

Ensure shat IQE's products remain woild leading Loss of market share. price
throughk irvestment ir opporturitics wdentfied n crosion, redeced sajos volume
product roadmap and reduced profitabiity
+ Proactive custamcr engagement including direst
engagemaert with ond cusiormars
+ Diwversification through rew markets, now products
and Now CLStomers
Diversitication of supply through K3E's geographoally
spread manufactenng sites
+ Techrology and equipmont roadrmap planning o
mcintoin comphance with trage restrictors
= Multiple sourcing for koy monyfaciunmg inputs
= Pursuing long terrm comrmitmerts from 1QE's
customoers

Customer concentration

I-,.@@'

High level of
customer
concentration with
the majority of IQE's
revenues derived
from a smail
number of key
customers.

Effect

Mitigation

52

Customer dworsimcation to reducce oxtent sf reance  Risk of 1oss of market share,
on key customers product volemo and roduced
+ Product diversificetior with exsarg and rowv sales crd profitability
CLSISMers
+ Morket dieersification through pew gisbal markets
ond new product Spporiurtics
- Strotegy as a ratenals specichst, erabling supply
cerosas tho market
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Insufficient cash flow

ST

Insutficient cash

Mitigation

Effect

flow generation to
underpin any
capital investment
that might be
needed to exploit
business
opportunities.

Failure of new products

« Capital structure strategy The Group completed a

£31,098,546 eguity roise on 18 May 2023

+ Coprtal investment strategy including managerment

of credit facilites. The Group extended 1ts Revolving
Credit Factlity with HSBC Bank until May 2028 on
17 May 2023

- Long term business planning to determine

investment priofitics and phasing of investmaents

= Cash flow forecasting and working capital

managernant

Inabilty 1o exploit cpportunies
and grow resulting in lower
revenue and profitaiility

|-0®

New products tail to

Mitigation

Effect

deliver expected
revenue and
profitability.

« Engaging with customers early In the product

development fifecycle to akgn new product and
tochnology deveioprent with customer
requirements

« Qualfying now products with customoers and
nvestment in capacity to SUpport customer
guaiification and R&D

« Maintamning a clear product recadmap which ensures
that IGQE remaing at the forefront of now technology

Lower than expected revenue and
prefit growth, reduced ability to
invest.

Critical supplier disru

ption

s @O

bisruption in the

Mitigation

Effect

supply of equipment
or materials from
critical suppliers
where there are
timited or
constrained
alternative supply
sources.

- long terrn agreements with cntical supphers

« Qualfying multiple suppliors
+ Capacity and stock planning
« Forwvard buying of utlity contracts

Impaocts on production resulting
infower revenue and profitabrhity
Increased cost of production

IT transformation

Teo

Transformation of {T

Mitigation

Effect

systems or retention
of existing tegacy IT
systems causes
disruption to IQE's
business

Key:

- Developrment and implementotion of 1T lendscape to
support IQE's growth

« Incremental improvements to existing I7 systems

« Soiutior due dilgence and vendor partnering

- Seneor stakerolder ownership

+ Programme reporting and structured programme
governance

« Exteonsive planning or business changc requircrments
and e corrmitrments from SMES

Likelihood * iow = Medium a High

Business chsrupticn ar cscalating
costs resulting in jowet reverue
and;or profitability.

Trend @ increasead risk @ Decredsed nsk @ No change to nsk @ Newy risk

Impact ® Lows @ Medium @ High

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745728
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Risk management continued

Insufficient liquidity lf—; =@
Insufficient liquidity | Mitigation Effect

or Cf]Sh funding The Group prepares regular financial forecosts to Going concern nsk and
available to mest evaluate its funding and liquidity requirerments for the  reputational damage
abligations as they foresecable future. These forecasts arc reviewed and

fall due. approved by the Board Basoed on these forccasts,

appropriate funding and ligquidity solutions are put
in place i order to ensure that appropriate cosh
liguidity and funding hoadroom s maintamed to
meet financial obligations as they fall due
+ The Group's net debt (excluding lease hablitics ard
four volue gons/losses on dorivative instruments;
position Increascd to £15.248,000 at 31 Becember
2022 The increasc in net debt prinocipaly reflects the
Group’'s Investrment activities wherc investment in
copirol cxpenditure rechnology development and
IT systems has exceeded cash generated from
operations
The Group's trading in Q1 2023 has oxpenenced an
acceloration of the rarket softness that has
Impacted 2022 with wecoker demand and o reduction
in customer orders ana forecasts that is oxpected to
result in a dechne in 2823 rovenue vear on veadr n this
context the Group has
Extendedits $35m USD Revohang Crodit Facility with
HSBC Bank urtd May 2626
Corrplocted an eqguity fundraise on 18 Mdy 2023 for
£3C.000,000 and ¢ REX rotail offer for 10948548
These two capital structure actions, which were
cormploted i May 2023, ensurs that the Group 1s able
to forecast sufftoiort hguidity headroorm ana credit
faciity covenart comphiorce in both base case and
sovere but plausible downside scenarias for the
‘orccast penod ended 3 Decembaer 2024
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Global cconomic dowriluin and semiconducter industry cyclical contraction a® @

The slowdown of the
global economy will
continue to atffect all
businesses across
the globe. In
addition, the global
semiconductor
industry isina
period of cyclical
inventory reduction
which is expected to
last thhough at least
the first half of 2023.

Mitigation

Effect

« Costreducticn and cash prescrvation actions and

.

controls

Capital expenditure conirols

Inventory management

Customer and supply chain inteligencs
Shortand long term hnarcial forccasts
Busincss diversification stratogy

Key: Likelihoad v Low = Medium &' High
Trend @ Increased risk @ Decreasad rigk @ No change to risk @ New risk

impact @ Low@ Medium @ High

Reduction in revenue and
profitability with corresponding
cashflow impact.

globally

Russia & Ukraine conflict
The ongeing confiict between Russia and Jkraine is demonstrative of the increasingly contested
geopoliticar environment. \QE nas been, and wil continue to bs, impacted by h'gher energy prices which
are, in part, a result of the conflict. Higher inflation and the higher nominal interest rates used by nationa
governments to combat inflation are expected to have an impact on IQE consistent with the effects feit

Climate risk

IQE is in the process of building the required processes to support the identification and assessment of
climate risks. IQE supports the TCFD framework and will develop disclosures in fine with the TCFD's
recomrendations. Our first TCFD staterrent wili be 1IN our Annuai Report pubiished in 2024 and will be
supported oy our very first sustoinability report

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Risk management continued

Long-term viabili

Viability statement

As required by provision 31 of the
UK Carporate Gavernance Code
2018, the Board has assessed the
prospects of the Company over a
five-year penod, considering the
Grouw's current financiat position,
business strategy and the results
of it performing a robust
assessment of emerging and
principal risks {see pages 51to 55)

The Board beleves that a five-yeor
period is an appropriate tme
frome for assessing the Group's
rongear-tarm vigbiity. This period &
covered ny the Group's strateg:c
pianning horizon ard considers
the nature of the Group's prncipal
risks, The Board believes that a
five-vear period reflects a perod
of time over which information
and foracasts concerning
dernand for the development,
qualification and productior of
compound sermicorductor wafers,
15 considered reasonably relabie.
'n Making this assessment, the
Directors have taken account of
the Group’s current strategy
funding ar-angements and abibty
to raise new finance in most
market conditiors f required and
ncludes the Board's view that tne
Group will be abls to renaw or
refinance its existirg £23 688,000
{535,000000) revoivirg credit
faciiity agreemeant which expires
n Mcry 28026

The Board's key criteria for
considerng the Group's viaoiity 18
the mantenance of a nat cash
pasition or the abiity to operqte
within agreed dept arrangements,
der~onstrating that the Group
would e able to meet itz iabrties
as they fan due.

Whiist o1 of tra rsxs dertif.ed on
padges 51to 35 of this Arnua
report coud have an mMpact on
the Group's performance 0
Tk g (s assessmiart the
Oractors ~dve corsidered the
fol.owing ssues wn.eh couid
trragten the business rrode.
future parfor—drce sovarcy ard
Quickty of the Growp and wnoen
giver the magrituds of the'r
ootaat alvrpact, tha 3oard

56

cons:ders appropriate for the
purposes of this assessmeant.

« the current semiconductor
industry and economic outlook,
which the Dirrectors’ believe
presents a temporary but
significant chailenge to the
business in 2023 where market
softness, weaker dermand and a
reduction in customer orders
and forecasts is expected to
result in a significant year-on-
year decline in revenue, and

« amatenal escalation in
geopolitical tensions. parbicularly
In respect of any potential
confiict betwesan China and
Taiwan, as a risg that could nhave
a significant impact on the
glopal semiconductor ‘ndustry

To ensure 'QE continues to be wel
positioned to expicit opportunties
within an industry that is forecast
to contirue to grow in accordance
with strong historical long-term
industry trends, the Directors nove
completad the following steps
the post balance sheet perodto
strengthen the palance sheet of
the pusness This includes the
refirancing of the Group's
£28688,000 ($35,000,000) multi-
currency revoiving credit facility
and the successfu! £31.088.546
aquity fundraise. These steps wili
orov:.de the Group with ths
nacessaty Fquidity to continue
trad ng during the current
semiconductor market downture
provide sufficiart neadroor to
protect against o iater than
forecast recovery from tne market
downturn and aliow tha Group to
contnue to invest ' ts growth

rd diversfcaton strategy

~arder to da.ver the short and
‘onger term olgr the Group nas
taken a numpesr of actiors to
~ationalse cost .~ order to
mantan rvestertws et s
argned with a c'eatly def ned
techro:ogy and product roadmas
that s supportad Dy d
comrb.nat.or of strateg.c
consoldation of the Group's
ma-ufactur~g sies, caoita.
myastrrent o marufactuning
copacty ond nvestmart in next

Company number 03745726

generation compound
semiconductor rasearch and
development. Cost rationalisation
and efficiency saving actions
include staff redundancies,
operaticnal efficiencies and
reductions in areas of
discretionary sxpenditure whiist
the completed ciosure of the
Group's Singapore facility and the
announced closure of the
Pennsyivana (US) facility, with the
resultant consolidatior of
molecular beam epitaxy (MBE)
capacity into the Group's Noerth
Carolina {US) site, will detver
improved production efficiency
and margins in the medium to
long term Captal nvestment in
rmanufactu-ing capacity at the
Group's sites \n Newport (LK).
sMassachusetts (US) and Hsinchu
{Tawar), cambined with further
capital investmeant planned n GaN
ralgted capacty across the Sroup,
provides capacity tor growth that
is angred with the Group's
strategy and its techrology ard
poroduct roadmap. This ‘nvestrent
in GaN wili underpn the Group's
diversfication irto advariced
displays and powar electron’cs
segmeants af tre compourd
sermiconductor marcet

Straess tests and scenanro analyses
to determing the Group's viagoihty
have been performed as part of
the cssessment The assessment
takes dccount of the post vear
end gctons rmpemented Dy the
Directors to mitigate the financial
mpact of currant market softress.
neluding the rasults of tne
compisted refinarcirg of tre
Group's £28,688 600 (535,000,000}
~Llti-surrarcy revoiving credt
facilty and the successful

£31098 245 equ tv fundraise n
oerform ng thase tasts tra Growp
consicdered a severs put plaus bie
downs de scenaroinv.nch the
Group's business oerformarce s
addversely affacted by a siower
recoveary .0 the proader
sariconductor industty angred
wiim ts goimg comCen rav aw drd
araverse stress test sxtended
over trelorge” five-year o1an
oenod Tre Board ~ave aigred off



on a strategy and five-year plan
to grow and diversify revanues
over the five-year period. This
growth will be generated from a
compination of the Group’s
existing manufacturing capacity
and investment in new copacity,
tunded from a combination of
improved cperational cashfiows
andt additional firance which the
Bodrd beligve cun be raised from
a variety of sources. Over the
pefiod to 2027, a reverse strass
test demonstrates that in the
event that cperational cash flows
or fupding for investment in new
capacity beyond the going
concern review period to

31 December 2024 15 not available,
forecast revenue generated from
existing manufactunng capacity
could fail by 30% pefore a typicar
leverage covenant test of 3x
would be breached

A material escalation in the
geopolitical tensions relating to
China ard Tawan, in particular
any escaiation into mihtary
conflict, could have a material
impact on both the Group and the
widar semicorductor industry.
Given the wide range of potenticl
scenarios, and the unpredictability
inf&rant in this risk. the potential
impact of this nsk has not been
astimated by the Directors.
Notwithstanding the high level of
uncertairty, the Directors are
confidgent that the Group’s globo’
site portfolio and the Group's
growth and diversification
strategy will sufficiently mitbgate
the range of potential .mpacts

The Board confirms that it has o
reqsonable expectation that the
Company will be able to continue
in operatior and meetits llabilities
as they fail due over the five yvear
period to 31 Decamber 2027

This strategic report nas been
aporoved by the Board and
signed on their behalf by:

Phil smith
Chairman
23 May 2023

IQE plc Annugl Report and Accounts 2022
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Board of Directors

Strong governance
and leadership

Phit Smith CBE, FREng,
FIET (65)
Chairman

©®

Phil Smith joined the IQE
Board in 2016 and took over
as Chairman in April 2019
and Executive Chairman
from Septembar 2021to
January 2022,

Proviously e wos appanted
Chairman of Cisco for the uk

12 20 6 a*tcr =ight years as
Traoas Chinet Executnvg 1 s
“sa the Chairman of irpavate
uk and Chairman of the Toah
Parthershin Addinoraily e sits
o the Board of the Natoras
Cantre ko Unworsites and
Businass tNCURY Mr Smith Bias
@ 35 yoar track record 0 the
technology rdustry niedasding
b s ncluding P ips
anch 1B Az Chet
AlsUdnptolhl
of Cisco. he leqgds araund 5 hos
Eoople n the Lk and reiand
iz created Clico's Britsn
AVt Gk Ty
[programimio Cgay
onaan 20 2 to spark nanon
Tty apdtion and g
throusgh 9:‘~phn
*mrrpmnm rshnz m Septomisee
20 1he s aee xd an
-‘f_m:_‘raw DC‘
Birmvngham 2

[altslalnlals "l""
" ~1an 2

D T
sk ond e
Segroe ot

-t Cornmmasder
'Tf'r “"‘“h 2rngh

AAVToty
Sard skt

Faaser
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Americo Lemos {55)
Chief Executive Officer

Americo joined IQE from
the executive teom ot
GlabalFoundries Inc., a
New York headquartered
semiconductor designer
and manufactutser.

Amerncs Lomos |omned IGE m

Januany 2022 tom tho av
T0oant at Q.')brﬂ

e
=

NS, O

1

mrconductor f‘rminocturms

AT GV s Semor vioe Prasidont ot

Busincss Sovolopraent tor Asio

Pasimic and Ciuna Sountn,

Pr; wicnt, Ar Lemas was
rosponsile for arving the

busmess s cthaermy and growth

1IN the s critical marksts Pricr

to thig, o wids Sonor Viee

vias President of Pattorm
Enginecring Gtirol "o sEons
for stroteoe vertures with Cf
someconducton ComMmpanics
from 2009 to 20 5 Betore Intel
he held icadership roles with
Toxas nstrurricens Quanss

LOmm an Teneg

Tim Pullen BA, ACA (45)
Chicf Firancial Ofticer

Tim Pulien joined IQE as the
Chief Financio) Officer in
February 2019. Prior o this, Mr
Pullen was the Chief Financial
official of Arm Limited, a
global semiconductor and
softwore design compaony
owned by Softbank Group.

gefore oming Arm.y
finance OIracto
Talefonica Uk,
1 vanat, at sorior inancial
ROSINONS INCidng
resparsiiity for Tochnalooy
Speratons. B28 ard Digital
segments and France
Cperaticons. in contection ith
his o at G2, M PLiion alss
hciri uLe; o a hion-Exocuine

B

nfrastructure Lmired G2
A EAOrE shanag Gint y eniyre
t vnadafone M Pyllor khas
VeOrkad N a ngrnoar of

nctldng soreo
Fupist of Dol b Puglan s
Chartorea Accouwitant snd
Quatdtied it Crnst & (oung
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Dr Drew Nelson OBE, BSc,
PhD, FREng (&8)
Prasident and

Non Executive Director

Dr Drew Naison has over 30
years' experience in the
semiconductor industry ina
variety of research and
managerial positions.

Fohowang a PRk in
Semicenductor Phyeics, he
winea BT sarch Laborotones
0 98 ledding the gro
rosponsifie for the doye
of advarced opoclkeetrone
Acvicas for opueal fibee
COMTLNICANSNS. He
subsedguenty managod te
techratog, ranster from BT o
A’Z;i\c*m TOr MOss prodocion
He so-founden RN 9593
caubch become IOF i B4%)
and was apsontea Shict
Creocutive ffeor of IQF [is
Aprl @89 Lntil €
Cr Meson has
Non-Exeoutvg D
riles and senved or soveral
Jovermnmigrand INausy Dodics
Heo rece vord an OBE 1~ 200
ETVICeT
mdustry Y03 curroentlv e
membar of the tigh ovel
grofp appomeza Dy th
Sveraes the \rnr,wrvmhmr‘
Xy LEaing Teohrolo
FKETs, througrout Zurcpn




Kay for Committee membership

A Aucht Comnmittec momber R Romuncration Cormmittoe mamiser N Normination Committea mombaer

E [nvironmental, Social & Governanse Committas mamibear Charr of Comrmittes

Carol Chesney FCA (80)
Senior Independent
Director

@ R N

Carol Chesney joined IQE's
Board in May 2018 andwas
appointed as a Senior
Independent Directer in
November 2020.

Snce Qctokbar 20 2 Mrs Chosmay
has served as a Non-Dacutive
Director and Chair of the Audst
Committec of Renishan, ple.

In addition, she s a Nor-
Excoutive Orector and Shan

of the Audit Commuttees of
magmnmation Technotogies
vunting ple and Bitfa plc.

untt 20 5 wrs Chesney sarvad
as the Campany Sacretary of
tialma ple, A TS0 00 health
satety and environmaoental
tochnalagy group, having also
scrved as the group's Ninancial
Controller. Cunng her ume at
Holma, Mrs Chesney’s rame
NCiude CoTparaIe govirmance
iegal cornplignce. gty
incertives, pensions. Intomal
audit managomont, taxation,
property health and satoty
cemplianse, environmental
repornng and anti-bribery and
corruptien comphancs Mrs
Chesney s a Foilow of the
Institute of Charsered
Azcountants m Ergland and
wales and qualhied wath
Arthur Andorser n the Lk

Victoria Hull {60}
Nor Executtve Director

® N A

An expearienced Non-
Exacutive Diractor, Victoria
Hullis currently serving
Non-Executive Directorship
and Remuneration Committee
roles for listed technological
companies including
Alphawave P Group plc and
Netweork International
Holdings pic.

Vietond 12 2150 the Senor
Indepandant Director for Jltra
Clectrones Holdings ple. Prior
to those appantments, Ml
hald an oxecutve directorship
at Invensys naw Schnader
Electne. itlaving warkead m
vanety of glahdal companias

at Cxeoutive Sommmittaa or
Board laval bor appoimtment
to tha Bodrd of IQL brmgs an
atensiva undorstanding o!
fogal commereic and
governance mattors, Victona
nas a srong background in
carparate tinance and began
nar career as d tramog solicitor
at Clhftord Chanes LLP.

Sir Derek Jones KCB (70)
Non Executive Dircctor

eaupuleaoh epiodion

E R N A

Sir Derek Jones KCEB is Chair
of Ksolis UK, the internationat
transport company: he is also
Chair of the Prince’s Trust

in Wales.

1o 15 afso anindepondoent
advisar at Cardift University
whare he s an Honorary Felloy
and Protessor and o Vicoe
Prosident of Carchift Business
Club. Sir Darek was the
Pormanent Secretary of the
woelsh Government until
Februany 20 708 Derak spont
the sarficr part ot s
Jovernment caresr n wiitehal,
veorking at [k Treasury and
the Department for Trade &
Industry, vherc he hoaded

the Far East Traca Desk In
governmant in Wales he alsa
served as Dirocter of nance
and Director of Coonomic
Attairs, dunng which tme he
was mstrumental Ik securing
Maar Iward investmeaont
projects, particularly from
Japan and the USA Qutside
government, Sir Dersk was
Directar o1 Businoss & Stratag
Partnerstips at Cardiff
University, rospansible for
sacunng long-term
collaborations arth e prvate
sectar. Ha was mada
Companion of the Order of
the Berth [CB) iy 2004 and
subsequently Kright
Commandor (kCB N 20 1 tar
3APVICES to coconemic and

ial cancitions Sir Zerck 1
alse the Diroctar responsitis
for cmplayae argagamaent

IQE plc Annual Repert and Accounts 2022 59
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Corporate governance

Chairman’s
Governance
overview

“The Board
is focused
on delivering”

Phil Smith
Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

fam pieased to introduce (QF's Governance
Raport on behalf of the Board. The Board is
collectvely responsible for IQE's 'ong-term
success and hence comm tted fo conducting
business resporsiby. martaining nigh
standards of corporate governance, and to
aspinng to the highest leveis of gudity In
everytning .t does.

‘m confdent tne Board's contirued focus on
these a-gos will support iIQE's paerformance
and its posdion in the markaet, and wili enaoe
tto grow ard embrace 'ts opoortunties as
theay arse.

Tre Bourd is committed to drv ng 1QE's
‘org-term ob'actives and to overseeing 'QE's
opeat.ons to ensure comrpatert ard prudent
wanager-ent Tne aop oach 1o govertances
s sel by tha goard charg.ng the exacut.ve
-eadersn.g Tear w tn the responsibe ty to
arsu-o that tne approach is effectively
mpamertad dacross 'OF's gobd' busirass,

1 rag oser vy oovilege to contrue to lead
tre Board through 2622 as IGE iaurched ts
fua-year o.ar at a very successfu Capta
“arkets Day or 9 Novertper 2022 Tre 3oa7d
and e Execut ve are focused or daliverng
for i of QFs stakeroiders

60
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Board changesin 2022

The Board went through a number
of changes in 2020 and 2021 and
consequently was stable throughout
2022 with no changes to the Board
or any of the Committees, other
than the appointment of Americo
Llemos as Chief Executive Officer
which was reported iniast year's
Annual! Report.

Board evaluation

The Board has a weli-established
process for undertaking an annual
review of the performance nf the
Board, its Committees and the
Chair. This year, the Board
selected BoardClic to complete an
external svaluation. There is no
connection between BoardClic
and any of the Directors. The
Board has foliowed the steps set
out n the graphic below.

More details on the findings from
the evaluation are outlined on
page 63

lencourage all of our shareholders
to engage with us ahead of

the AGM which will be held on
Wednesday 28 Jung 2023, Notice
of, and detaiis of the arrangements
for, the AGM will be provided to
shareholders at the usual time.

I am corfident that the steps we
have taken through 2022 will make
@ strong positive contribution to
IQE as we drive to achieve the
vision and goals we have set.

Phil Smith
Chairman

23 May 2023

“The Board is
committed to driving
IQE’s long-term
objectives and to
overseeing IQE’'s
operations to

ensure competent
and prudent
management.”

Board evaluation

Briefing by external evaluator

Stage) Chair and Company Secretary agree process dand selection
Planming of preferred external evaiuator
Stage 2 Evaluator discusses evaiuation process with Chair

and Company Secretary.

Actions agreed

| ~
Stage 3 Evaluator sets scope of review, reviews prior evaluation
EvaiLation results, holds meetings with individua! £xecctive and Non-
Executive directors and benchmarks against other boards
| ~~
Stage 4 Draft report discussed with Chair and Company Secretary
Reporting
Stage 5 Firalsad report shared with the Board and discussed ot
Review Board meeting.
Stage 6 8oard agrees actions to take forward.

~

Stage 7
mplementation

Actions implemented and monitored as part of three-year
evaluation cycle.

]

IQE plc Annudi Report and Accounts 2022
Company humber 03745726
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Corporate governdnce continued

Governance structure

! Shareholders

l

l

1QE Board J

1

-

]

Audit & Risk
committee

Nominations
Committee

Remunergtion
Committee

ESG Commiittee

Responsibilities:

» Reoviowing .
financial
) reporting and
; disclosures .

+ Reviewing audit
cffoctivenass
Assessing internal
contrals and nisk .
rmarggoment
+ Adwvising or

oxternal auditor

uonnbajag

+ 5e9 page 65

Responsibilities:

Roview
compositior af
the Board
Succession
planning for the
Board ard semor
manggement
Review
developrmonts In
caorporate
govaernanee

+ See page 70

Responsibilities:
Evaluate
performance and
cffectivencss of
Chief Excouuve
Officer and Chcf
Firanciat Officer

- Reviow and
approve
principlos of
IQE's LTIF

+ Maintaining
aiclaguo with
IQE's sharehcldors
or remunctation
policy

+Seepage 71

L Chief Executive Officer |

I Executive Leadership Team l

T

Responsibilities:
+ Develop and
monitor the
cxecupon of IGE's
ESG strategy
Oversee the
commurication
of the Company’s
ESG activities with
all stakcholders

¢ See page 85

-

LOperating Sites

I I Business Units J r Funictions

L

Role of the Board

Tra Board s responsicle for the
overa conduct of IGE s pusiress
and tre Directors nave
rasponsipiitias under poth the
Compary's Art.cias of Association
and UK company aw Tha 3oard
delegates dav-to-day
rranagemert of :QE to the Crief
Executve Officer and the Executive
ceadersnip Taam

The prirtaty tasks of the Board
2022 ~zuded

62

Strategy

- Revewed, cha lenged and
apo-oved the Group s stratagy

fortre fve-vear perod 2022

to 2027

» Reguiar “eviews of xay DusSinass

.

dec:s o~s and trerr moact or
the Group's strategy

Operdtions

« Reguiarly recewved opgrationa,
rc'udirg heaitr, safety and

envircn

~ert, uodatas at

schadu ed ~astings

Company number 03745726

Resedich &
Development

Maormtorad netorrmance ard

Aigmunosoy

orovidead challenge in key areds
of oparatiors

Leadership and people

worked w.th the Cnef Ixecltve
Officer to raview 1GE's -eadershp

taa~

Supported tre 3rowp's

‘eadersnio conference




Board and Committee attendance

Florunohons

Aurll & Risk  Rormgnerotien

Bowired ol LOmimntio Conunitieg
Number of meetings in 2022 g 4 2 -
Attendance
Executive
Mr Americo Loimos ] n
Mr Tumn Pullen a ] »
Non-Executive
Mr Phil Smith 9 ] 2
Mrs Carol Chesnoy 9 4 2
Sir Derek Jones el 4 2
Ms Victoria Hull g 4 2
Dr Andrew Nelson el u L]

© The Nominations Committeo met on an informal basis throughaout the year, often following the concluston of Board mectings
W ot a mambear of the Committae or not requircd ta attend mestings

Finance

+ Reviewed, approved and
monitored progress against the
financial picn for the 2022
financiat year

« Monitorad, chol\emged and
approved capex and other
significant capital expenditure
{capex)

+ Approved the Annual Report,
half-year results and interim
trading updates

+ Considered and approved 1QE's
going concern and viability
staterments

Governdance dnd ethics

» Carnied out an external Board
evaluation, discussed the output
with the Board and agreed
areds for improverment

» Received and reviewsad feadizack
from institutional investors

- Reviewed the requirements of
the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code and areas of
non-conformity

« Regular mestings between the
Non-Executive Directors orly

Independence

The Board considers that, with the
excaption of Andrew Nelson, all of
the Non-Executve Directors arg
independent in character and
judgemsent and free from any
business or other relationship that
could matenally interfere with
exercising that judgement Andrew
Nelson was appointed ds President
and Non-Exacutive Director in 2021
following Mis transition from Chief
zxacutive Officer.

The Board is also satisfied that
there is no compromise to the
independence of, and nothing
which would give rise to conflicts
of interest for, those Directors

who serve as Directors on other
company boards or who haold
other externa: appointmeants

The Board considers potential for
conficts of interest at every Board
mesting and ensures that Directors
present sufficient informationr for
tnose to be reviewed

Appointment and time
commitment

The Charman and each of the
othar Non-Executive Directors
rave letters of appointment.

The Chairman's letter of
appomntment sets out the time
commitment expected of him.
Tre other Non-Exacutive Drectors’
letters of appointment set out

o minimum expected time
comm.tment but do not set out

o fixed t'me commitment

IQE pic Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726

The Non-Executive Directors are
expscted to aficcate appropriate
time to IQE to perform thair

duties and to moke themselves
available for all regular and ad
hoc meetings. The Board believes
aach of the Non-Executive
Directors has sufficient time to
perform their duties,

Board evaluation

Tne Chair ard Company Secrsiary
faciltated ar external review of the
Board during 2022, using BoardClic
vs the external provides. The process
used In the process is explained in
the graphic on page 61 The process
identified the following key areas
for action ard attention.

+ Review of the Board's
composition to assess the right
skilis and experence reguired to
support the five-year plan

« improve Board dynamics
through 'mproved icfarmuation
flow and in-person meetings

+ mprove engagemenrt with staff
and the Board’s urderstancdirg
of orgarsational hedth

= Refine Board KPis to improve the
Board's monitoring of business
performance

63
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Corporate governance continued

UK Corporate Governance
Code compliance

QE complied throughout 2022 with
the prneples and provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code
2018 except In the fol'owing areas.

Provision 17

1QE doeas not cufrently mairtain

o succession olar for the Company
Secretany or al' senior maragemert
rmediateny oe'ow Board lever 1T
Wil wore to deve oo suchk olans
based on ert and cbjective
crtara As part of ts cons:de-ator
of deveoped successon piars,
tha nominations Comonttee w
corsider the 'Inkage of ts diversity
ob’gctives with Co~pany strategy
and tne gender patarce of trose
fosen o” managerent and thalr
d'rect reports.

64

Provision 33

The Remunaration Commitlee nas
responsioility for determining the
policy and setting ramuneration
for the Executive Directors ard the
Charmar. It also has resporsibiity
to recommenrd and monitor the
policy, avel and structure of
remuneration for serior
Tanagement. Howsver actud,
rermuneration for senior
managenment and the Cormpany
Secretary (noting that the Comoary
Secretary s part of tre txecutve
-eadership Tearm a~d senor
ra-agerent) is set and
datermined by tre CEC N
consutaton wit the Group's Chief
Peooe Off cer and cooroprata
extarral advica and penchroarany.

Provision 36

Share opticrs granted to tne
ExecLtive Diractars under iQe's (T.E
are sub.act to total vesting and

Company number 03745726

~oiding per ods of three years

In additionr, Executive Directors
are sukject to a mnimum haolding
requiremenrt equai to 200% of
their base saiary and wii have o
post-errployment shareholding
requirerment for two years The
mimum hoiding will pe egqual
1o 200% of base saary in the first
yedr post-employmant, ~educing
to 100% of base sa:ary ‘N the
secord yaar

QT's approach aigrs with market
oractice across ‘QE's pesr group
on AM and the Remuneration
Corrrrittee cors ders the current
hoiding periods 1o De the nght

ca ance petwean rcentivising
Sxacutive Cirectors ard arg~ing
with tha mtarasts of the Growup's
stakeno des

A copy of the 2018 UK Coroorate
Goverrance Code s avardoe af
froorgaux.



Audit & Risk Committee Report

Audit & Risk Commiittee
Chair’'s introduction

“| am pleased to present the Report of
the Audit Committee, which provides a
summary of the Committee's role and
activities during the 2022 financial year.
The Audit Committee continues to play
a vital role in ensuring the integrity of
our financial statements, the
effectiveness of our risk management
processes and internal controls, and in
evaluating the performance of the
external audit process.”

Carol Chesney
Chair

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726

The Board considers the
maintenance of high standards in
its governance and management
of the affairs of IGE us fundamental
to the discharging of its stewardship
responsibilities Accordingly, both
the Board and the Audit & Risk
Committee continua to keep under
raview IQE's whole systermn of
internal control, which comprises
not only financial controls, but also
busiress & epardtional controls,
complance and sk management.

eaunuieaoh om.lod.lo;T‘

The Committee works with IQE's
internal finance functior ond
axternal auditors discussing,
assessing and challenging
financial reporting and going
CONCernn assessments.

The Commttee also continues
to assess IQE's internat controls
and monitors the need for the
astanishrment of ar interrat
audit function,

The Committee used its structured
mesting schedule to ensure that

it provides robust challenge in the
areas reiating to financial reporting,
nternal controls and risk
management, the external guditors
and otner issues pertinent to IQE.

Carol Chesney
Chair

23 May 2023
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Audit & Risk Committee Report continued

Roie of the Commiittee
The Audit & Risk Committee is

re

sponsible for monitoring the

effectiveness of IQE’s financial
reporting, internai controls and risk
management systems and
processes and the effectiveness
and independence of 1QE's
axtarnal auditors.

Key responsibilities

.

66

reviewing the sffectiveness

of IQE's financial reperting,
internal controi policies and
orocedures for the identification,
assessmment and reporting of risk
reviewing significant financical
reporting issues and judgements
including the potentiai for asset
impairment ard assessment of
v ability and going concerm
monitoring the integrity of IQE's
financial stataments and any
formal announcements reiating
to.QF's financial performance
keeoing the relationship with the
externat auditors under réview,
including ther terms of
engagement, fees and
mdependence

reviewing ard monitorng the
nged to estabiish o dedhoated
internal audt function

advising the Board on whather
the Committee belleves the
Annual Report and Accounts,
taker as a whoie, is fanr,
paianced and undearstandable
and provides the informationr
nacessary for shoreholdars to
assess IQE's performance,
busingss madel and strategy
conducting the tender process
and making recommendatons to
the Board, about the appointment,
reappointment and remaoval of
the external auditar, and
approving the remuneraton

and terms of engagermert of t
~eexteral audtor

« reviewing and monitoring the
axterna! auditor's independence
and objectivity
reviewing the effectivenass of
the external audit process,
taking into consideration
relevant UK professionat and
reguiatery requirements
» developing and implementing
policy on the engagement of
the external auditor (o sUpply
non-audit services, ensuring
there is prior approval of
non-audit services, considering
the impact this may have on
independence, considering the
relevant regulations and ethicai
guidance in this regard, and
reporting to the Board on any
improvermnent or action required
+ reporting te the Board on how it
nas discharged s responsibilities

.

Membership

= Carol Chnesney — Charr
+ Derek Jones

« Victorio Huy

Caral Chesrey s Charr of the
Audit & Risk Committee Carolis

a Chartered accourtant and has
also held a number of semor
finance roies. Tre Board is sausfied
that Carol is the Committee
member with recent and relevant
finarcial experence as required
ny the UK Corporate Governance
Code 2012 The Board is aiso
satisfied that the Committes s a
whoe. Including invited attendees
as necessary, has o Mm% of
experence and competencies to
assess the ‘ssues fgemg the Grouo
within the semiconductor industry

Company number 03745726

Meetings and attendance

The audit & Risk Committee meets
at least quarterly, with addtiondl
meetings as required There were
four mestings in 2022 and ail of
the Committee members
attended each meeting.

The meetings are aiso regularly
attended by the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer, Chiaf Financial
Officer and other senior members
of the finance taam

Qs external auditors attend svery
quarterly meeting dand time s
afiowed at the end of sach meeting
for tne Audit & Risk Committee to
discuss issues with the externai
auditors without management
being presert. The Chair also holds
at lecist one separate meeting with
the audit partrer anead of each
Committee meeting



Activities during 2022

The Committea continuas to overses a range of risk areas that are key to 1QE's long-term success and

compliance with applicabie laws and regulations.

Tne majority of the Committee’s work derives from a structured programme that is designed to fuifil its
responsibilities as set out in its terme of reference. The table below summarises the key activities at each

meeting during 2022:

Ak Ctom

Mewoh B

S-pterTier Ly b

Review financial performance with focus on liguidity
and covenant strength

Roview of financial statements, going concern assumption
and complance with dccounting standards

Review and recommend for approval year end and half year
announcements

Review of significant reporting issues and matenal judgorments
Roview of key business risks )

Consider requirements for internat cudit function

Consider any material breach of law

Rovicw Whistleblowing policy and procedurcs for preventing froud,
bribery and corruption

Revicw of insurance programme, policies and matenal judgemaents
Roviow representation letter for full year and half year

Roview effectivencess of Audit & Risk Committee

Reviow of auditor quality and indcpendence

Consider qudit effectivencss

Review accounting ond corporate governance dovelopments

Commitice only mecting with external auditor

ecunwianob eypiodios

The UK Corporate Governance
Code 2018 requires the Directors
to prepars the Annual Report aond
Accounts and to stats that they
consider them, taken as a
whole, to be fair, balanced and
urderstandable and provide
the information necessqgry for
shareholders to assess IQE's
position and performance,
business model and strategy.
The Board requested that the
Audit & Risk Committee advise it
as to whethar the Annual Report
and Accounts mest those
reguirements.

This work formed part of the
review of the draft fimancial
staterments that was undertaken
oy the Committee in September
2022 and Aprit 2023

Through consideration of reports
from, and mestings with,
management and the external
auditors, the Cormmittee has
~eviewed and determined

the folowng

» judgemental areas and whether
revenue recognition and the
provisioning policies have been
applied consistently and the
fevel of provisions remaing
appropnate

« whether the expected future
cash flows of IQE support the
carrying value of goodwill, and
whether there are any trggerng
avents which suggest any
potentiat impairment of other
intangibfe assets inciuding the
vaiuation of development
intangibles and the capitalisation
of development costs

- wheather the presentation of the
finconoial statements, Inciuding
the presentation of adjusted
performance mMmeasures, 18
appropriate and baianced

Through censideration of reports
oy independent tax specialists
assessing IQE's tax affalrs in the UK,
the US, Taiwan and Singapors as
appropnate, and consideration of
reports by and meetings with
management assessing current
and deferred tax account rg.

IQE plc Annual Repcrt and Accounts 2022
Campany number 03745726

the Committee has reviewed and
determinaed whether the provision
for tax ligtities. and the cur’ent
and deferred tax accounting Is
appropriate.

The Committee nas reviewed the
rasources available to 1QE, taking
account of IQE's trading and cash
flow forecast together with avaiicible
funding headroom to assess the
appropriateness of the going
concem assumption.

Significant matters relating
to the financial statements

The Committes parforms a review
of significant matters that relate
to the financial statements.

The matters that the Committee
considers are significant are set
out betow:

+ Going concern dnd the
approprateness of the disclosure
contained within the significant
accounting poaceas note relating
to the application of the going
corcern basis of accourting in
the firancial statements:
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Audit & Risk Commiittee Report continued

+ Compliance with financial
covenants contaned within the
Group's committed bank facilities
and the associated avatability
of the Group's bank facilities:

+ Goodwill mpairment and the
revenue growth rates and
discount factor applied in the
wireless and Photonics value In
use caicuiations that support
the carrying value of goodwilt:

- Irtangiple development cost
carrying vaiuas and associated
markets end use applications
and customer demand for the
technologies which support
asset carying values;

+ Reverue recognition and any
judgerments associcted with
the satisfactor of performance
obligations for significant
transactions; and

- Prasentatior and disciosure of
achusted performance measures
nciuding approprnate clarnty of
reconctiation between eacn
GAAP and ron GAAP measure

External Auditors

The Audit & Risk Committee hos
developed an audtor independence
policy In accordance with this
poicy, the Commitiee oversees
the reiationship with the externat
auditors and monitors all services
provided by thern and all fees
oayable to them This is to ensure
that potential conflicts of nterest
are consiclered and that an
ndependent. objective and
professional relationship is
maintained

The Committee has g policy or
the provision of non-audit services
by the external auditor in line with
the Financial Reporting Council's
Revised Ethical Standard 2019

The Group has a pehcy prohibiting
the use of the Group's ouditors

for the provision of non-audit
sarvices other than an interim

half year review

The Audit & Risk Commitiee also
monitors the effectiveness of thsa
extarnal audit. Before the end of
the finarcial vear, the Committee
raceves a detailed audit plan
from the auditors that identifies
the guditors’ assessment of the
¥ey risks and thair intended areas
of focus. This is agreaed with the
Committes to ansure that the
scope and coverage of audit work
s appropriate. QE's management
alse provide the Committee with
feedback on the effectiveress of
the audit and the quality of the
audit irm and lead audit partner.

In addition, the Group's auditors
are required to make a formal
report to the Audit & Risk Committes
annually on the safeqguards that
are in place to Maintain their
independence and the internal
safeguards in pitce to ensure
ther objectivity

A resolution to reappoint KPMG will
pe proposed at the forthcoming
Anrual Genera Meating.

2022 FER
KPMG LLP £'000 0
Foes pavable ta the Company's quditcr and its associates for the audit of parert
company ond corsolidated firancal statemoents 547 335
Foos payable to Company’s auditor and 1ts assaciaros for othor scrvices

Tho gudit of the Company's subsidianes 20 27
+ Ayait relgted assurance services - 20
- Tax ard other agdvisory services -
Total KPMG LLP {Group auditors) 567 382

2022 2041

Ernst and Young (auditors of MSE Technolegy Pte & CSDC) £'000 vl
= Subsidiary compary’s audit 38 34
+ Tax services 12 el
Totel Errst arc Young (auditors of MBE Techrology Pte & C3DC) 51 43
Total 618 425
68
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Internal audit and controls

The Audit & Risk Committee
raviewed the effectiveness of 1IQE's
systern of inlernal controls and risk
management activities bi-annually
as part of the half-year and
fuli-year public reporting.

The system of internal controi
comprises those controls
established in order to provide
assurance that IQF's assets are
safeguarded against unauthorised
use or disposal, and to ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting
records and the reliakility of
financial information used within
the pusiness or for publication.

The key procedures that IQE has
established with a view to providing
effective internal control include
the following:

« aclearly defined organisational
structure and limits of authority
+ corpordte policies and
proceduras for financial
reporting and controi, project
appraisal, human resources,
quality control, health and
safety, nformation security and
corporate governance
+ the preparation of annual budgets
and regular forecasts which
require approval from the Board
*+ the monitor:ng of performance
against budget and forecasts
and the reporting of any
variances in a timely manner
to the Board
* reguicr review and self-
assessmeant of IQE’s risks, taking
steps to monitor and mitigate
these wherever possible
where approprats, taking out
nsurance cover
approval by the Audit & Risk
Committee of audit plans and,
on behalf of the Boa-d, receipt
of reports on IQE's accountirg
and financial reporting practices
and its internal controls together
witr reports from the external
auditors as part of their normal
audit work

This process remarned ' operation
for tre vear under review and as
part of that process, managerenrt
report ary sMateral exceptions to
the Audit & Risk Committee.

IQE does not have an independeant
internal audit function, however it
does operate internal audit on

an ad hoc peer review basis, with
a scope of evaluating and testing
IQE's financial control procedures
The Committee considers that this
remains appropriate for IQE's size
and geographical spread, but the
Committee keeps this under
constant review.

In completing its review of the
effectiveness of IQE's systerm of
internal controls the Audit & Risk
Committee has taken account of
any mciterial developments up to
the date of the signing of the most
recent finoncial statements

In addition, recognition is given
to the external audit findings,
which help to inform the Audit &
Risk Committee’s views of areas
of increased risk

Risk Management

The Group Risk Committee
identifies, reviews, assesses and
tracks 1QE's key risks and mitigating
actions, The Group Risk Committese
documeants ts approach througk
a nsk register which 1s shared

and discussed with the Audit &
Risk Committee

Key risk management activities
performed by IQE are summarised
on page 50. The Corrmittes takes
an active role :n the risk
managermeant process that
i~cludes a regular raview of IQE's
risk register and 'deep dives” into
specific areas of nsk.

1QE's principal nsks and
uncertainties are set out 0N pages
51 to 55, While many of the key
risks identfied recur from year to
year, the reiatve importonce
avolves over time and may requie
QE to refocus its assurance
activities In the year ghead the
Committee will contirue to work
with the Board, Executive
Leadership Teom and other senior
management to ensure that there
is appropriate focus or the Most
sigrificant risk areas togethe: with
the assocrated plans for
rnitigating their impact.

The Audit & Risk Committee wil.
a'so be working closaly with ‘QE's
£$G Committee and 1QE staff to
understard, assess and mitgate
climate-related risks

IQE pic Annuai Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726

Anti-bribery and corruption

IQE maintains a zero-tolerance
approach to corruption. it has

an established Anti-bribery and
Corruption policy, which includes
guidance on the giving and
receving of gifts and hospitality.
This policy applies throughout
IQE's business A Gifts and
Hospitality Register is maintained
to ensure transparency.

Whistleblowing

IQE operates a confidentias
reporting mechanism, overseen
by IQE's General Counsel and
Company Secretary, which enables
employees to raise concerns of
malpractice, non-compliance or
unethical conduct. The options
for raising corcerns are widely
communicated to employees.
These channels are ciearly set
out in Qs whistleblowing Policy
IQE's reporting policy and
procedures provide a framework
for protected disclosure.

62
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Nominations Committee Report

Nominations Committee
Chair’s introduction

Phil Smith

Zhaor

“The leadership talent we have at IQE
will be vital to the Company’s long-term
success. For that reason, the
Nominations Committee is critically
important. We need to ensure we are
consistently hiring and retaining the
best talent for the future. The battle for
talent will be one of the key challenges
for companies over the next decade and
beyond, and we are committed to
providing IQE with the best talent we can.”

e Stk ogcama Thair of the
NoTinatons Comimrittes
Janudry 2021 ard nas overcseen 4
~Lrber of cracges 1o IRE'S Boar:
sitce nis appo ttrrent

js

As reported riost years Annuor
Report, Amar oo Lemmos joired \ Qe
om0 Laneany 2022 as Cn af swecutive
Offcar The-e rave peer ~o otirer
crangesto tha Board o 2022,

70

1 2022 tre Co~rittee has worked
#it~ the G ef Executive in the
avauation a~d succession
olanning of tms ExecLbve
.eadership Tear~. The 3o0a7d s
aso i the process of raview ng
tia myxture of sk s expen
arddversty on tnie Board with o
view to ersurng that tre 3oard s
o e to prov de the oporconate
strateg's ard goverranca suoport
for the Executve

~le

Company number 03745728

The Comrnittee has engaged

Lygon Group to assist with the
search for any additional Non-
Executive Diractors.

Phil Smith
Cormmittee Chair

23 May 2023

Role of the Commiittee

The Nominations Committee s
responsible for eading the
process for the selection ard
appointrment of Diractors and for
ensurnng plans are in place for an
orderly succession of 8card and
sanior managemeant positions

Key responsibilities
« review the structure, size and
compositon {irciuding the skills,
knowledge. expernence and
diversity) of the 8oard and make
recomrnendations to the Soard
witr reqard o any changes
identify, evaluate and
recommeanrd canddates for
apoaintment as Orrectors
- succession manning for Directors
and other sen-cr management
» roview develoorents 1T idw,
requlation and best oractice
reatng to corporate
Jgovernance and rmare
recommeandations to the Board
on approprate acton

Membership

« PhySmith ~ Char
+ Carol Cheasney

- Derex wones

« voctarg Hu

Meetings and attendance
The Comrmittes meets reguany

o an od "oc pdsis, often followirg
the conciusion of scnedued Boad
~est.ngs. A’ ~embers altended
zach masting

Activities during 2022

T-a Committesa cort-uas to review
t~a s¢’'s expenience ard divarsity
on tne Boord ardis n the process
of consgler mg furtner apoointmerts
to the Board Te Cormtteg has
ais0 workad closey Aitm tne Chef
executve on deve.opments witn tre
txecutve Leudersn o Tad™



Directors’ Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee
Chair’'s introduction

“Over the last 12 months the Company,
under Americo’s leadership, has made
significant strategic progress in terms
of customer relationships, new strategic
partnerships and afocus on diversification
into new markets with ambitious
longer-term financial goals. ”

Victoria Hull

Norn Exccutive Dvoctor and Chair
of the Remuncration Committee

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Company number 03745726

On behalf of the Board | present
the Remuneration Report for the
Company Cver the last 12 months
the Company, under Americo’s
leadership, has made significant
strategic progress in terms of
customer relationships, new
strategic pdrtnerships and a focus
on diversification into new markets
with ambitious ionger-term
financial goals. This said, our
financial year end was adversaly
impacted by {largely) macro
environmental factors which also
lead to reduced HI guidancs for
2023 revenues.

The annual bonus for 2022 was
determined by a combination of
cash, revenues and non-financial
strategic and persorai
performance targets. The 2022
financial performance was below
threshoid and therefora no
payment accrued in this regard
While a number of the non-
financial goals were met, the
Committee determined it was not
approprate to pay any wonus and
therefore exercised discretion to
reduce the pay cut to zero.
Simiiarly, in these circumstances,
the Commuttee determined there
would be no salary increase for
the CFO and CEOC

The LT Ps awarded to the previous
CEO and the CFO in 2020 lapsed
as the applicable performance
conditions were not met.

victoria Hull
Non Executive Director and Chair
of the Remuncration Committee

23 May 2C23

7
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Remuneration ata glance

Purpose and
link to strategy

impilementation

Key features Planned for 2023 in 2022

Salary Supports the Roviewed annually Effcctive T apnil 2023 No increasc for
attraction and Salaries take account af « CEO £575.000 (no ncreasa) CFO. CEO 1omec/1 at
rctention of the external market and . CFO £383.708 (Mo inereasc) the start of 2022
best global intornat employes cortext In hne with
ralent with Salanes for the wader workforce approach for
capability to have been frozen for 2023, widcr workforco
dcliver 10g's hewever, the Company may
stiategy review croployece salanes later
in the year, taking account of
business performance and
widar market conditions
Allowgnce Provision of Provisicn of competitive Company pension contnbution:  Allowances and

benefits linked to local .
market practce

Maximurr Company

rmarkot
compctitive and
cost cffective

Lenefits
unchanged from
pror year. CEQ

and benefits CEQ 10% of salary

- CFO 0% of salary

bencfits to pensian contributian is 10% The 10% pension contrlb\_jtion s and CFO pension
support of salary consistent with thot available o contnbutions 10%,
attraction and the wider workforce of salary
retention of
talerit
Annual Incentivises Target opportunity 1 50%  For the year ending The 2022 annudal
incentive delivery of IQE's  of sglory and moximum s 31 December 2023 the bonus payout for

financial and
StrategIc trges

tho CEQ ord CFO
was nil

"20% of sulary maximum opportunity rermams
120% of salary for both the CEQ
ang the CFO Tho performance
moasures wilk be set across
firancial (70%) and persenal
and strategic measures (30%,

Performance moasures,
welghtings and stretehing
targets sot anrualy

Provides focus
on koy firanoal
metrcs and
the indnvidual's
conrribution

Paid out in cash ofter ena
of the financial yoar, save
that any pavout above

DIQEs '00% of salary vall be made
performance in the form of share gront
Subject to nralus ond
cluwback provisions
Long-term Prowvides Anruct owards under IQE's . The performance measures for - The LTIP awords

atignmaent with LR
sharcholders by . cr0150% of salary
SrSLing o . CFOIE0Y of salory

the 3 vear performance perog
crnding 31 December 2324 will
be absolute TSR (35%), revenus

grantod to the
provious CEC ard
the CFOQn 2020

incentives

Shareholding

requirement

significant
percentage of
reMmuneration (s
delivered in
shares and
rowards

long term
porformanrce ir
e wth IQE's
strategy

Ersures
chgrrment
beotvreon the
imrorests of
Exocutive
Gircctors and
sharcholdors

Maximur annual awaras
of up to 200% of salary n
cxcepuonal
circumstances, such as
recruitment

3 yoar porformarce penod
Poriormance measuros,
weaightings ana siretching
tergets revieved arroclv
Subject to rralus ard
clorvback pravisiors

Minirur sharcholairg
regaIrerTorts

+ CEQ 2070% of salary

« CFQ 2305 of salan
NG jorars given urte o

rocach thyoshoid ard rot
oxpocted to st furd

{40%) orc adjusted EB(TDA
rmargin {25%,;

25% of the award vall vest at
threshold, increasing on o
straight lire bdsis 10 10C%
‘or stretch.

There s ritvosting below the
threshold level

fapscd asthe
applicable
porfarmance
conditions were
not met

CEO shareholding
Gs ot 3 Decembor
2022 coual e
approxmaotehy
849, of salary

CFC sharcholairg
as at 31 Cecember
2022 cqualto 07,
of salary Tirm
Puller janed 1IQE
Gt the start of 2079

72
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Directors’ remuneration
policy

IGE aims to attract, retain and motivate high calibre executives in a highly competitive global industry,

whilst recognising the need to be cost effective, and to incentivise significant industry acut-performance.

The Remuneration Committee established the current remuneration policy with the gim of balancing these
factors, taking account of investor feedback and prevailing best practice This Policy section of the Directors’
Remuneration Report sets out the Policy for Executive Director remuneration which was adopted by the Company
In 2020, and approved by shareholders at the AGM in June 2021 for the period up to 31 December 2022

The Remuneration Committee has been reviewing the remuneration arrangements of the Exacutive Directors
and members of the ELT, with o view to ensuring that the arrangements are compeltitive in the relevant
marketpiace for sach senior role and incentivise and reward exceptional performance against IQE's strategy
over the longer-tarm. In particular, this has focussed on changes to the jong-term incentives for senior
axecutives, which are key to 1Q8's ability to attract senior taient, for whaom many of our principal competition is
haadquartered in the JS, The Committee intends to discuss the conclusions of this review with the Company's
major investors during 2023 to understand their views on potential changes to the arrangements for Executive
Drrectors. Provided that shareholders are suppertive of changes to the iong-term incantives, they will be askad
to aporove a new Policy at o future general meeting, and no iater than the 2024 AGM. However, In the event
that the Committee decides not to make any changes to the remuneration of Executive Directors itis Intended
that the current Policy will continue to te operated until at least 31 Decermber 2023 with changes to its
implementation, principaily aimed at simplifying the performance measures Lsed n particular, the Committee
Intends to recuce the number of metrics used In the 2023 LTIF grants from five in 2022 {EPS, Relative TSR,
Absolute TSR, Revenue Growth and Strategie) to three n 2023 (Absoluts TSR, Revenue and ddjusted EBITDA
margin} These medsures have been selected as they provide o clear ink to our pians for growth and a
recovery in the share price

Function Operation Opportunity Performance metrics
Base salary Base salances are normally  Inrespect of exsting n'a

TO recogmse revicwed arnually. wath Excoutive Directors. it is

the irdividual's  roforence to market lovels,  arucipated that salary

skills and individual contribution, the  increases will normally be no

oxperionce and  exporience of each higher than those of salaried

to provide o Executive and ingredses cmployecs as a whole In

competitive across the Group. Any oxceptional circumstances

wtal package adjustmerts nermadlly (includmg. but not limited to.

become effective on ? Apnl a matenal increase in job
size of complexty, material
market misalignment) the
Remunoraiion Committec
ras discretior to moke
appropridte adustments to
salary levels to ensure they
remain appropriate.

Pension All Exccutives are Excoutive Directors receive o Ny a

To provide an mambors of the Group persior contribution of 10%

opportunity for - pension scheme and.’cr of satary or ar equivalent

Exceoutives to roceive g cash pensior cash allowonce. This aligns

builag up Income  allowance Salary 1s the with the persion

on retirement orlv elermeont of arrangements for [QF's
rcmurerction thatis cmplovees who can reccive
persionablie motchirg contnbutions from

IGE of up to 10% of salary

IQE pic Annual Report and Accounts 2022 73
Company humber 03745726
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Igpportunity

Performance metrics

I Function |Operation
Benefits Exccutives receive bencfits
To provide which consist primartly of
non cash health cover. life

benefits which
are compctitive
in the market in

assurance. fong torm

which the although may include
Exacutive is ather bongfits that the
employed Remuneration Cormmittce

decms appropnate in the

ccurmstarces

Relocation and expatricuon
relatod benefits may also

e provided where
dppropriate

Annual Bonus
To Inconiivise
and reward

strong The schome s based on o
performance combination of finanaral
agoinst performance and perscnal

financial and

targets, thus
delivenng value
to sharchotders
and being
consistent with
the dehvery of
the strategic
plar

rargets and personal
objectives have been
achieved

Bonus payments are
detivered in cash

Clowback [of any borus
paid; mav be applicd
cunng cmployment o ‘or

Two years post

terriraoor ir the event of

gross misconduct,
naterial iranciat

misstatermert, error m
calculation of outcomes or
N ary other circurmstance
that the Remunoeraaon
Committee considers

approprate

74

disabiiity insurance and
reimburserment for fucl

Performadncc medsures,
targets and woightings arc
st ar the start of the veor.

objectives At the end of
persondl annual the year, the Remuncration
Committeo determines
the extert to which the
firancial porformance

Bencfits may vary according
1o role and indwvigual
circumstances Eligibility to
bencfits and the cost of
beonofits are reviowed
poricdicalty.

The cost of bencfits s
dependert on market rates
and I1s not capped.

For Exccutive Directors, the
mMaximum annual bonus
apportunity will be 120% of
base solary

The bonus pays 0% at
Threshold, 50% at Targot

and 100%. gt stretch, with
straight lire vesting botween
these tovels,

Company number 037457258

n/a

Performance is assessed on an annual
basis against inanciai and personal’
strategic objectives set at the start of
egch vear,

Financtal measures will be weightod
appropriately ecch yveor aecording 1o
business prnortics, and will represent
no less thar 70% of the onnual plan

Personalistrategic objectives will have
o weighting of noe mare than 30% of the
rMoxintum opporturity and will be set
anruclly to capture cxpected
Irdividaal contributions to IQE's
strategic plan The payour for the
peorsonal elerment will be reduced by
50% In the cvent the threshaoids for two
out of the three relovant financial
measures are not mot

The Rerunoration Committes has
discroticon 1o adjust formulaic bonus
OuiCoMmes to ensure fairress for
stareholacts and paricipants, [C ensulc
pay algns with underlying Company
performance ond to avoid unintendod
outcomes These adjustments cer be
cither upwards (within plan lircits) or
dowrwards [Incluging dowven to zoro)
The Rer-unergtion Corrmittee may
corsider rmeasures outsicie of the tonws
framowork to ensure there 1s no roeward
‘or failure Anv adjustnrent would be
carcfully considered and *ully oxplained
i the Arnual Repert ar Reprureration
Further details of the reasures
~weightirgs anc targets applicable are
provided or page 78in the Arrual
Report or Rerrureraticn



Performance metrics J

Function Operation Opportunity
LTIP Under the long term The LTIP provides for normal - Vesting of LTIP awards i1s siibject to
To provide incentive plan (L1#) awards of up to 150% of salary.  achioving performance concitions and

annual awards of shares
or nominal cost options
maoy ke mada to
participants.

ahgnment with
sharcholders
and competitive
rewvsards by
delvernng a
significart
proportion of
remuncfation in

Award levels and
performance condttions
are reviewed before each
award cycle to ensure they

cempany remain appropricte.
shares and
- The Committee has the

ncentivise . .
discretion to authorise o

sustained .

long term payment. in shares, equal
to the value of dividends

performance

which would have acerued
on vested shares during
the vesting period

Malus {of any unvestod
LTIP} and clawback (of any
vested LTIP) may be
applicd during
omployment of for two
years post termination 0
the event of gross
rmisconduct, matencal
finoncigl misstatement,
error in caleulation of
outcomes or in any other
circumstance that the
Rerruncratior Committee
cansiders approprate.

that supports
the creation of
shareholder
valuo

In exceptional crcumstancoes,

including but not imited to
racruitment, normal awards
may bo madac up to 200% of
salary to sccure the right
mndividual

Up to 25% of the LTIP will be
paid tor achieving Threshold
performance, mcredsing on
a strarght Hinc basis to full
vesting for achieving stretch
performancac.

continued cmployment LTIP awards to
Executive Directors have the same
vesting period as thosc issucd to IQE's

other cmployces, normatiy being
measurcd over threc consccutive
financial years.

The Remuneration Committee has
limited discretion to cmend the
porformance conditions provided that
the amended performance condinion
is not matenally easier to satisfy than
the onginal condition

The Remuneration Committeo has
discretion to adjust outcomes to
ensure thoy farly refloct underlyng
pertormance. The Remuneration
Committee also considers
cnvironmental, social governance and
Realth and safety cniteria, to ensure
thore is no roward for foilure

esunusennt eypiodios

Notes to the policy table

Performance measure selection and approach to target setting

The measures used under the annual bonus plan are seected annudlly to reflect IQE's main objectives for the
vear ard reflect poth financial performance and personal contributions to deliverng the strategic plan. The
parformance conditions for new LTIP awards are selected to reflect IQE's 1ong-term objectives whicr support

the creation of sharehoider value,

in terms of the performance conditions for the 2023 LTIP awards, the Rerruneration Committee considers
Revenue and adjusted £EBITDA margin to be key measures of (QF's sustainable growth which are aligned with
ourionger-term strategy, while Total Sharehoider Return {'TSR’} Is @ measure which strongly aligns
management and shareholder interests. Targets applying to the bonus and LTIP awards ars reviewed annually,
basad on a number of intarnal and external reference ponts. Performance targets are intended to be
stretching and achievable, and reflect IQE's strategic prorties and its market opportunities.

Remuneration policy for other employees

iQE provides al. employees witn a consistent package of penesfits that includes private medicalirsurancs, I'fe
assurance, iong-term disablity insurance and reirmburserment for fuel.

Al ermplovees are elgible to participate ir o discretiondry annudl sonus and receive awards under the LTIP. The
same pr.nciples apply to the assassment of parformance for determining the individual compenent of
bonuses for ail employees. For other employeses, grants under the LT'P are subject to a gre-grant minimurm
personal performance conditior and vest in annual tranches over three years subject to the employes

remcining empioyed by the Group

IQE pic Annuat Report and Accounts 2022
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Shareholding guidelines

The Remuneration Committee wishes to encourage Executive Directors to build up a significant shareholding
in the Company. Shareholding guidelines are therefore in place to require Executive Directors to dcquire
shareholding {excluding snares held conditionaily pursuant ta LTIP performance) equivalent to 200% of base
salary. 50% of any shares vesting {post-tax) under the new LTIP ars required to be held until the relevant
sharenolding level is achieved. Exacutive Directors are expected to build up the required sharehoiding withim
five years of appointment to the Board, although the Remuneration Committes will exercise appropriate
discretion where executive Qirectors have been impeded from building up the requisite sharehoiding due to
pusiness performance Details of the Executive Directors’ current shareholdings are provided in the Annual
Report on Remuneration at page 84

Non-Executive Director remunetration

Hon bz uive Dins tor Dietl=3 of appolninient er Rorimnerealion gs 1 anmainy

Phil Stk - 19 December 2016 125,000
Sir Derck Jones 28 November 2017 £50.000
Carol Chesngy 13 May 2019 {50,000
victoria Hull T August 2021 £50000
Andrcw Nelson 30 Octobar 2027 £75,000

“Othar foes ~ecowved by Phil Srathon the y sar relating to an executive role are disclosed an page 80

Subjoct 1o re-clechan Dy sharaholders, Non-[xacutve Directors aro appointed by the full 8oard and retire annually in accordancc with
the Company's Articlkes of Association. The remuncration of Non-Decutve Diractors s a mattar roserved tor the full Board subjent to on
ndividual imit of €50 000 poar annum or such other hgurn as sharehalders may approve plus reasonabls expenses in accordance with
the Sompany’s Artclas of Associnion,

Tha Nan- Dxecutn e Dirartors dre not cligible @ participate 0 IGE s pertormane reléted borus plan . ong-torm neentive glaas or
ponsion anangomaonts. Copios of the Non-Oxacutive DIrgctors appoirtneent 1tiars nrg avallableo tor nspactan atthe Sompany's
rogistorad otfree dunng normal BUsINGss hours

2023 Executive Director remuneration

. Tim Pullen
Americo Lemos

Coalt Lot sd passa e market va s oF e oot ons aiae 4o of goant W3 C DIt rar T oo

Tha Miryr scenar o copnses fixed rermuneration, ' e basa salary, persior, ard penafits, ahich are tre
2lzments of the remuneratior package not 'rked to ne-formance Trne fgutes for base sa ary and penson
0% of saoary) are as of | uanuary 2023 wri e those for toxanle bensfits ore based on Ine latest singie fGgure
taoie tor 2022 Tne Or-Target sce~ano refiects fixed -gr-una at on as apove p'us datargst bonus payout of
50% of maxiur gnd thresnod vastng for the LT 2 oF 28% of ~ax ~ur The Stretch scerar o ref'ects fived
rer~ureation olus fu ' oavout of the arrua bonus {120« of saary) olus fu vesting of tra norma 12 of 1207, of
sa.ary Tre Stretcm ~ 30% refacts tre Stretch scargro o us ar assured 5303 share price apoisc.auon ove the
_T.7 cerformarce perod
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Approach to recruitment remuneration

External appointments
when hiring or appointing a new Execulive Director from outside the Company, the Remunerdtion Comrmittee
may make use of all the existing components of remunaration, as follows:

Component Approach

Base salary The base salanes of now appomntees will be determined by reference to retevant market data,
cxperience and skills of the individual. internal relativities and current basic salary. Whore new
appointees have initial basic salaries set below market, any shortfall may be maneged with
phascd increases over multiple years SubJOCt to the individual's development in the roio

Pension Now appointecs will receive pension contributions or an eguivaient cash Supplcmcnt r Imc
W |th oxisting policy

Benefits N«_,\;\/ appumnlees will be cligible to recowe beneﬂts which may inciude those outlmcd inthe
policy table but may also include odditional boncfits consistent with market practice m their
home location (if based outside of the 9}

Annual Bonus The structure described in the pohcv toble will apply ta new appointecs with tho relevaont
maximurn being pro rated to reflect the proportion of employment aver the year Targoets for
the pcrsoncﬂ clerment will be tailored to eoch oxccutlvo

LTIP Now appomtcos will be granted awords under the LTIP on the same terms as othar oxecutives,
as doscribed in the policy table

In determining the appropriate remuneraton for a new Executive Director gppointee, the Remuneration
Committee will take into consideration all relevant factors (including nature and quantumn of each component
of remuneration and the jurisdiction from which the candidate was recruited) to ensure that arrangaments are
in the best interests of IQE and its sharehoiders. The Remuneration Committee may moke an award in respect
of @ new appointment to ‘buy out’ reruneration arrangements forteited on leaving a previous emooyer.

This may be granted in addition to the ongoing remunaration eterments outlined ir the table above I doing sg,
the Remureration Comrmittee will consider relevant factors, including the value and form of the award, time to
vesting, performance conditions attached to awards, and the likelihood of these conditions being met,

Any ‘buy-out awards will typically be made under the existing annual bonus and LTIP scherreas, aithough in
excepticnal circumstances the Remuneration Committee may make awards using o different structure

ANy ‘buy - out’ awards woud have a fair value no higher than the awards forfeited. The Remuneration
Committee wil take advice from mdependent remuneration consultants on the structure and award package
for a new Executive Director.

Internal appointments

Internal promotions to the Board will be appoirted on terms N line with the Poilcy. Any existing entitlermant
made prior to their appointment to the Board, which are not consistent with the Poliey may pe aliowed to
continue on their ongiral terms.

Non-Executive Directors
In recruiting o new Non-Executive Diractor, the Remuneration Cornmittee will utitise the polcy as set out
or pages 73-78.

Service contracts and treatment for leavers and change of control

Faec ["Il b st s ot 1

Mr Armcnco Lemos 10 Joruary 2022
Mr Tirn Pullen 4 tobruary 2019
IQE plc Annuat Repart and Accounts 2022 77
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Executive Oirector service contracts, including arrangements for edrly termination, are carefully cons:dered by
the Remuneration Committee Each of the Executive Directors has d rolling service contract requinng six
rmonths’ notice of termination on either side. Such contracts contain no specific provision for compensation
for loss of office, other than an obligatian to pay for any notice perod waived by the Company, where pay
refers to salary, benefits and pension eonty. Executive Directors’ service contracts are availabie to view at the
Company's registered office

When considering exit payments, the Remuneration Commitiee reviews ail potential incentive outcomes to
ansure they are fair to both shareholders and participants. The table below summarises how the awards unde?
the annual bonus and LT'P are typically treated in different circumstances, with the final treatment remaining
sublect to the Remuneration Committee's discretion:

RSO TOF [0y e ulerlion ol ves g potymient

Annual bonus

Resignation ‘No annual bonus payoble.

‘Good leavar’ Cast bonuses will typrealty be paid to the extent that performance abjoctives have been

Change of control met Any resulting bonus will typically be pro rated for time worked. The Remuneration
Committee retains discration to vary this treatment in individual circumstances

Rosignation  Outstanding owards lapse

LTIP

‘Good leaver ara The Commirtee dotermines whether and to wha! extent outstanding awards vest based

change of controt on the extent to which paerformance conditions have beer achioved and the proportion of

tho vesting penod worked Thoe Remuneration Cornmittee retoins diseretion (o vary this
treatment imindividual circumstances

The doterminaton of vesting wilt be modce Os so0n as reasonably practicnl following the
end of the performance penod or such carlier dgte as the Remunoration Committec may
agree {wathin 12 months in the ovent of death)

In the cvent of a change of contral, awards may alternatively be oxchanged for new
cguivalent ovrards in the gogquirer where oppropnote.

FCCVIE IR O pAYEEERaNt So08ING To De tMmplowed by e Groug by reason of acath disatilty o nealtn, rateoment n
wth tha Compan, or any Sther reason that the Sommattoo detaermine s inits abaoluts disoreton

External appointments

With the approval of the Board in each case, and supjsct to the overrid.ng requiremants of the Group, Executive
Uirectors may accept external appoirtnerts as Non- Executive Directors of other companies and retain ary fees
recawved. Nong of the Executive Directars received any rerrunerdbon rom externct cirectorships during the vear

Consideration of conditions elsewhere in the Company

Wnen making decisions on changes to Executive Director remuneraton, the Remuneration Committes
considers charges to pay and conditions acrass the Group To this erd, the Remmuneration Committee "ecuives
a summary of the proposed jevet of average ncrease for errployees pr o7 to the annual sa ary review For
Exacutive Directors, the Remuneration Committes does —ot forraly corsuit w'th emplovees on the executive
remuneraton porcy and imolementation.

Consideration of shareholder views

The Remunaration Committes mairtains ¢ reguiar dia-ogue with the Compary’s major sharaholders.
Followirg the 2019 AGM, 'QF maragemert consulted with snarehoiders regarding the concerns raised regard rg
the adoption of tre new all-erployee LTIP plan. .QF Fas made the necessary changes to the admin stratio~ of
tra LT-P to a./gr edver provisiars for G employveas ta thase set oul for tve Sxecutve Diractors. 'Good Leavars
wiltrecave g pro--ated raduction to vesting pasaed or perforrance ard the sostior of the vesting per.od
Sxprrad up to the trre of tne terminat:or of enrployr-ert The Cormittes mantans a view of the commitmeants
to ssue shares under the LT.P as a percentage of the ssued share cap ta':r any roling 10-year perod,
asknowedgng tog Irvestmant Associat or or neines recommend ng o 0% b ard the mecort from the
~sttut.onar Shasenalder Serv ce o cornection with the adootion of the T2 ~ 2019 Tha TIP currently atows for
a maximem dictive effect of 19%. Thae di utve effect of comotents 'ssued urder tne TP has decl~ed yaar
on year a~d cur-art and ant ¢ pated evals of diution over tre next few years are axpected to b2 delow 10%
Neveriraigss ds the Comrpany grovs, tre Remunergton Corrittes wesnas to mantan faxiniity for divt.on to
=xceed I0% subect to an overr ding object ve of acneving an average d ution of 10% or Delows dver the long-term
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Annual Report
oh Remuneration

Role of the Committee

The Remuneration Committee has responsibility for determining the policy for Executive Director remuneration
and setting remuneration for the Campany Cha'r and Executive Directors.

Key responsibilities

« recommending the remuneration palicy for Executive Directors, whilst considenng the remuneration for the
Executive Leadership Team and remuneration policies for employees below the Board

+ approving the principles of IQE's long-tarm incentives and the parameters, including performance
conditions, for the annual awards under long-term incentives

= mointaining appropriate digiogue with shareholders on remuneration matters

« prapanng the annual remuneration report to sharehelders to show how the remuneration policy
has been implemented.

Membership
» Victona RHult = Chair + Derek Jones
« Phil Smith + Carol Chesnay

Meetings and attendance

The Remuneration Committee met twice in 2022. All mempers attended each meeting The Chief Executive
Otficer and Chief Financial Officer atterded mestings to prasent proposed performance ratings for the
Executive Drrectors and Executive Management Board and remunergtion policy's prncioles for the workforce.
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer did not attend those parts of the Committee meetings
relating to the Committee’s decisions on their own performance and remunearation.

Remuneration Committee role, membership and advice

The primary role of the Remunseration Committee 15 to determine and agree with the Board fair and recsorable
remuneration arrangements for the Chairman and Exacutive Directors.

The main activities of the Remuneration Committee dunng the year were as follows:

< evoluated the performance of the Chief Exacutive Officer and Cnief Financial Officer:

- determined annual bonuses payable to Executive Directors and tre exgcutive teadership Team in 2022,

- determinad basis of salary increases for QE's employees, including the Executive Directors and the Executive
Leadership Tedam;

» evaiuated the proposed awards under the Company’s LTIF;

reviewed and approved performance conditions for LTIE awards.

« reviewad and dpproved the Executive Directors’ salaries for 2023;

+ determined performance targets for the Executive Directeors 2022 annual bonus and LTIP awards in line with
IQE's strategic plan,

« evgluated revisions to IQE's LTIP and cash bonus schemes for employees;

» corsidered proposed workforca palicies on performance rating and proposed policy for workforce pay increases,

« drafted the Directors’ Remuneration Report; and

+ corsidered penchmarkirg and advice from independent rarmmuraratior consuitarts, Marcer

Tre Remuneration Committee's Terms of Reference are set out on the Company’'s website at www.igep.com.
Dunng the year, the Rermuneraton Committee comprised all of the Non-Executive Directors.

Mercer provides independent advice to the Remureration Cormmittes. Mercer 1s g signatoy to the Code of
Corduct for Remunaration Consultarts 'n the UK, operated by the Remureration Consultants Groun, and whicn
recuires afl advice to be objectve and independent {seq www. remunerationconsultantsgroup.com for

more irformatior)

IQE plc Annual Repert and Accounts 2022 79
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
P

Fees of £65,126 inclusive of VAT were paid to Msrcer in respect of services it provided to the Company in 2022,
The Committee considars that Mercer is independent, does not have dny connections with IGE that may impair
their independence, and does not provide any services to the Group other than its advice on remunaration

Board changes

Arnerico Lemos was appointed as CEG on 10 January 2022 His salary 1s £575,000, and he receives benefts and
pension in ine with the remuneration policy. n 2022 he was eliginle for an annual bonus of up 1o 120% of salary,
subject to the normal performance targets. and he received an exceptional award under the LTIP of 200% of
salary in 2022, again subject to the norma! performarce targets it is apticipated that from 2023, Armerco's LTIP
award will be 150% of salary. As part of the terms of his recruitment, America Lemos was granted o buyout
award in respect of remuneration foregone at his previous ermplover This comprised £800,000 in cash payable
over the first 12 months of his appointment and an award of 583,709 shares, wortn £200,000 at the tme of grant
The buyout award was not subject to any performance conditions, though malus and clawbdck provisions apply,

Single total tigure of remuneration for Executive Directors {audited information)

The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received by ecach Executive Director for the
year ended 31 December 2022 and the prior yeor.

Dr Ahdrew

ml.ir:i:c? Mr Tim Pulien M Phil Smith’ Neigon® Total
2032 Nl 2022 FoM] 2022 I 2022 Wi 2022 7t
£000 § 0 £'000 ¥ 0 £'000 ¥ un £:000 & o0 £°000 ¥ 00
Salary 564 370 368 6 97 - 490 939 915
Benpfitg? 27 n 1 - - 7 37 8
Pension? 56 37 a- - - 50 90 =
Buy out cosh- 400 - 25 - - 400 25
Buy out sharcs - 200 - - - - 200
Total fixed 1,247 418 Aa & g7 - 537 1,666 1045
annucl bonus - - - - -
Long term incentive’ - - - -~ - -
_Total variabie - 7 - - - - -
Total Executive Remuneration 1,247 418 441 [ g7 - 507 1,666 12645
Nor executive fees - - - 125 125 75 3 200 38
Total Director Remuneration 1,247 418 441 131 222 78 52¢ 1,866 [ALzE]

Amenoe lemas annudn saldry 15 £45 9000 Tne 2022 rernuncraten higare sotlests s star date of LJanad
2. Banchits LANIe  ong ESrm aiabdity rourmne s oo
trepuel ¢

st ot health cover povate medical rsurancs TN E A

s ars antigled o part:
nt zash allo

st 0o dchned controubion sehame niaton to smch the Compan, contmbutss

RS T

* s i on 25 Fobnunry 2022
[¢E

- sp ~ash o aeard n SCCT N0 3 vonr
I, ons

- Egu rd of 83,709 shares sotn a o vaiue at grant ot £20
Tre sued on O January 2022 Tho skars aword 5 3

ND 'ong-
RAr Pyl et Thnk On an cxecutiv
MelGon 1o Am
> oeformod oy P

2 a3 NoT~ Do Tutve ]

IMCorTes vestad

-

the ternd | Soptember 202 to 3 January 2022 to
N the tabie chove reficcr the adatonal tre
24 Seplamber % aanunry 2
wny e dpontrazat 2 MeAmenso

3

Coomnments e ot ranns ntaang ©. T OO0 i Lere payanic

incentive outcomes for year ending 31 December 2022

Annual bonus

Tre arruagl borus for 2622 was deter~ red by a co~bnatior of cas, reverle a~d groft targets ard nor-
franga persorarst-ateg c targats Tre Comrittee set stratcn g pe-forrancs targets for 2022 wrick wers
mead to the strategy a~d franca cesfarnarce of the Grouo T rarca-oer ce for 2022 was ceow,
trreshod resuting o ~o paymert '~ raspect of tne franc a eemertior the of Exacutive Cff.ce or tre Craf
Francio. Cfficer whist o rurrper of tne nor-financ.a goas Had peer met, the Commttee fait thot twou:d ~ot
og appropr.ate 1o pay ooruses to Sxecuthve Dractors — the turrent orcumrstances and exercsed its discreton
to ~2ciuce the Hborus payout to r!

il

e Commuittae s satsfad the oolicy ras cpgrated as ntsnded ard nas carcitdsd trat trere ae 7o
croumstarces Grsir\g et tuoolid need to exercise discret o to adest any of tha vanagie pay ouicoTas
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Long-term incentive plan

1,097,247 LTIP options awarded to Tim Pullen in 2020 have not satisfied the applicable performance criteria
and have lapsed

Percentage change in CEO remuneration

The table below shows the percentage change in CES remuneration from the prior year compared to the
averdge percentage change in remunsration for other ermployees. The CLO's annual remuneration includes
base salary, taxable benefits and annual bonus. The percentage change in annual remuneration for other
employees is calculatad using the increase in the earnings of all employees who were empioyed in the UK
throughout 2021 and 2022. The Committes considers the UK employee population to be the most appropriate
comparison for CEQ vs other employes pay, as all Executive Directors are currently empioyed in the UK, our UK
employee population includes smployess at all levels of the organisation, and pay inflation in cur other
geographies is affected by different local market factors

AT F RTINS Al TN P oy ees

022" A7 nereyse T8y

£000 A0
Salary 564 NA NSA 5.7
Benefits 79 N/ A NS A 24
Annual bonus 0 MiA NJA N/ A
Total 643

AMSTICH LemMas was appointed as he Group's Chot Dxecutve Othicer on 0 January 2022

Relative importance of spend on pay

The graph below shows sharenolder distributions (ie dividends and share buybacks), total ermpioyee pay
expenditure and investment in capital expenditure, research & development and ntangibles for the financial
yveors ended 31 December 2021 ard 31 Decemiber 2022

Review of past performance

The foliowing graph charts the Total Share Return (TSR} of the Company and the FISE AM Index {of which IQE is
amember} over the period from 1 danuary 2017 to 31 Decerber 2022, The tadie below detalls the Chief
Executive’s single figue remuneration ovar the same perod.

Histarical TSR performance
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Historical CEQ remuneration

022 202 A0 A ] NS

CEO single figura of rermuncration (£:000) 6§43 507 ile} 589 3583
STiaward as a % of moximum opportunity 0% 0% 9% 0% 200
LTI award ¢s o % of maximurn cppartunit 0% 0% % 0% B2,

Scheme interests awarded in 2022 (audited information)

FaonUlive D dor AATITA by i Ot of awardg E st o bace wedlur ied ot periarmiance prenod
25 February 1 January 2022 to

AMmernico (emos Nif cost opltion 2022 3,066,891 19,344 31 Decermrber 2024
25 Fabruary TJanuary 2022 to

Tirn Pullen Nil cost option 2022 478,306 539.778 31 December 2024

The face value of shares was based on the average share price over the three days prior to the date of grant
of the award of 37 5Ip at 25 February 2022, less the [p nomindl value exercise price

\‘vw‘ll)!\l\l'(;]
M?rfr:lmﬂnu? e SN . (% ot rrnanedf Threshokd (‘f’s“a MESFIHH! . Stcted) QGO Costireg )
EPS (IQE pic's fully diluted adjusted
Earnings por Share wchieved for the
year cndea 31 Docembor 2024) 0% 06 !
TSR egual ta index + 30%

Relative TSR vs FTSE All Share Index 15% TSR cqgual toindex ovel the period
Absalute TSR ) ‘5% 8% pa 5% pa
Revenue growth 0% Wupa 20U po

Targets are gecmed commetcially

sensitive and wilf be disclosed at
Stratedic scorccard 20%  wvosung

40% of the award wiil vest on EPS performance, 15% on reiatve TSR oeformance vs the FTSE Ad-Snara index, 15%
on absote TSR performance, 10% on revenue growtn, ard 20% on stratagce object vas Tne oe-formarce
rargets for the financial and TSR measures are sat our below.

Exit payments made in the year
None

Payments to past Directors

Paymants ade to past Directors totalled £48125 {2021 £82,500) ref'ecting empiovee services recaved from Dr
Howard WHiicms following nis retirement frorm the Board 'n 2019,

Single total figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Directors (audited information)

The tanie below sats out a sngle f.gure for the totai remuneration receved Dy eqch Nor-Exscutve Dirsctor for

the yvear ended 31 December 2022 and the prnior vegr.

Feloa foany P b

2023 " 2022 "l 2022 A
£'600 J Ay £°000 R £:000 g

Phil Sroath’ 128 123 8 a7 131 222

Carcl Chasroy 50

Sir Derck Jones 50

Ardrowe holsor 75

victoria Huli 50

sir Cavic Grart v}

[epreTLor 202 T

e retiasr tha add

]

P mor b
AGGrogats o

Y]
3
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Implementation of remuneration policy for 2023

Base saiary
The salarios of the [xecutive Direclors, which have not been incredsed for 2023, are as follows

Annucd] boise sutlony ot ANyl s salery ot

Fraaro oo [yreee B0t 1 Jeanaciry 2002 | Juanwaeaey 2007 3 Fere e geges NP3 s
Androw Nelson ) N/ A ) N/A NiA
Americo Lemos’ o .575,000 575.0C0 NiA
Tim Pullen 368,706 368,706 Nl

AMenco lemaos was appomnted as the Graup's CLC on 0 January 2022,

Pension

Executive Directors are entitled to a pension contribution of 10% of salary or equivalent cash allowance. Tho
typicdl employee pension cantribution © up to 10% of salary

Annual bonus

For 2023, the Executive Directors will have the opportunity to receive a cash bonus to be paid after the
announcement of full year results for 2023, based on a mix of financial measures {70% weighting) for the 2023
financial year and agreed personal and strategic objectives {30% waighting)’ adjusted EBITDA (weighted 35% of
the maximum opportunity), revenue (35%), and personal and stratagic objectives (30%).

Each megsure has o threshoid, on-targset and streteh target approved by the Board of Directors in at the time
of budget approval. Threshold and on-target performmance wiil result in a bonus payment of 0% and 50% of the
maximum opportunity, respectively.

There will be no bonus for the financial element of the bonus if threshold adjusted EBITDA is not satisfied. in the
event of zero payout for financiar perfermance, the maximum payout for personal and strategic measures will
be restrictad to 50% of the maximum bonus amount far that elernent

LTIP (audited information)

For 2023, the CEQ and CFO will receive awards of 150% of salary, 1N ine with the poliicy. The Committee has
sought to simplfy the measures used by focusing solely on financial and share price growth measuras. The
performance metrics and targets are as follows.

POTIONIE 12 [13em 1Srer soscqnirsg (7 b rraied) sl (35% es i) Streteb Cans. visiin g )
J b Lt !

Absolute TSR (share price plus the value of

reinvested dividends, if Gny) 7 30% 45p 50p
Revenue 40% £206m £228 3m
£34.5m 43 I

{16 7% margin vs {18 8% maorgin vs

Agjustod FBITDA margin 25%  rovenue threshold) revenue stretch)

No award will vest below Threshold performance, and vesting will increase on a straight-line basis between
Thresrold and streteh.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ interests

A table setting out the beneficial interests of the Directors and their families in the share capital of the
Company as at 31 Decemper 2022 is sat out below

Since 1 January 2022 there have been the foliowing changes in Directors’ interests in shares.

Shures onineed gg o

SHears o et oN ol

ShearhinlIricy e g e nt

Coorgnnt stae sheisirieg

YoV 1ot 2N IR ARR ‘o SOy e Ve salary fon
Amortico Lemos 970,457 200%, 8B4Y,
Tim Pulien 200% Q%
Phil Srmith 40,000 40000 N A MNEA
Carol Chosnoy 40,000 40,000 N/ & NA
D Androw Nelson 36.90.417 40,567,234 NSA N/ A
Sir Derek Jones N A N/A
victaria Huil 231,192 N/ A N{A

Executive Directors are expected to build up o snareholding of 200% of salary within five years of appointment

to the Board

As first announced on 6 August 2819, Andrew Nelson has entered into a sale and repurchase agreement with
Equities First Holdings pursuant to which 1212170 Ordinary Shares dre held subject o the Agreemenrt. Andrew
Nelson, including persons closely associated with nirn, maintains a peneficial interest in 40,567 234 Ordinary
Snares. representing approximately 9 G4% of the Company's issued share capital

As part of the Group's share placing which was annourced on 17 May 2023, the following Directors purchdsed
ordinary shares of 1p ecch in tha Company as set out below.

Flearmess Prsition

Faes OBy
ST Ui

Freasuifearst
shuan: holoineg”

AMonco temos Chief Excoutive Officer 7.50G,000 2470457
Dy Androw W Nelson President and Nor Exccutive Pircstor 5.000,000 45567234
PHIl Srnth Chairman 100,006 140,600
Carol Cheosnoy Nor Exccocutive Director 50,000 30000
victorma Hall Non Excecutive Crector 5C0.600 28192
As ot edomszion of the SOUCCLUOG mow Orcinany, Sharas osund 25 a result of the placing, cypacted to takes pace on or
around 22 Moy 2023
Directors outstanding share awards
7 Urr-.-th»-iurr\i [RATTIEN (S REIN]
Stk 1T st i
Coarien e ol carrhiiger! =Ll barant frapesercd dditnirnyg Lampepsiact
S ferientnege TRy e nt Rl ¢ oear ey e
Americo Larmos 30685591
T:m Puller 3.328789 L087.247
)T
Or Ardrew Nelsor 2849470 956,245
T.m Pu'len 1850453 555.8°

Summary of shareholder voting at the 2022 AGM

Resuits of the vote on the Remuneration Report at the IQE's AGM on 28 June 2022 are as below:

Tl e

L s

Lol nalen tas)

For rcluairg discratiorary |

Agairst

Toral votes cast foxci;clr\g witreld voros,
Vaores withhela

Toial vates cest Lincluding witkheld votes!

o
[Eh]
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ESG Committee Report

ESG Committee
Chair’'s introduction

“We are commiitted to all aspects of our
ESG strategy and I am delighted we
have an engaged and enthusiastic
Committee that are not only helping to
shape IQE’s approach to ESG, but want
to establish IQE as a leader in this area.
IQE has the opportunity not only to be

compliant but through its technology,
which is vital for the path to Net Zero, to
establish a true leadership position. We
are at the beginning of our journey but

Phil Smith
Committee Choir

are keen to show progress and make
ESG a part of everything we do.”

The Environmental, Socias and
Governance {ESG) Committee was
established on 24 Jonuary 2622 to
erhance the Board's oversight of
ESG mattars. The ESG Comm tiee
1s "espansible for developing and
moritoring the execution of IQE's
sustaingbility strategy and tne
communication of iQF's activities
with our stakeholders

The ESG Committes :s also
responsible for moritonng the
Board's engagemeant with 1QE's
peopie, with Derek Jones acting as
the Bodard's workforce representative.

The ESG Committee s working with
the Executive Leadersrip Teamn
and col'eagues within IQE to
develop IQE's sustainabiity strategy
In 2023, the Committes wil: be

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726

focused in driving momentum
and providing gurdance in the
development of the sustainabiiity
strategy and its alignment with
IQE's breader strategic objectives.

wWa lcok forward lo communicating
progress with our stakeholders
through 2023, and working towards
our first sustainability report.

Phil Smith
Committce Chair

eaunwianob espiodias

23 May 2023

Role of the Commiittee

The ESG Committee is responsible
for developing and menitoring the
execution of IQE's ESG strategy
and the communication of that
strategy to IQE's stakehoiders.

Key responsibilities

» ensure that IQE has a fit-for-
purpose £SG strategy and
drive momentum behind the
development and
implemeantation of that strategy

+ beresponsible for
communicating 1QE's position
on Environmental, Social and
Governance issues

+ ensure that the strategy mests
IQE's short and long-tarm
business objectives

+ review the effectiveness of the

strategy and the governance

for its successful delivery

approve £5G reporting and

specifically any reporting and data

included in IQE's Annual Report

» report to the Board about the
Committee’s work and progress
against the strategy

-

Membership

= PRIl Smith — Chair

+ Drew Nelson

« Derex Jonas {responsbie
for workforce engagerrent)

Meetings and attendance

The ESG Commitiee meeats at least
twice a vedar.
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Annual Report and the
Financial Statements for IQE plc (the “Company”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities and
Future Development

The Company is the ultimate
holcing company of a group
of subsidiary undertakings
(the “Group”) engaged i the
research, design. development,
manufacture and sale of
compound semiconductor
materials. An ovarview of our
principal actmvitias and an
indication of Lkely future
daveloprments in the Group is
given im the strategic Report

Strategic Report

The Strategic Report is set out or
pages 2-57 of the Annua: Report

Directors & Directors’
interests

Biographies of al of tne
Company's Directors at the date
of this Annual Report, inciuding
Non-Executive Directors, appeaar
on pages 58-59 of the Annual
Raport. Amenco Leros was
appoirted as the Group's rew
Chief Executve Officer and a
director or 10 saruary 2022

Tha banefic.al interests of the
Directors \n the Company’s share
capita;'s shown or page 84 of the
Ramuneration Report Tha beneficial
interests of Amerco Lemos, CE
and Tim Pullen, CFO have changed
during the vedr as they participate
Cthe Compary's TP

No Director was peraf o aily
mterested ~ the shares of ary
subsdiary compory at ary trme
during the yaar

0 e yedr to 31 Decamber 2022
no O ractor nad a rater al irterast
nany contract of signf.carce with
tre Corrpany or anv of ts

SLOSIA Ories.
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Insurance and Indemnities

The Group maintains insurance to
cover its Directors and officers
against their costs in defending
themselves in legal procesedings
taker against them in that
capacity and in respect of
danrages resuiting from the
unsuccessful defence of any
proceedings n addition, to the
extent permitted by UK law, the
Group indemnifies its Directors
and officers for iabilties arising
from such procesdings Neither
the insurarce nor the .ndsmnity
prov des cover for situations
where the Dirgctor has actad
fraudulentiy or dishonasty

Risk Management and
Principal Risks

A description of risk management
and the principal risks facing the
ousiness are set out on pages
20-55 of the Arnua’ Report.

Relationship with Suppliers

and Customers

Dur relationskips with our

customers are explained

throughout the Annucl Report,

particularly on page 36. Our

relatonships with our supDiers
re specifically covered on

page 38 of the Annual Reoort

The Group seeks 1o agree
favourabie credit terms with s
suppers wheare poss e Payment
s mode ir accordarncg with tre
agreed ter—s.

Auditor and Disclosure of
information to the Auditor
Tra Compary's auditor
througnout tre perod of ths
Arcucn Renort was KPVG LR whro
w~ers appointed .~ Decemper 2017

Company number 03745725

As at the date of the dpproval of
this Annual Report, as far as each
Director 1s aware, there is no
relevant audit information of
which the Company's auditor s
unawarg Each Director has taken
ali such steps ds he or she ought
to have taken as a Director in
order to make himself/herself
aware of ary relevant audit
information and to establish that
the Company’s auditor 1s aware
of that information

Share Capital

The Company’s share capital is
made up of one class of ordinary
sharss of Ip each which each
carry one vete at general
meetings of tre Company.

ixcept as set out in the Articies

of Association or in applicable
legis'ation, there are no restrict.ons
or the transfer of shares in the
Compary and there are no
restr:ctions or the voting nghts irm
the Corrpany’s shargs. The full
rghts and obsgations attaching to
the Company’s ordinary shares, as
well as the powers of the Drectors,
are set out n the Company's
Articies of Association, a copy of
which 's availanie on the
Comopany's website Thesa can
also be obtaired from Compa™as
House or by wnting to the Gereral
Counse and Company Secretary

Tre Company s not aware of any
agraements erterad nto betweer
any sharehoders » the Compary
wri-ch -astrict the transfer of shares
ar tha exercise of any voling r grits
attacmed to tne sharas

Tre Co™pary has "ot acquired

ary of its owr shares duning 2022
{20211



Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 March 2023, the foillowing are beneficial intarests of 3% or more (where the holding is direct) or of 5% or
more (where the holding is indirect) which nhave been notified to the Directors of the Company

lssuced O agweal

Sharsholder Shares

Invesco 142,305,592 17.87
Lombard Cdier Investment Managers 86348402 1072
T Rowe Price Globat Investments 79176,738 983
Cangccord Genuity Wealth Management 71,366,260 886
Hargreaves Lansdown 56,341.085 700
Interactive Investor 43,185,510 538
Dr andraw W Ncison 40,567,234 504

Sourco: Eyun nli Invaeslor Anaivtics

Going Concern

The Group has reported an
operating loss of £72,867,000 for
the year (2021 £18,978,000 loss),
which includes a non-cash
impairment charge of £62,718,000
related to the write-down of
goodwill which tias arisen from g
change in forecasts reiated to the
current semiconductor industry
downturn The Groun increased its
net debt position {excluding iease
habitties and farr value gains/
lvsses on dervative ‘nstruments}
to £15,248,000 (2021 £5,804,000)
and at 31 December 2022 the
Group had undrawn committed
funding of £12,400,C00 ($15,000,00C)
avallable under the terms of its
cradit facilities.

Tha directors have prepared the
financial statements on a going
concern basis foilowing a number
of steps that have been taken
post year end to strengthen the
balance sheet of the business,
including the renewat of the Group's
£28,688,000 (535,000,000) multi-
cUrrency revolving credit facility
provided by HSBC Bank plc and
the successfu £31,098,546 equity
fundraise onnounced in Q2FY23
The Group's ‘base case’ and
‘severe but piGusible downside
casr flow forecasts and projactions,
N conjunct:on with the level of
asgessed covenant headroom

on the Group's committed bank
facities illustrate that the Group
ard the Company tave adequate
Cdsh resources to continue operating
ard to meet its l'abilities as they
foll due for o pered up to and
inG.ud ng 31 December 2024, such
that t~e directors consider it
dpproprate to adopt the gaing
congcern basis of accounting 'n

preparing the firancidl statements.
Details of the going concemn
assumption and basis of accounting
is set out in note 2.2 to the financiai
staterments.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend
the payment of a dividend (2021 £nit).

Research and Development

The Group continues to devote
significant resources to the
research and development and
the updating and expansion of its
range of products in order to remain
at the forefront of its worid markets.
Further information on the
expenditure on research and
development s contained in Note
6 of the Financial Statements.

The amount of research and
developmenrt expenditurs
capitalised, and the amount
amortised, In the year, are given in
Note & of the Financial Statements.

Employment Policies

A review of the Group's employment
potcies 1s provided on pages
40-42 of the Annual Report.

Political Donations

The Group has g policy of not
making pelitical donations and no
poltical donations were made
during tre year (2021 nv),

Climate Change, Greenhouse
Gas and Energy Emissions

The Group recognises Climate
Change is a kev challenge for the
world and is workirg to minmise
ite environmenrtas impact through
a rigorous envronmenta.
ranagement system in order to
minirise greentouse gas (GAG)

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726

and enargy emissions. We recognise
that as g technology leader, IGE is
in aunique position to be able to
improve energy efficiency through
our products

Our approach to environmental
protection is underpinned Dy our
Environmentat Policy and
Envirenmental Management
System, which ensures oll our sites
operate In compliance with 1SO
14001 requirements We target
minimisation of GHG and energy
emissions, as well as focusing on
wasste, water and recvelng nitiatives.

Detalls of our GHG and energy
emissions figures, as welt as the
measuras we are undertaking

to promote enargy efficiency.
including incorperating energy
saving featuras into facility design,
can be found on pages 48-48.

In January 2022 the Group formed
an Environment, Social and
Governance Committee In
recognitior of the importance of
ESG to 'QF's stakeholders and the
wider environment. The Commitiee
1s chaired oy me and is responsible
for ensunng that the Group has a
fit-for-purpose ESG strategy and for
supportng managermant with
buiding momentur behind that
strategy we 'ook forward to
pringing further updates o £5G
matters through 2023

Phil Smith
Chairman, IQE ple

23 May 2023
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors’
responsibilities in respect
of the Ahnual Report and
the Financial Statements

Statement of Directors’
responsibilities in respect
of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the Annual Report and
the Group and parent Compony
financial statements in accordance
witt appiicable law and reguiations

Company ‘ow requires the
Lirectors to prepare Grouwp

and parert Comparny fnancal
statements for eacn financial
yedr. Under thea AlM Rules of the
London Stock Exchange they ars
required to prepare the Group's
financial staterrents 0 aceordance
with internutional accounting
standards ir conformity with the
requiremments of the Companies
Act 2008 and applicapie law

and they have electad to prepars
tre parent Company firancia
statoments on the same basis

snder company iaw the Directors
Tust not approve tne finrancial
statemeants uniess tnay are satisfied
thatthey give d true and farr view
of the state of affars of the Group
ard parent Tompany and of
then oroft or joss for that period
In preparrg eacn of the Group
and parert Companry finarcal
staternents the Diractors are
required to

» select suitabe accounting

ol'c'es and ther apow therr
consistentiy,

. moxe udgements ard
estimates that are reasonanie

re evart and reiiabie

0

+ state srgther thay nove Doen
srenared ~ accordarca with
mrerralora accountng
standards ir coform by antk the
requ rarcents of tne Cormpanries
Act 2005,

88

» assess the Group and parent
Company's abiity to continue
as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to
going concern, and

» use the going concern basis of
accounting unless they intend
sither to liquidatea the Group or
the parent Companry or to
cease operations, or have ro
realistic alternative but to do so

The Directors are responsiole for
keep-ng adagquate accounting
records that are sufficient to show
and sxptain the parert Compary's
transactions and disclose with
reqasonable accuracy at any tirme
the fnancial posttion of the parant
Company and erable therm to
znsure that its firancia’
staterments compiy with the
Companies Act 2006 They are
responsibig for such inter~al
controi as they determimns s
ngcessary to enable the
oreparation of firarcial
statements that are fres from
Taterial misstatemeant, whetrer
due to fraud or error, and have
general responsibility for takng
sucr steps as arg reascnaby
open to themr to safeguard the
assets of the Group ard fo
orevent and detect frawd and
otne” rragu'anties

The Drectors hove decded o
prapare volurtaniy O Jrectors
Ramrurerator 3eport =
accordarce witn Schedule 3 to
Tre a-ge g-d Medivm-sized
Carpanias and Srouss fACC.DL"{S
and Reports) Regu at.ons

2608 rade under tre Compares
Act 2006, as ' those ~equiremerts
appiedtotre comoary. The
d.ractors nave aiso decided to
orepare voiLTtan y O Corporate

Company number 03745725

Govarnance Statement as if the
compdny weare required to compty
with the Listing Rules and the
Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules of the
Financia Conduct Authority in
relation to those mattars

under apphcable iow and
regulations, the directors are

also responsible for greparing a
Strategic Report and a Directors’
Report that complies with that iaw
and those regulations

Tre Drectors are responsble for
the maintenarce and irtegnty

of the corporate and financia!
information inciuded on trhe
Company's website Legisiation in
tne oK govern'ng the preparation
ana dissemmation of fnarc.al
staterments rmay differ from
legisiaton ir other jurisdictions,

We caonsider the Annual Report
and financial statemeants, taken

as awrole, s foaur, oalanced and
wnderstandabie and provides

the :nformation ~ecessary for
sharehoclars to assess the

Sroup s positon and perfornarce,
business model and strategy

Approved bv tne Board and
signed on its beha'f by

Phil Smith
Charran IGE plc

3 afay 2023
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Independent
auditor’s report

to the members of IQE plc

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial staterments of IQE pic
{“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 Cverview

which comprise the consolidated income staterment,
consalidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated balance sheet, cansolidated statement of
changes in equity, consoiidated cashflow statement,
parent company balance sheet, parent company

Materiality: £1.4m (2021: £1.2m)
group financial
statementsas a
whole

0.8% {2021: 0.8%} of revenue

statement of changes in equity, parent. company cash Coverage §8% (2021:88%) of group revenue
flow statement and the related notes, including the

Sjuewalp)s ID1ouDLLy ,

accounting policies in note 2.

in our opinion: Key audit matters vs 2021
— the financial statements give 3 true and fair view of Recurring risks Goodwili impairment A
the state of the Group's and of the parent
Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of —
the Group's loss for the year tnen ended; Revenue recognition A
— the Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted Carrying amecunt of -
internationa: accounting standards; development intangibles
— the parent Company financial statements have been P ” ol ; <>
properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted arent Company ecuvera, \.A'ty of parent
only company’s investments

internationa! accounting standards as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Cormpanies
Act 2006; and

‘nsubsidiaries and group
debtor balances

- the financial statements have heen preparedin Event driven risk  Going concern A
accordance with the requirements of the Compan'es

Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) {“I5As (UK])”)
and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described
nerow. We have fuififled our ethical responsibivities
under, and are ‘ndependent of the Groun ‘n accordance
with, UK ethica: requirerrents including the FRC Ethical
Standard as appied to listed other entities of public
interest. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
opinicn.

IQE plc Apnual Report and Accounts 2022 89
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2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our prefessional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
and include the mpst significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those
which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the
engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we go not provide a Separate opinion on these matters. Jn arriving at our audit opinion above, the other key audit
matters, in decreasing order of audit significance, were as follows:

Goodwill impairment

(£8.0 miflion; 2021: £64.3 miilion)

Impairment charge: £62.7 million;

2021: £0m)

Refer to note 2.5 and 2.8 (accounting
paolicy), note 3.1 {accounting estimate)
and note 12 (financial disclosures).

The risk

Farecast based assessment

Goodwi!l is significant and is at increased

risk of irrecoverability due to weak demand

in end user markets expected during the
remainder of 2023,

The estimated recoveranle amount is
subjective due to the inherent uncertainty
involved in forecasting and discounting
future cash flows.

The effect of these matters is that, as part

of our risk assessment, we determined that
the vatue in use of goodwilt in respect of the

Wireless and Photonics CGU's has a high

degree of uncertainty with a potentiai range

of reasonable outcomes greater than our

materiality for the financial statements as 3

whale, and possibly many times that

amount. The financial staterents {note 13)

disclose the sensitivity estimated by the

Group,

Cur response

Gur procedures included:

Benchmarking assumptions: Comparing the
Group’s assumptions, in particular those relating
to forecast revenue growth and inflation to
externally derived data, such as independent
rrarket reports ang customer communications
where available.

Valuation expertise: We derived a reasonable
range of appropriate discount rates
independently, with the support of our
valuation specialists and compared these with
those calculated by the Group.

Sensitivity analysis: We performed reasonably
foreseeable scenario sensitivity analysis on the
discount rate and growth assumptions

Comparing valuations: Comparing the sum of
the discounted cash flows to the Group’s market
capitalisation to assess the reasonahbleness of
those cashflows; and

Assessing transparency: Assessing wnether the
Group's disclosures about the sensitivity of the

outcorme of impairment assessment to changes
in key assumptions reflected the risks inherent

in the recoverable amount of goodwili

We performed the tests above rather than seeking
to rely on any of the Group’s controls because the
nature of the balance is such tnat we wou'd expect
to obtain aud't evidence primar’ly through the
detailed procedures described.

a0
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Gaoing concern

See Note 2.2 (accounting policy and
financial disclasures)

The risk

Disclasure Quality

The financial statements explain how the
Board has formed a judgement that it is
appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of preparation for the Group and
Parent company.

That judgement is based on an evaluation of
the inherent risks to the Group's and
Company’s business model, and how those
risks might affect the Group’s and
Company's financial resources or ability to
continue operations for a period of at least
18 months from the date of approval of the
financial statements.

The risks most likely ta adversely affect the
Groups’ and Company's available financial
resources and metrics relevant to debt
covenants over this period is a continuous
deepening of the market softness
experienced in the latter part of 2022 and
first half of 2023,

The risk to our audit was whether or not
those risks were such that they amounted to
a material uncertainty which may have cast
doubt on the ability to continue as a going
concern, Had they been such, then that fact
would have teen required to have been
disclosed.

Our response

We considered whether these risks could
plausibly affect the liquidity or covenant
compliance in the going concern period by
assessing the director’s sensitivities over the
fevel of available financial rescurces and
covenant thresholds indicated by the Group's
financial forecasts taking account of severe,
but plausible adverse effects that could arise
from these isks individually and coliectively.

Our procedures also included:

— Funding assessment: We obtained the
agreement for the revolving credit facility
that was refinanced subsequent to the year
end. We recalculated covenant compliance
and headroom based on management’s
forecasts and the severe but plausible
downside scenario.

— Funding assessment: We verified cash
coltected via the recent equity fund raise to
the Group’s bank account.

— Assessing transparency: We considered
whether the going concern disclosure in
note 2.2 to the financial statements gives a
full and accurate description of the
directors’ assessment of going concern,
including the identified risks and
dependencies and refated sensitivities.

— Sensitivity analysis:

*  We considered sensitivities over the leve)
of available financial resources indicated by
the Groug's financial forecasts taking
account of plausible {but not unrealistic)
adverse effects that could arise from these
risks individually and coilectively;

Sluelwalnys |plauDuly

*  We challenged the assumptions in the base
case as well as requesting the directors to
apply more severe but plausible downside
assumptions for some sensitivities.

— Historical comparisons: We considered
managertent’s accuracy when preparing
forecast data by oerforming a retrospective
review of previous forecasts to actuals.

— Benchmarking assumptions:

*  We benchmarked the xey assumptions
behind the cashflow forecasts to customer
forecasts where available, We also
benchrmarked product trends with anaiyst
expectations;

*  We compared the assumations around
market return to other externally available
SOUrCes.

— Evaluating Directors’ intent: We evaluated
the achievanility of the actions the
Directors consider they wouid take to
improve the position should tne risks
rmaterialise, which include addit'ona!
restructuring within the Group and
reduction of Research and Devewopment
expenditure, taking into account the extent
to which the Directors can control the
timing and cutcome.
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3. Keyaudit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement {continued)

The risk

Our response

Revenue recognition

(£167.5 million; 2021: £154.0
million)

Refer to note 2.22 (accounting
poticy}! and page 4.3 (financial
disclosures).

Revenue recognised in the incorract
period

There are pressures on achieving internal
and external expectations of results, in
particular Revenue and Adjusted EBITDA
targets, which increases the risk of
fraudulent revenue recognition, in
particular the recognition of sales around
the year-end date.

QOur procedures inciuded:

— Test of detail: We agreed a sample of sales
transactions around the year-end based on their
financial significance, to purchase order and
external delivery confirmation, 1o assess whether
the performance obligation has been met and
that revenue has not been aver- or understated
at the year end date.

— Test of detail: We agreed a sample of past year-
end credit notes, based upon their financial
significance, to sales order and externai delivery
confirmation, to assess that revenue has not
been overstated to date.

We performed the tests above rather than seeking
to rely on any of the Group's controls because the
nature of the balance is such that we would expect
to obtain audit evidence primarily througn the
detailed procedures described.

Carrying amount of development
intangibles

(£23.0 million; 2021: €27.9 million]
Refer to page 2.5¢, laccounting

policy} and note 13 (financial
disclosures).

Subjective assessment:

There s inherent subjectivity in assessing
whether development costs meet the
technological and commercial feasibility
criteria to be capitalised as development
intangibles not yet available for use.

The associated subjectivity gives rise to the
incentive for manipulation, given the
interna! and externa’l pressures to achieve
financial measures such as Adjusted
EBITDA.

The impact of these matters is that we
determine there is an increased risk in
applying judgement to whethe~ or not the
criteria for capitalisation has been met for
development costs n relation to
development intangibles that are not yet
available for use,

Qur procedures included:

— Challenging assumptions: We challenged the
Group’s assessment of the future vianility of
development intangibles which are nat yet
avaitable for use, considering their commercial
viability with reference to external evidence
inciuding customer correspondence for specific
projects and/or external market analysis reports
nrespect of the associated technoiogies.

— Camparing valuations: Comparing the sum of
the discounted cash flows to the Group's market
capitalisation to assess the reasanableness of
those cashflows,

— Personnel interviews: We neld discussions witn
the Group's Chief Technology Officer to
corroborate our understanding of the future
uses, opportunities and ‘ntention for the
develppment of intangibles.

— Assessing application: We have critically
assessed the capitalisation criteria for costs
incdr-ed on develapment projects, exarining
re.evant evidence such as employment
agreements, external invoices and time spent of
interna’ employees and considering the
aliocation of overhead costs

— Assessing transparency: We have assessed
whether the Group’s disclosures reflect the
nnerent risks ‘n the valuat’on and existence of
development intangibles not yet availabie for
Jse.

We pe-formed the tests above rather than seeking
to re'y on any of the Group’s conirois because the
nature of the balance is such that we would expect
to obta'n audit evidence prmari'y tnrough the
deta’'ed orocedures descrided.

g2
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3. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement {continued)

The risk

Our response

Parent company: Recoverability of
parent company’s investments in
subsidiaries and group debtor
balances

{Investments: £76.2 million; 2021:
£76.1million, Receivables: £135.5
million; 2021: £132.7million)

Refer to notes 2.10and 2.29
{Accounting policy] and notes 16
and 18 (financial disciosures).

Forecast based assessment

The carrying amount of the parent
company’s investments in subsidiaries and
receivabies from its subsidiaries represents
96% {2021: 95%) of the company’s total
assets.

The recoverable amount of these assets s
subjective due to the inherent uncertainty
involved in forecasting and discounting
future cashflows however, this is not
considered to be at a high risk of significant
misstatement of subject to high levels of
judgement. Due to their size in the context
of the parent company financial
statements, this is considered to be the
area which has the grealesl irmpact on our

Our procedures included:

— Test of detail: We compared the carrying
amount of 100% of the investments and
receivables with the associated subsidiaries’
balance sheet to identity whether their net
assets exceeded the carrying amount, as this s
the most appropriate approximation of their

minimum recoverable amount. We also assessed
whether those subsidiaries have histerically been

orofitable;

— Assessing subsidiary audit: We assessed the
work performed by the component auditor of
the relevant subsidiary and considered the

results of that work on the subsidiary’s profit and

net assets;

— Comparing valuations: For the investments and
receivables where the carrying amount exceeded
the net asset vawue, we compared their carrying
amount with the expected value of the business

overall parent company audit.

based on the subsidiarips’ value in use,

We performed the tests above rather than seeking
ta rely on any of the Group’s controls because the
nature of the balance is such that we would expect
to obtain audit evidence primarily through the
detailed procedures described.
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4. OQur application of materiality and an overview of the scope of

our audit

Materiality for the group financial statements as a whole was set at
£1,400k (2021: £1,200k) determined with reference to a benchmark
of revenue which represents 1.8% of group revenue (2021: 0.8%).

We consider total revenue to be the mopst appropriate henchmark
because of losses before tax from continuing operation in recent
periods. The level of materiality is reflective of the size of the group.

Materiality for the parent company financial statements as a whole
was set at £1,390k {2021: £1,199k) determined with respect to a
benchmark of total assets of the parent company, limited to be less
than materiality for the group as a whole. It represents 0.7% (2021:
(.6%} of the stated benchmark,

in line with our audit methodelogy, our procedures on individual
account balances and disclosures were performed to a fower
threshold, performance materiality, so as to reduce to an acceptable
ievel the risk that individually immateriat misstatements in ingividual
account batances add up to a materiai amount across the financial
statements as a who'e.

Performance materiality was set at 65% {2021: 75%) of materiality for
the financial statements as a whole, which equates to £0.9m {2021;
£0.9mj for the group and £901k (2021: £899k) for the parent
company. We have applied this percentage in our determination of
performance materiality based on the level of identified
misstatements and control deficiencies during the prior period.

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected or
uncorrected misstatements identified exceeding £65k (2021: £60K), in
addition to other identified misstatements which warranted reporting
on quatitative grounds.

Of the group’s 18 reporting components {2021: 18), we subjected 6
{2021: 6) 1o full scope audits for group purposes and 1{2021: 1) to
specified risk-focused audit procedures. The 'atter was not
ndividually financiatiy significant enough to require a fuli scope audit
for group purposes, but did present specific ‘ndividual risks which
need to pe addressed.

The components within the scooe of our work accounted for the
percentages ilustrated opposite. The remaining 10% {2021: 12%) of
total group revenue and 14% {2021: 13%) of total group assets s
represented by 11 (2021: 11) reporting components, none of which
represented more than 2% {2021: 5%) of total group revenue or wta!
graup assets. For these residual components, we performed analiysis
at an aggregated group |eve! to re-examine our assessment that there
were no significant risks of material misstatement within these.

The work on 1 of the 6 components [2021: 1 of tne & companents)
was performed by component auditors and the -est, including tne
audit of the parent company, was serformed by the Group tear.

The Groupn team issued audit instructions to tompenent auditors on
the scope of their work, including m vmum procedures to perform in
their audit of -evenue.

Thne Group tea™ approved the component mater'a ities whicn ranged
from £490« to £1,050« {2021: £400k to £850«), having regard to the
~ix, size and “isk profie of the Group ac-oss t1e components,

The Groun tearm visited 2 {2021: %) corponent locations to assess
audit r'sk and strategy

Video and teiepnone conference meetngs were neld w'th the
component auditor. At tnese meet; 1gs, the findings reported to the
Group tear were discussed 'n more detail and any fu-ther work
required oy the Group tea™ was then performed oy the componant
auditor.

The scope of audit work perfo-red was predo~inately sunstantive as
we placed "mited re ‘ance on the Group’s ‘Mterna controis over
financia -epo-ting.

kPirc!
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Revenue

£167,744k (2021: £154,096k}

Normalised PBT
Group materiality

Group revenue

Group materiality
£1,400k (2021: £1,200k)

£1,400k

Whole financiai

statements materiality (2021
£1,200k}

£910k

Whoie financial
statemnents performance
materiality {2021: £900k)

£1,050m

Range of materiality at 7
components (£450k-£1,05Ck)
(2021. £4G0% to £850k]

£65k
MNisstatements reported to the
audit committee (2021: £60k]

Group tatal assats

79

“ull scepe “or group audit purposes 2022

Specfied risk-focused audit procedures 2022

Full scepe “or group audit purposes 2021

Speci‘ied risk-focused audit procadures 2021

Residual compopents
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5. Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going
concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the Group or the
Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded
that the Group’s and the Company’s financial position means that
this is reatistic. They have aiso concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability
to continue as a going concern for 18 months from the date of
approval of the financial slatements {“the going concern period”}.

An explanation of how we evaluated management’s assessment of
going concern is set out in the related key audit matter in section 2 of
this report.

Qur conclusions based on this work;

« we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate;

= we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment
that there is not, a materiai uncertainty related to events or
conditions that, individually or colfectively, may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s or Company's ability to continue as a going concern
for the going concern period; and

« we have nothing material to adg or draw attention to in relation to
the directors’ statement in note 2.2 to the financial statements cn
the use of the going concern basis of accounting with no material
ancertainties that may cast significant doubt over the Group and
Company’s use of that basis for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as
subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with
judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
above conclusions are not a guarantee that the Group or the
Cormpany will continue in operation.

6. fraud and breaches of laws and reguiations — ability to detect

identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to
fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud {(“fraud risks™)
we assessed events or conditions that could ‘ndicate an incentive or
pressure to commit fraud or provide an oppartunity to commit fraud.
Our risk assessment procedJres inciuded :

— Enqguiring of directors, the Audit Committee and the
Company Secretary and inspection of policy documentation
as to the Group's high-ievel policies and procedures to
prevent and detect fraud, including the Group’s channel for
“whistleblowing”, as well as whether they have knowledge of
any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

— Reading Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee meeting minutes.

— Considering remuneration incentive schemes and
performance targets for directors and management including
bonus targets and Long Term Incentive Plan EPS growth
targets for director and management remuneration.

Fraud and breaches of laws and reguiations - ability to detect
{continued)

ldentifving and responding to risks of material misstatement due to
fraud fcontinued)

we communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit and
remained alert to any indications of freud throughout the audit.

This inctuded communication from the Group audit team to the one
full scope component audit team of relevant fraud risks identified at
the Group level and request to the full scope component audit team
to repert to the Group audit team any instances of fraud that could
give rise to a material misstatement at group.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible
pressures to meet profit targets and revisions to market guidance,
we perform procedures to address the risk of management override
of controfs and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition, in
particular the risk that revenue is overstated or understated
through recording revenues :n the wrong period.

We also identified a fraud risk related to the inappropriate
capitalisation of develepment costs to intangible assets not yet
available for use in response to possible pressures to meet profit
targets.

Further detail in respect of these risks are set out in the key audit
matter disclosures in section 2 of this report.

In determining the audit procedures we took into account the
resuits of our evaluation and testing of the operating effectiveness
of some of the Group-wide fraud risk management controls.

We a’so performed procedures including:

— ldentifying journal entries to test for all full scope components
based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries to
supporting documentation. These included those posted by
senior finance management and those posted to revenue and
cash accounts with an unusual account pairing.

— Assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting
estimates are indicative of a potential bias.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to
non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably
be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements
from our general commercial and sector experience and through
discussion with the directors and other management (as required
by auditing standards) and discussed with the directors and other
management the policies and procedures regarding compliance

with laws and regulations,

We communicated identified iaws and regulations th-oughout our
team and rermained a'ert to any indications of non-compliance
throughout the audit. This included communication fram the Group
audit team to the one fuli-scope compeonent audit team of relevant
aws and regulations identified at the Group ‘evel, and a request for
the ful scope component auditor to report to the Group audit team
any instances of non-compiiance with [aws and regulations that
coutd give rise 1o a material misstatement at Group level.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial
statements varies considerably.

Firstfy, the Group ‘s subject to laws and regulations that directly
affect the financial statements inciuding financial reporting
iegislaton {including related companies legislation), distributable
profits legislation and taxation legis/ation and we assessed the
extent of comp-iance with these aws and regu:ations as part of our
procedures on the “elated finamc'al statement ‘tems,
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
{continued}

identifying and responding to risks of material misstatemnent due
to nan-compiiance with laws and requiations (continued)

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and
regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financiai
statements, for instance through the imposition of fines or
litigation. We Identified the following areas as those most likely
to have such an effect: health and safety and hazardous material
legisiation, export control legislation, anti-bribery, employment
law and certain aspects of company legislation, recognising the
nature of the Group's global manufacturing and development
activities. Auditing standards 'imit the required audit procedures
1o identify non-compliance with these iaws and regulations to
enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection
of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore if a
breach of operational regulations is not disciosed to us or evident
from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that
breach,

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of
law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an
unavoidable risk that we rmay not have detected some material
misstaterments in the financia! statements, even though we have
properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with
auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less iikely
the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards
would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there "emained a higher risk of
non-detection of fraud, as these may invoive collusion, forgery,
intentional om;ssions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contro's. Our audit procedures are designed to detect
material misstatement, We are not responsible for preventing
non-comphance or fraud and cannot pe exoected to detect non-
compiiance with al' laws and regulations.

We have nothing to report on the ather information in the
Annuzl Report

The directors are ~espansible for the other information
presented in the Annua, Repo-t tegetner with the financia!
statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other inforeation and, accordingly, we do not express
an aud't opinion or, except as explicitly stated seiow, any form of
assurance conciusion thereon.

Our respons’biiity 's to read the other information and, indoing
so, tonsider wnether, based on our financial statements audit
woO-k, the information tnarein s materia ly misstated o
‘nconsistent w'th the fingnciai statements or cu” aud’t

know edge. Based so'ey 01 that work we have not ident fled
matenal misstatements 'n the other ‘nformation.

Strategic report and directors report

Based s01e.y £ our work 0N the other information:

— we nave not ‘dent’fied material misstaterents in the
strategic ~eport and the directors’ “eport;

— in ourooin‘on the infor~at'on g'ven "1 those revorts for the
financla year 's consistent with the financia statements; and

— 'nopurooin’on those ‘eports have been preoared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

g6

We have nothing to repert on the other information in the
Annual Report (continued)

Direttors’ remuneration report

In addition to our audit of the financial statements, the directors
have engaged us to audit the information in the Directors’
Remuneration Report that is described as having heen audited,
which the directors have decided to prepare as if the Company
were required to comply with the requirements of Schedule 8 to
The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008 {S1 2008 No. 410) made under the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, as if those requirerments applied to the
Company.

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and longer-term
viabijlity

We are required to perform procedures to identify whether
there is a material inconsistency between the directors’
disclosures in raspect of emerging and principal risks and the
viability statement, and the financial statements and our audit
knowledge.

Based on those protedures, other than the material uncertainty
related to going concern referred to above , we have nothing
further material to add or draw attention to in -elation to:

— the directors’ confirmation within the long term viability
staterment on page 56 that they have carried out a robust
assessment af the emerging and orincipal risks facing the
Group, ‘ncluding those that would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency and liguidity;

— the Principle Risks disciosures describing these risks and how
emerging ~isks are identified, and explaining how they are
peing managed and mitigated; and
the directors’ expianation in tne .ong term viabiiity statement
of how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over
what period they nave done so and why they considered that
period to be appropriate, and their statement as to wnether
they have a reasonabie expectation that tne Group wil. be
able to continue in operation and meet its Liapil't'es as they
fa'l due over the period of their assess~ent, inc’uding any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessa~y
qualifications or assumptions.

Gur work is limited to assess ng these ™atters in the context of
only the know'edge acqui~ed during our f'nancia: statements
audit. As we cannot predict a:l future events or condit'ans and as
subsequent events may resa't 'n outcomes that are ‘noensistent
wit1judgemeants that were “easonanle at tne time they were
made, thie absence of anything to “egort on these statements s
7ot a guarantee as to the Group’s and Company’s longer-term
viapi'ty.

Corporate governance disclosures

We are "eqJired to perfor~ procedures to identify whether
there is a matera, ‘nconsistency between the drectors’

corograte governance disciosares and tne financ’a state~ents
a1d our aud't knewedge.

Company number 03745726



We have nothing to report on the other information in the
Annual Report {continued)

Corporate governance disclosures (continued)

Based on those procedures, we have concluded that each of the
following is materially consistent with the financial statements
and our audit knowledge:

— the directors’ statement that they consider that the annual
report and financial statements taken as a whole is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s position and
performance, business model and strategy; or

— the section of the annuai report describing the work of the
Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee, and how these
issues were addressed; and

— the section of the annual report that describes the review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems,

In addition to our audit of the financial statements, the directors
have engaged us to review their Corporate Governance
Statement as if the Company were required to comply with the
Listing Rules and the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority in relation to those
matters, Under the terms of cur engagement we are required to
review the part of the Corporate Governance Statement reiating
to the Company's compliance with the provisions of the LUK
Corporate Governance Code specified for our review. We have
nothing to report in this respect.

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you

if, in our opinion:

— adegquate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

- the parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report which are were engaged to
audit are not in agreement with the acceunting records and
returns; or

— certain disciosures of directors’ remunerstion specified by
law are not made; or

— we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these reseects.

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you

if, in our opinion:

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

— the parent Company financial statements and the part of the

Directors’ Remuneration Report which are were engaged to
audit are notin agreement with tne accounting records and

Respective responsibilities
Directars’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 88,
the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enabie the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error; assessing
the Group and parent Company’s ability to continue as a going
toncern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liguidate the Group or the parent Company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO

Auditor’s responsibilities

Dur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our
opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materias if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the
FRC's website at www.fre.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpeose of our audit work and to whom we owe our
responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 and the terms of our engagement by the Company. Gur
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’'s members those matters we are required to state to
tnem in an auditor's report, and the further matters we are
required to state to them in accordance with the terms agreed
with the Company, and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

SjUBLWSLDYS (DIJUDULY
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Kate Teal (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

returms; or 66 Queen Sguare
— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by Bristo!

law a-e not made; or BS1 4BE
— we have not rece’ved all the \nformation and explanations

we require for our audit.

K 23 May 2023
We have notiing to report in these respects.
m
IQE plc Annudl Report and Accounts 2022 97

Company number 03745726



Five-year financial summary

2022 2021 2010 IOHG PO L

£'000 ¥ 0N [ £ 00 v 000
Revenue 167,494 154,096 178,016 140,015 156,291
Adjusted EBITDA (see below) 23,365 18,679 30,101 16,246 26,404
Operating (loss) /profit
« Adyusted? (3557) {5,4544) 53686 {4575) 15,040
- Reported (72976) (19378} (5517 (18.802) 8650
(Lass) /profit after tax
- Adjusted- (5,920) {19,281) 2,702 (18,010} 1,229
« Roported {7454 (3.002) (2.893) (35128} 1189
Net cash flow from operations
adjusted” (note 8) 15652 17940 36324 16,530 16,982
Roported 2873 13883 35487 8948 16988
Free cash flow**
Bofore excoptional cash flows 4148 (1640) 24929 {25,445) (28,045)
Reportod (2531 {897} 24062 {33.027) {26.039)
Adjusted net (debt)/cash*** (15,248) (5,804) 1,923 (15,970) 20,807
Equity shareholders’ funds 175,060 234,601 260,435 266,593 305,730
Basic EPS — adjusted**** {0.74p) (2.41p) 0.29p {2.48p) v.44p
Basic EPS — unadjusted (9.27p) (3.87p) {0.41p) (4.51p) 0.13p
Diluted EPS — adjusted**** (0.74p) (2.41p) 0.29p {z.46p) 1.38p
Diluted EPS$ — unadjusted {9.27p) (3.87p) (0.41p) (4.5'p) 0.12p

(202 - outhom of &

Mstruments

“rer Adjustoa EPS micasures xclude e umpact o
wiauld distort penod 2 penod compardility

The adpsted paertarmanac moasurns for 2022 ona 202 ae roronailed in notc R
roconclad nothose finoncal stetomeants
Tro0 cash tlow s dehined az not cash outtlow, of £53000 (2022

St ookt o

nE pote 2)

Adjusted tBITDA has beser calcuiated as follows

Thz adpisted porformancae maasures for 20 8- 2020 are

A08G GO0 outhion] betore aash Hiow s from nancing detvitzs of £4.732000

i 22 3000,

s adjustad net fdabt) cash s dofinad as cash less borrowings Dut exciuding oo se abites and far vaius qarg losses or doratye
§ / 9 =} a

SrEn BON-CAsh charges non-operatoral toms and sigaificant infcquent toms that

2022 Ral} Ty i ol
o £000 o yoang REL y i) . i)
(Loss)/profit after tax (74,541) (31,002) (2.893) (35,128) 1,188
Tax chorge [ (credit) (862) 8,81 (1.001) 10,180 5,558
Interest expense/(income} 2,427 2,213 2,165 1,458 (87)
Share based payments 332 1.6 285 () (1,044)
(Profit}{Loss on disposal of PPE and intangibles (688) (77} 182 (245) -
Adjusted iterns 70,403 1,833 6,850 18,463 7,906
Depreciation of PPE 14,529 13,3089 12,983 10,477 6,773
Depreciation of right of use asset 3,981 3,854 3.681 3,520 -
Amaoartisation of intangible assets 7.784 8,047 7,869 8,222 5,109
Adjusted EBITDA 23,365 18,679 30,101 16,246 26,404
a3
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Consolidated income statement
for the yecir ended 31 December 2022

2022 200
Fealis £'000 [ VIH
Revenue 4 167,494 154,086
Caost of sales (14} (136.452)
Gross profit 26,383 17.644
Solhing, general and administrative exponses (3121} (30,322)
Impairment ioss on intangibie assots 5 (66,55) (7.4
Impairment (less), reversal or trade recenvables and controct assets 22 {2,300} 34
Profit on disposal of intangible assets and property. plant ond cgupment 5 588 77
Cther lossos & {381
Operating loss & (72,976) (19,978)
Finance costs 8 (2427) {(2213)
Ad}dsted loss before income tax (5,884) (8,687)
Adjustments 5 (69.419) {13524)
Loss hefore income tax (75,403} (22,191)
Taxation g 882 _{(Ban)
Loss for the year (74,541} (31,002)
Loss attributable to:
Equity sharchalders i (74547) (31.002)
e (74,541)  (31,002)
Loss per share attributable to owners of the parent during the year
Baosic loss per share 12 (927p) (387p)
Dituted loss per share 2 (927p) (3.87;3}
Adjusted basic and diluted loss per share are presented n note 12,
Ailitems included in the loss for the year relate to continuing operabors.
The notas oh pages 107 to 157 form an ‘ntegral part of these corsolidatad financial statements.
a9
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1600

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the yeor ended 31 December 2022

" 2022

fords

£000 5O}

Loss for the year (7a.Bar} (a1002)

Exchange differcnees on tronslation of foraign operations” _ 4500 4744

Total comprehensive expense for the year {60,041) (26,258)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to:

Equity sharchalders ] ] _ (Bogan  (26298)

{60,041) (26,258)

ftoms that moy subsequonty be reciassified to profir ortoss

'terns in the statement above are disclosed net of tax The income tax relating to each component of other

comprehensive expanse is disciosed in note Q.

The notes on pages 107 to 157 forrm an integral part of these consolidated financial staterrents.
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Consolidated balance sheet

s at 31 December 2022

2022 S0

Heite: €000 )
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 13 37.014 95866
Fixed asset nvestmonts 16
Property. plant and cquipment 4 127055 129,730
Right of usc dssets 5 41,432 44,287
Beforred tax asscts 10
Other financial assets ) ) 8 7
Total non-current assets ' 205,501 269,863
Cufrp;nlz assets i o
Inventories 17 34081 31710
Trade and other recoivables i8 44828 38860
Cash and rrsh cquivatents ) B 1620 10,791
Total current assets _ ) - 20,609 81,36
Totalassets ' 7 296,110 351,224
Current liabilities -
Trade and other payabies 19 {375453) (37.083)
Current tax Hobilibes (680) (1,242)
Bank borrowings 20 (8,225) (5,230)
Denvative financial nstraments 22 {(381) -
icasc habilitios 20 (4,843) (2.694)
Provisions far other liabikttes and charges ) ) g ) _(1.625) (3.685)
Total current liabilities i (51.309)  (53,035)
Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings 20 (20,643} (%,365)
Lease liabilities 20 {46,028) {49693}
Detorred tax fabilites 10 (1.055) (2,060}
Provisions for other labiliies and charges o 2 (2007 {1450
Total non-current liabilities (89,7a1) (63,5868)
Total liabilities ' (121,050)  (116,603)
Net assets 175,060 234 621
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent
Share capital 23 8048 8036
Share prernium 154720 154,632
Retained carnings (45.246) 29,295
Exchange rate resorve 40,535 26,035
Other reserves ) ) 17.003 15,823
Total equity ' 175,060 234,621

The notas on pages 107 to 157 form an integral part of these consolidated financid statemants. The finarcial
statermnents on pages 98 to 157 ware authorised for issue by the Board of Directors and approved on 23 May 2623
and were signed on its behalf.

g

Mr A lemos Mr T Pullen
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 Decemiber 2022

Retained
share shexe earnings | Exchange Other Total
capitd premium (losses) Rateroserve reserves equity
£°000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
At1January 2022 8,036 154,632 29,295 26,035 16,623 234 621
Comprehensive expense
toss for the year (74541) {74,541}
Othor comprehonsive oxpense for
the year 14,500 14500
Total comprehensive expense for
the year - - (74.541) 14,500 - (690,041}
Transactions with owners
Share based payments 289 283
Tax relating to share options 9 9l
Procecds from shares issucd 2 88 100
Total transactions with owners 12 88 - - 380 480
At 3 December 2022 8,048 154,720 - {45,248} 40,635 §7,603 175,060
Share (NI Beofonnes! b P ge et Teatea!
reapated (Rl RTE o) [REURIRISEY [T (S R Th AN LTy
. RaeLsy] v yin) . § e Ll 00
At1January 2021 8,004 154,185 62,089 21,291 14,866 260,435
Comprehensive expense
Loss for the yoar - {31002) {31.002)
Other comprehensive expense for
tho year - 47ad 4744
Total comprehensive expense for
the year - - (31,002) 4,744 - (26,258)
Transactions with owners
Share based payrnents L850 1860
Tax relating to share options {93} ‘a3)
Prececds from shores issucg a2 447 479
Acquistion of ner controlling nterest (1792 {1702)
Total transactions with owners 32 447 {1,792) - 1,757 444
At 31 December 2021 8,036 154,632 29,295 26,035 16,623 234,621

Other reserves rejate 1o share based payrmerts.

The rotes or pages IC7 to 137 form ar ntegrar part of tnese corsolidated financiar staterments
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year endad 31 Decermnber 2022

2022 o
Hote £000 Fann
Cash flows from operating activities 7 o
Adjusted cash inflow from operations 15,652 17,940
Cash impact of adjustmeonts 5 (8.779) 943
Cash generated from operations 26 8,873 18,883
Net interost pard {21543 {2,213}
Income tax paid ) (775) (1275)
Net cash generated from operating activities - 5944 15,395
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchasc of property, plant and eqguipment (9438} (15.051)
Purchase of ntangible assots (4699) (3245)
Capitalised development expenditure (R 705} (2.004)
Procoode from disposal of property, plant and cquiprment and irtangibie assets 7203 85
Adjusted cash used in investing activities (15,802) (18,320%)
Cash impoct of adjustments  procecds from disposal of property, plant and
eguipment and intangible assets ) 5 8073 :
Net cash used In investing activities ’ 7 (10,728)  (18,305)
Cash flows from financing activities
Acquisition of minority interest 01,792)
Proceads from issuance of ordinary shares 100 472
Proceeds trom borrowings 27 15,614
Repayrnent of borrowings 27 (6,258) (8145)
Payment of lease liabdities o 27 {4.9285) (37085)
Net cash generated from [ (used in} financing activities 4,732 (m,170)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (53) (14,080)
Cash and cask cquivalents at 1 January 10,791 24863
Exchange losses or cash and cash eguivatents 282 208
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December ' 1,620 10,79
The notas on pages 107 to 157 form an integral part of these consohdated iinancial staterments.
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Parent company balance sheet
for the vear ended 31 Decembpber 2022

2022 M7

o o Moty €000 13 '_)&
Non-current assets

Intangible assets 3 5.315 1843
Froperty, plont ond cguiprment 4 389 07
Ivestiments % 75,248 78,0649
Deforred tax asscts 0 127
Trade and other recaivables 8 135,464 132677
Tota! non-current assets 217,416 210,923
Current assets

frade and other receivabics 8 S} 2125
Cash and cash cquivalents 2436 252
Total current assets 3,041 2,387
Total assets ' 220,457 213,310
Current Habiliﬁes ' . ’ ’

Trode ond othor poyobles 19 (29783} (30387}
Bark borrowings 20

Derivative financial instrurmaonts 22 (3m1)

Provisions for other llabilities and charges 2 (573) (740)
Total current llabilities (30,707) (31127)
Non-current liabilities

Bank borrowings 20 (18,52%)

Provisions for othor lapilitics and charges 2 {909) (a82)
Total non-current liabilities (17,438) (982)
Totail liabilities (a8,145) (32,089)
Net assets 172,312 181,221
Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 23 8048 5036
Sharoe promiurm 154720 154532
Retainea {losses)  carmings (7 a68) 1820
Othor reserves i7.012 15,724
Total equity 172,312 181,221

The company has elected to take tha exernption under sectior 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from presenting the
parent comipany proft and ‘oss accourt

The parent corpary's (reg\stered rumber 03745726) 10ss for the financiai vear amourted to £9297.000 {2621
£28,272,000 Ioss)

The notes or pages 107 t5 157 form ar integral part of these conscidated f nancial statements

Tre fnarciol staternerts on pages 99 to 197 wera authonsed for issue by the Board of Diractors ard approved on
23 May 2023 and were signed on 'ts bebalf.

Mr A Lemos Mr T Pullen
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Parent company statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Retained
share earnings / Other Total
Share capital premium {losses) reserves Equity
€000 €000 £'000 £000 £'000
At1January 2022 8,036 154,632 1,829 16,724 181,221
Comprehensive expense
Loss for the year {g.2a7) {8297}
Total comprehensive expense - - (9,297) - (9.297)
Transactions with owners
Share based payments 289 289
Tax relatng to sharc options 1)) !
Pr_o:_:oeds from shares issucd 12 58 100
Total transactions with owners 12 B8 - 288 388
At 31 December 2022 8,048 154,720 (7,468) 17.012 172,312
shaarer i L‘elr”n.xi (\l-hm ﬁjh_ﬂ
Shue eopatal PTG OIS s ves Ity
LUG0 ¥ 000 £Nne F 00 000
At 1January 2021 8,004 1543185 31,101 14,920 208,210
Comprehensive expense
Loss for the vear 7 {29272) (29272}
Total comprehensive expense - - (29,272) - (29,272)
Transactions with owners
Share basod payments 1850 1850
Tax relating to share options {a8) (45)
Proceeds from sharos 1ssucd 32 447 473
Total transactions with owners 32 447 - 1,804 2,283
At 31 December 202) 8,036 154,632 1,829 16,724 181,221
Other raserves relate to share based payments.
The notes on pages 107 to 157 form ar integral part of these consoidatad firanaial statements.
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Parent company cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 el
B ot £000 £

Cash flows from operating octivities
Cash outflow from operotions 2% (1.004) (2.337)
Intcrest recenved 1244 1,305
Net cash used in operating activities (sj,7so) ) (432)
Purchase of intangible assets (2583) (314)
Purchase of property plant and equipment (297) (108)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,980} {420}
Cash flows from financing activities
Procoeds fromissuance of ordinary shares 100 479
Proceeds from borrovangs 15,814
Net cosh generated from finoncing activities 15,914 479
Net increase/ {decrease) in cash und cash equivalents 2,174 (373)
Cash and cash equivalents atl January ) o 282 636
Césh and cash equivalents at 31 December 2,436 262

The notes on pages 107 to 157 form an integral part of these consolidated fnarcig: statemrants,
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022

1. General infortmation

IQE ple ('the company’) and its subsidiaries {together
‘the Group') develap, manufacture and sell advanced
sarmiconductor materials. The Group has
manufacturing facilites in Europe, United States of
America and Asia and selis to custormers located
globally.

IQE plcis a public imited company incorporated in the
United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006. The
Company is domiciled in the United Kingdom and is
quoted on the Alternative Investment Market {aM). The
oddress of the Cornpany’s registered office 1s Pascal
Close, 5t Mellons, Cardiff, CF3 OLW.

2. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consalidated financial statements
are set out below These palicies have been consistently
applied to il years presented.

2.1Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared ard
approved by the directors in accordance with
international accourting standards in conformity with
UK adopted intemational occounting standards (LK
adopted IFRS"). The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except
where fair vaiue measurement is required by IFRS. The
Group opelies farr value measuremesnt In its accounting
for derivative foreign currency fnancial instruments {see
note 218).

The preparation of fingncial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certan critical accounting
gstimates It also requires management to exarcise its
iudgement in the orocess of applvirg the Group's
accounting policies. The arsas involving a higner degree
of judgement or compiexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
corsoidated financia: statemerts, are disclosed in

note 3.

2.2 Going concern

The finarcial statements are prepared on o going
concern basis as the Drectors believe that the Group
has a strong strategy, exciting future opportunrities a~d
have taken the necessary steps to capitalise the Group
with sufficient iquidity to navigate the current
temporary semiconductor industry downtum,

The Group is currently experencing weaker customer
demand and a reduction n customer orders and
forecasts ds a result of the industry downturn The
Directors consider that the current industry and
aconomic outlook prasents a temporary but significant
challenge to sales volumes in the first baif of 2023 The
Group's trading .r G 2023 has experienced a despening
of the marret softness that impacted the 'atter part of
2022 as weaker custor-ar demand. orders ard
forecasts are expected to -esult In 0 yeqr-on-yedr
decine ir -evenue of approximately £36000.000 in Hi
2022 prorto an antcipated improvemeant N market
dvnamics and custormer demand in H2 2023

Tre Directors have taxen steps to strengthen the
baicnce skheet of the Grous n order to mitigate the

financial immpact of the current semiconductor market
downburn.

Actions taken since the year-end.

- The implementation of cost cutting actions, including
staff redundancies, operational efficiencies and
reductions in areas of discretionary expenditure which
are under the control of the Directors

- Deferral of capital expenditure under the control of
the Directors

Actions taken since the yaar-end to capitdalise the

Group with sufficient liquidity:

+ Refinancing of the Group’s £28,688,000 ($35,000,000)
multi-currency rovolving credlil fucilily provided by
HSBC Bank ple on 16 May 2023 (see note 33) The tenor
of the facility has been extended to 1 May 2026,
Quarterly leverage and interast cover covenant tests
will appty to the facility, commencing at December
2023

« The successful £31098,546 equity fund raise
completed on 18 May 2023 (see note 33) in order 1o
ansure that the Company can continue to invest to
axecute on Its strategy, meaet its near-term iquidity
requirernents and deliver a sustainabie balance sheet
position going forward

in the year to 31 December 20272, reported revenue
growth of 9% was recorded, afthough the Sroup has
reported ar operating 'oss of £72,976,000 for the year
(2021 £13,978,000 loss). This includes a non-cash
impairment charge of £62,716,00C related to the write-
down of goodwill. which results from ¢ change in
forecasts related to the current sermiconductar industry
downturn. The Group increased its net dabt position
{excluding lease liabilities and farr value gains/losses on
denvative instrurmants) to £15,248,000 {2021 £5.804,000)
At 31 December 2022 the Group had undrawn
cormmitted funding of £12,400,000 {s15,000,000)
available under the terms of its credit faciities,

SUSWBID)S [BIJUDULL

nassessing the going concern basis of preparation the
Directors have reviewed firancial projections to 31
Decermper 2024 ('the going concern assessmeant
period’). containing poth ¢ 'bass case’ and a'sevare but
plausible downside case’ The review perod extends
beyvond the minimum required 12-month penod from
the date of approval of the financial statements to
protect agamst the recovery in the semiconductor
market occurning later than forecast by the Directors.

Base Case

The base case is the Group's Q1 2023 Board approved
2023 and 2024 forecasts. The base case incorporates
the impdct of current naorket softness. weak custormer
demand and post year end actions taken by the
Directors including the wmpact of the succeassfu
31098546 equity fund raise and refinancing of tre
Group's £28,688,000 335.000,000) mult-currency
revonving cradit fociity

IQE ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022 107
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the yvear ended 31 Decemier 2022

2. significant accouiting policies continued

The base case was prepared with the following key
assumptions

« Revenue for 2023 in ine with current analyst
consensus, with a forecast return to year-on-year
growth in 2024

+ Direct water product margins consistent with 2022

+ Labour inflation in 2024 i1 line with Iabour mdrket
norms

= Costinflation in operating and administrative costs in

line with the current inflationary environment

Mitigating cost actions, resulting in o reduction in total

overheads by ¢ 7% year-on-vear in 2023, despite

inflationary pressures in some cost categories

+ < £15,000,000 of capital expenditure in 2023 and 2024
reflecting a combination of essential maintenance
capital expenditure and investment in Gallium Nitride
{GaNn) related marufacturing capacity, enabling
diversification into the nigh-growth power eiectronics
and gdvanced display {ULED) markets

.

'n the base case the Group is forecast to mamtain
significant levels of funding headroom threughout the
going concern assassment panod with guickty of
£36,348,000 at the end of 2023 and £4i,776000 ot the
ond of 2024 and is forecast to comply with its ieverage
ard interest cover parking covenants throughout the
goIng conaern assaessment peariod, A position of net
funds {excluding lease liabitties and fair value
gains/losses on denvatives] s forecast througnout the
review period with a net funds position of E3,458.000 at
the end of 2022 and £13.088,0C0 at the end of 2024

Severe but plausible downside case
Tre severe put piausible downside case was prapared
using the following xev assumpt.ons:

+ Revenue s gssumed at 15% down on the base case
for 2023 and 14% down on the base case for 2024

= inling with the revonue reduction in both vears, thom
s @ reflective reduction in variaple operating costs for
2023 and 2024 along with addt:onal incremeantal cost
savIngs that include iding of tools, idpour savings.
reductions i research ard developrment sxoenchiure
and reductions in certarr nor-manufacturng relatecl
discretonary expenditure that can be controted by
the Drectors

= Deferral of certar capitar expenditure im 2023 and
2024 that car oe controlled ov tha Directors

The severa but piausicle dowrs.de case wou d ieqve the
Groug wth Fgquichty of £25,559.00C at the and of 2623
andt £17.232.000 of the and of 2024 with rminimy
quichty in tne gong concer assassrent perod of
F1254500C '~ Q4 2624 Tre levorage and mterast cover
coverarts apoy quartery frome 31 Decer~osar 2023 and
oags dt sack test ot~ the going corcer
assessmant parod

108

The Group 1s forecast to maintain complance with ol
covenants associated with Its bank faciities and have
positive liquidity throughoeut the 2023 and 2024 going
concern assessment period, in both the base case ond
severe but plausible downside scenanos following the
successful steps taken by the Directors to capitatise the
Group with sufficient iguidity in order to ensure thot the
Company can continue to Invest to executs on ts
strategy, meet its near-term liquidity requirernents and
deliver a sustainable balance sheet position going
forward. On this basis, the Directors believe that the
Company and Group have adequate cash resources to
continue operating for the foreseeable futurs and o
meet their iabilittes as they fall due for the going
concern assessment period, such that the directors
consicder it approponate to adapt the gomng concam
basis of accounting n preparing the Company and
Group consolidated finoncial statements.

2.3 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

a) New standards, amendments and
interpretations

The following new stondards, amendments and
nterpretations have been adapted by the Group for
the first tirme for the financia! year beginrirg on
VJyanuary 2022,

» Armmendment to IFRS 3 Business comoinations to
update referercas to the Conceptual Framework for
“nancial Reporting withiout change g the accounting
requirements for business combinations.
Amendments to IAS 18 "Property. plant and equipment’
to prohioit tne deduction fror cost of property, plant
and equipment amounts recaived from seling tems
produced wnie preparng the asset for its intended
usa with any such sales and related cost recognised
i~ profit or ‘oss
« Ameaendments to A8 37 Provisions, cortingent liabilities
and contingent assets’ o specify wirich costs a
company inciudes wher assessing whether a
contract wil be 088 making
« Annudl improvements to iFRSs 2018-2020 cyc e to
moke Minor arterdments to FRS T First-tirme
adoption of FRS, FRS 9 Finarcial Instrumeants’ iAS 41
‘agrcuiture’ and amendrments to the llustrative
SXAMDIEs ACcomMpanying FRS 15 "Leases.

.

The adoptior of these standards, amendmerts and
rterpretatons ras not nad a material imeact or the
financin statameants of the Groun or pdrent company
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2. Significant accounting policies continucd

b) New standards, amendments and
interpretations issued but not effective and not
adopted early

A number of new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations which are set out below are
effective for annual pericds beginning after 1 January
2023 and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements:

» IFRS I7Insurance contracts’ which establishes the
principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts
and supersedes iIFRS 4 Insurance Contracts”.
Amendments to 1AS 1 Tresantaliun ol financia
statements’ on classification of liabiites which is
intended to clarify that ligbiities are classified as
afher current or non-current depending upon the
rights that exist gt the end of the reporting period and
amendments to the disclosure of accounting policies
which wili require disclosure of rnaterial rather than
significant accounting policies
« Amendment to IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estmates and errors’ to intreduce o new
definttion for accounting estimates wmch clanfies that
an aceounting estimate s a monetary amount in the
fincncial staternents that is subject to rmeasurement
uncertainty Amendment to 1AS 12 tncorme taxes’ to
ciarify the accounting treatment for deferred tax on
certain transactions with a narrowing of the scope of
the initiar recognition exemption so that it does not
apply to transactions that give rise to equat and
oﬂsettm:;_; termporary differences.

Tne Directors anticipate that at the time of this report
none of the new standards, amendments to standards
of interpratations are expected to have o material effect
on the financial statements of the Group or pdrent
cCompany.

2.4 Consolidation

The consalidated financial statements comprise the
results of IQE plc {(the Company) and its subsidiary
undertakings, together with the Group's share of the
results of its assoc:ates and joint venture.

Subsidiaries

subsidianes are all entities over which the Group has
control The Group controls an entity whenr the Group 1s
exposed to, or has rigrts to, variable returns from its
nvolvemeant with the entity and has the abilty to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsididres are fuly consolidated from the datg on
which contral is transfered to the Group and are de-
consclidatad from the date that control ceases.

wter-company transactions, balances ond unreaiised
gaing or wsses on transactions petween Group
comparies are enmirated and accounting poticies of
subsidiares have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with tne polices adopted by the
Group.

Joint ventures
The Group applies IFRS T to all joint arrangements. under
IFRS W, nvestmerts in joint arrange~ents are classified

as either juinl vperations or joiNt ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations of each investor.
The nature of the Group's joint arrangements has been
assessed and each joint arrangement has been
deterrmined to be a joint venture. Joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures arg initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income.

Gains by the Group on transactions with joint ventures
are eliminated agamst the carrying value of the Group’s
Interest in its juint ventures to the extent that the gain
does not exceed the carrying amount. In circumstances
where a gain exceeds the carrying amount the Group
has made an accounting policy choice to recognise the
gain in the comprehensive Nncome statement, subject
to an assessment of recoverability of value from the
[ointventure rather than recognising the gain as
deferred income in the consolidated balance sheet.

when the Group's share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint venturas
{which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the Jjoint ventures), the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures Unrealised
guins on transactions between the Group and its joint
venturaes are efim:nated to the extent of the Group’s
interast in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
afiminated unless tha transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred Accounting
policies of the joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2. significant accounting policies continued

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using
the acquisition method when control is transferred to
the Group The consideration transferred in the
acquisition is generally measured at fair valus, as dre
the identifioble net assats acquired. Any goodwill that
drises is tested annually for impairment. Any gainon a
bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss
mmediately. Transaction costs dre expensed as
ncurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity
securities. The consideration transferred does not
INclude amounts reiated to the settiemeant of pre-
existing refationships. Such amounts are generclly
recogrused ir profit or loss.

Where the fair values of acquired identifiable assets,
labilities and contingent liabilities are mitiaily recognised
on a provisional basis, these are reassessed during the
12-rmonth period following the date of the business
combination. Adjustments to the fair values as at the
date of gcguisition that resuit from new information that
existed ot the date of aoquisition which, f known ot the
time, would have resuited in a difterant amount baing
recognised within this measurement period’, are
recorded with any net 'mpact being added to or
deducted from the goodwill recognised. Sucn
adjustments are recognised in both the current period
and the rastated comparative period balarce sheets as
fthe f:nal far values had peer used in the inifal
recogniton of the acquisiton. Subsequent to the
measurement period. any adjustiments to the recorded
fair value of idertifiable assets, labilities a~ct contingent
nabities are taken through the ncome staterment as an
excapliondlncome Or expense

The Group recogrises any non-cortrolling interest on
a0 dequisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value
or at the nor-controiling mterast's proportionate share
of the racogrised amounts of the acquiree s identtfable
ret assets.

Acquisiton related costs are expensad as ‘mcurred

2.5 intangible assets

a) Goodwill

Goaodwill arising on an acquistton 's recagrised as an
asset and initiallv measured at cost, being the excess of
the fair value of the consideration over the fair value of
tre idertifiapie assets. liap'ities and cortngert ianitias
acquired

Goodwil s not armort'sad out s reviewed for potant o
imparmant at east ancually o maore frecuently if
2verts or crcursiances rdicate a sotertia,
~parmert For the purnose of mpairment testing,
goodw! s aliccated to sach of the Cas- Generatng
units to whicn it rerates. Ary rparrment dentifed’s
rrgdiateh chdrgad to the Consolidated ncoma
Statamenrt Subseglert raversas of par-rent 'csses
o7 goodw' are ot recogr sed.

ne

Negative goodwill ansing on an acquisition where the
fair value of identifioble assets, liabilities and contingent
llabilities exceeds the fair vaiue of the consideration is
credited and recognised in the consolidated income
statement immediately

b} Patents, trademarks and licences

Separdtely ocquited patents, trodernarks and licences
cire shown ot historical cost. Patents, trademdcirks and
iicences acquired in o business combination are
recognised at far value at the acquisition date. Patents,
trademarks and licences have a finite useful iife arnd care
carried at cost less accumulated amertisation

Amortisation is calioulated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of the assets over ther
astimated usefullives of 10 to 15 years. Amaortisation s
charged to seling and genheral administration expenseas
in the income statemeant.

The carrying vaie of patents, trademarks and icences
15 reviewad for potential impairment if events or
circumstonces ‘ndicote o potenticl Impoirment. Any
impairment identified 1s immeadiately charged to the
Corsohdated Income Statement

c) Development costs

Expenditure incurred that is directly attrbutabie to the
daveloprment of new or substantially improved products
Or processes 8 recogrisad as an intargioie assat when
the forowing crterio ore met:

- te praduct or process is intended for use or sale;

- the development s technically feasible to complate,

« thereis an anility to use or sei; the product or process,

« tcan be deronstrated how the product or process

wil generate probabe future econormrc benefits;

there are adequate technicdl, finagncal aond other

resources to cormrplete the deveicprnent; and

- the develooment sxpenditure can be retab.y
measured

Directly attrbutable costs refer to the materals
consumad the diractly attnbutable Idbour; Grd the
directly attnbutable overheads incurred in the
deveiopment activity General operatng costs,
adrmnistratior costs ard seling costs do ~ot form part
of directly attrbutaple costs

Al rgsecrch ard other development costs dre expansed
as rourrgd,

Capitased daveloormant costs are amortised n ling
with the axpected productiop voLrme profile over tre
penod zlunng wh ch the acororc berefls are
expected 10 o8 -scewved, which typicdiv ranges betwesar 3
ard 8 vears Tre astirated ernani~g Lsefu. fves of
deveaionrent costs dre reviswead at eastor ar ar-Ld
oosis. Anortisator carrrences orcethe oroject s
cornpietaed ard the deveicpment nas beer raeased

nto producton Amorisation s cnarged to sel.rgard
general o rstration expersas ™ the ~come staterrert,
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2. Significant accounting policies continued

The carrying vaiue of capitalised development costs in
respect of completed projects is reviewad far
impairment if events or circumstances indicate a
potential irpairment. Projscts that remain under
development at the reporting date are reviewed for
imgairment at least annually, or more fraquentty if
events oF Cifcurmnstancss indicate a potential
impairment. Any impairment identified is immmediately
charged to the Consolidated Income Statement.

d) Software

Drectly attributale costs incurred in the develocpment of
bespoke software for the Group's own use are copitaksed
ard amortised on a straight-line basis over the expectod
useful life of the software, which typically ranges betwaen 3
and 10 years. Amortisation is charged to selling and general
administration expenses in the income statement.

The carrving value of capitalised software costs 18 reviewed
for potential impdairment if events or circumstances
indlicate a potential impairment Any Impairment identified
is immediately charged to the Consolidated Income
Statement. The costs of maintaining internally developed
software and annual license fees pard to utilise third-party
software ara expensed as incurred.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment s stated ot cost less
accumulated depreciation and any provision for
imparrment Cost comprises alt costs that are directly
attributable to bringing the assat into working conditior
for its intended use. Deprecaton is calcuiated to wiite
down the cost of property. plant and squipment toits
residual value on o straight-iine basis over the followirg
estimated useful economic ives:

Freehold buidings 10 to 40 years

Short ieasehold iImproverments 5to 27 years

Plant and machirery 5to 15 years

Fixtures and fttings 3to 5 vears

No depreciation is provided on land or assets yet to be
brought into use. Depreciation is charged to cost of
sales and selling ard general administratior expenses
in tng income staternent.

Costs incurred after initial recognition are included in
the assets’ carrying amounts, or recogrised as a
sepordte asset as appropriate, orly whan tis probable
that future economic benefits associated with trem wil
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amcunt of the replaced
part:s derecognised. All other repairs and mawntenance
are charged to the income staterment during the
financiar year in whic™ they are incurred

Gairs and losses or disposals are determmed by
comparnng the proceeds with the carrying amount a~d
are recognised within ‘proftloss on disposal of property.
plant and equipment’ in tne ncome statement.

Assets’ residudi vaiues and useful econormic lives are
reviewed, and adjusted f appropriate, at the end of each
reporting perod The: carrving volue of property, pharl and
equipment is reviewed for potential impairment if events or
circumstances indicate o potenticlimparrment. Any
impairment identified s immediately chargad to the
Consolidated Income Staternent

2.7 Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contamns, a
letise at inception of the contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of ar idertified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration

The Group recognises d ight-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease habllity with respect to all lease
arrangements in which itis the lessee, except for short-
tarm leases {defined as eases with a lease term of 12
months or less), leases of low value assets {such as
small sterns of office furniture and equipment) and
leases with vanable rentals not linked to a retevant index
{see note 3a). For these leases, the Group recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense on o
straight-ling basis over the term of the lease unless
another systermatic basis is more representative of the
time oattern n which economic benefits from the
leased assets are consumad.

Right-of-use assets and legse liabilities are recognised
at the lease commencement date. Right-of-use assets
are nitialy measured at cost, and subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter
period of lease term and useful life of the underitying
asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that
the Group sxpects to exercise a purchase optior, the
related right-of-use asset s depreciated over the useful
iife of the underlying asset The depreciation starts at the
comrnencement date of the lease.

The Group applies 1AS 36 to determine whether a night-

of-use asset is 'mpdaired and accounts for any dentified
impairment loss as describad in the ‘Property, Plant and
Equipment’ policy.

Right-of-use assets are oressnted as a separate line N
the consolidated staterent of financial position.

The iedase liabllity s initially measured at the praesent
value of the iease payments that are not paid at the
cormmencement date, discounted using the interest
rate implcit in the lease or f that rate cannot be readily
determired, the Groun's Nncremental borrowing rate.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 3! December 2022

2. significant accounting policies continued

The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease hability (usﬁng the effective interest method) and
by reducing the sarrying amount (o reflect the lease
payments made

The Group remeasures the lease liability {and makes o
corresponding adiustment 1o the related right-of-use
asset) when there is a change in future lease payments.
Changes in future iease payments can ariss from a
chdangs i an index of rate, a chdngs in the assessment
of whether 0 purchase or extension option s reasonabiy
certan to be exercised or from a change in assessment
about whether a termination option is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during
the current year

variable rents that do not depend on an indsx or rate
are not included in the measurernent of the lease
liability and the nght-of-use asset, The related
payments are recognised ds an expeanse in tha period in
which the event or condition that triggers those
payrments occurs ard are included in the ine *Cost of
soles” in profit or loss {see note 3a).

2.8 Impagirment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite usaful ife, or
intangible assets not ready to use, are not subject to
amortisation and are reviewed for potential impairment
at least annuaily. or more frequently if events or
circumstances indicate a potentiauimparrment, Assats
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impdadirnent whensver events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrving amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment toss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carmying amount
excesds s racoverable amount. The recoverable
amount 's the higher of an asset's fair value {'ess
disposal costs) and value in use

Valug i use s basaed on the prasent value of the future
cosh flows relating to the asset discounted at the
Group's "isk adjustad pre-tax discount rate For the
purpose of assessng impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levers for wheh there are separataly
dentfiable cash flows

nckeators that imparrment .osses ight have reversed
are assessed annualiy

2.9 Inventories

nwvertor as gce stated at the ower of cost and net
reqisabie va'ue. Tostis deterr ned using the frrst-n
frst-out rmethod Cost cormpnses direct mmatera's and,
wharg aop, catie, direct ‘abour casts and attroutanie
overheads that »ave beer .rourred in srirging the
imvantorias to therr oresent 'ocation and condit'on
pdssd o norma. ooeratng copacity Net real saoie
vawe s tre estrated selirg or ce n the ordind-y
course of pusiress ‘ess appicable seirg expanses.

nz

210 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or senices parformed in the ordinary course
of business. If collaction is sxpected in one year of less
{or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
\onger), they are classified as current assets if not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade recevables are recognised initally at far vaiug and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision far impdirment.

2.11Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly fiquid
investments with onginal maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are presented
witnin cash and cash equivalents whera the Group has
a nght of set-off under its treasury arrangements that
are pooled by territory

2.12 Preference share debt instruments

Preferance share financial assets are debt nstruments due
fror @ related party (see note 31) Debt instrurments are
niticilty recogrised at far value ard subsequently
measured at arortised cost on the basis that the financial
asset s held with the objective of coflacting the contractuce
cash flows, ond the contractual terms of the instrument
give rise to cash fliows that are solely payments of prncipal
and interest on the orincipal armount outstanding

213 Financial assets

Snancial assets are recognised on the Group's balance
sheal when the Group becomes a party o the
contractual provisions of the fnancial instrurnert and
are derecognised when the ngnts to recewe cash flows
have expired or have beer transferred and the Group
has tramsferred substant:ally ali the risks and rewards
of ownership,

Ciassification of financiai assets

On nitgl recogrhon, a iinancial asset s classified as
reasured at amortsed cost, far volue through other
corprebhensive 'ncome ~ debt 'nvestment, far vaiue
through other comprahensive income - eduity
investment or far value throegh profit or loss

Tre classificatior depends on tha purpose for which the
manc.or assets were acquired and the ciassification 's
determined at the date of ntial recognitior. Finarcial
assets are not raclassified suosaquent to thexr mibal
recognibon uness the Sroup chargas ts busmess model
for marageg francial assets, ' wneh case all affectedd
finarcial assets are reciassified or e frst day of the
reperting oerod folowng the cnarge i Dusiness rMode:

Afrarcial asset s measured at amortised cost f t
~aets potr of tre follow rg condtong

» tishedwtnr aousingss Mode wnose cbective s to
~o'd assets to colect contractua cash fiows. ard

« Cts cortractua, terms give T'se to cash flows that are
so'ey payrents of prrcoal ard nterest or the
orncipch arourt outstand ng
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2, Significant accounting policies continued

Arnortised cost financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that aré not quoted in an active market. They dre
nciuded in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the reporting period where the
term s classified as a non-current asset. The Group's
financial assets comprise trade and other recevabiss
{note 210}, cash and cash equivalents {note 211),
preference share debt instruments {(note 212) and
contract assets (note 2 22).

Amortised cost and effective interest method
Financial mssats are measured at amertised cost using
the effective interest method The effective intorost rate
is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receiots
excluding expected credit iosses. through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriote, o
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the detst
instrurment on initial recagnition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset 's the amount at
which the financial asset 1s measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayrnants, plus the
cumuldtive amortisation using the effective interest
rmethod of any difference between that initial amount
and the matunty arnount, adjusted for any loss
allowarcs The gross carrying amount of a financial
assat s the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss ailowance, Interest income,
foreigr exchange gains and losses and imparrmeant dre
recogn:sed in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
dergcognition is recogrised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Tha Group recogrises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECL) on trade receivables, contract assets
and investrments in debt instruments that are measured
at amortised cost. The amourt of expected credit losses
s updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credi risk since initnas recognition of the respective
financiatinstrurnent.

Expected credit losses are measured as ar dlowancs
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or fetimee ECL
for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An assst moves to stage 2
when s credit risk has increased significantly since
iritigi recognition. In circumstances where cradit risk
increqases to the point that it becomes nighly probatle
that the debt nstrument will not become recoverame,
the Group considers that this would represent a default
event and moves Lo stage 3

The GroLp recognises ifetims ECL for trade recavables
and contract assets. The ECL on these financial assets
are estimated based on the Group's historcal credit lass
axperence, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors inciuding observable data suck as changes i
arrears. or econormic conditions that provide an
ndicaton thot o debtor is expaerencing sigrnificant
financial diff culty, default or delinquency ir payrment
that corelate with defaults

For preference share dept instruments, the Group
racognises [fetime ECL when there has Deen a
sigrificant increase in credit risk since init.ai recogn tion.
However, f the credit risk on the financial instrument has

not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument af an amount equal to twelve-maonth ECL

Lifetime ECL reprasents the expectad cradit losses that
will result frorn ali possible default events over the
expected ife of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-
month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expectad to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 menths ofter the
reporting date.

Credit impaired financial assets

At eqch reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost are Credt-
impaired. A hnancicl asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when cne
of more events that have a detnmental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred. The gross carrying amount of o financial
asset 1s written off {either partiaily or in full) to the extent
that there is no realfistic prospect of recovery.

Significant increase in credit risk — Preference share
debt instruments

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrurnent has increased significantly since initial
recegnition, the Group compares the risk of o default
occurring on the financial nstrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurnng on the financicl
nstrument at the date of initial recognition. in making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative inforrration that is reasonable and
supportabia nciuding historical experierce and
forward- looking information that 1s availasie without
undue cost or effort Farward-tooking information
considered inciudes the future prospects of the joint
venture entity in which the Group holds its prefarence
share debt, obtaned primarily from financial forecasts
and projectons prepared by managament of the joirt
venture entity as well as consideration of various
external sources of actuai and forecast economic
information that relate to the joint venture’'s core
operations.

in particular, the following information 1§ considered
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

« oxisting or forecast adverse changes in business. financiot
or econormnic condiions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the joint venture's abriity to
redeem the preforence share debt,

« owusting or farecast adverse changes in the joint vertura's
busmess plan and finonciel projections, raicating ¢
sighificant extersion to the period prior 16 redemption of
the preferonce share debt

« an actual of expected significant detenoration inthe
opcrating results of the joint venturs;

» significant mcreases m credit nsk on other inancial assets
of the joint venture; aend

» an actual or axpected sigrficant adverse change n the
regulatory, political or tochnological crvronmoenrt thot
rosults in a significont decrecse in the Joint verture's
abilty to redeem the preference share dobt
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Significant accounting policies continued

in the event that the credit risk assessment results in a
probable delay in forecast repayrment of the debt
instrument compared to the onginal expectation, the
Group considers that this reprasents a significant
nerease in crecht risk

in circurmstances where cradit risk increasss to the point
that & becormes highly probabile that the debt
instrurnent will not become recoverable, the Group
considers that this would represent a default event.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit
losses

The measurement of ECL1s a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (1e. the magnitude of the
loss If there s @ default) and the expasure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default s based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above Exposure ot
default is raprasented by the gross carrying amount of
the finapcic! asset at the reporting dote

ECL for financia! assets is estimated as the difference
between dlii contractual cash flows at are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract, and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discourted at
the original effective interest rate.

4 the Group ~as meosured the loss allowance for a
finarncial instrument at an amount equai to fifetime £C1
in the previous reporting period, but determres of the
currant reporting date that the conditions for Jfetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an armount ecual to 12-morth ECL at tre
currert reporting date.

The Group recognises an irpairrment gain or ioss ™
profit or loss for financian assets w'th a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amounrt im the consolidatad
odlance sheet,

2.14 Financial liabilities and equity

Classitication as debt or equity

Dabt ond eqguity nstrurments are ciassified as either
financial iabiities or as equity, in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements ard the
definit:ons of o firaraat kamlity and an eguity
rstrument

Equity instruments

An equty rstrument 's any contract trat eviderces o
rasiducl rtarest 10 the assets of the Group after
deductrg o of tsiiapites Tquty nstrumertsissued Sy
tne Growup are recogn.sad as the proceeds receved, rat
of o "ect ssLe costs. Repurehass of the Co~onary's own
aguity Nstrurerts s recogmised ard deducted directly
Teguity No gan or.ose s recogn sad i proft or 'oss or
tre purchase sae ssue or carcelation of tre
ToMmpany s 2w equity mstrureents

14

Financial liabilities

Financial fiabilibes are classified as measured at armartised
cost or far value through profit and loss. A financial iiability
is classified as far value through profit and loss € it /s
clossified as heid-for-trading, it 1s a denvative or it s
clesignated as such on initial recognition. Financial iabilities
at far value through profit and loss are measured at fair
value and net gans and losses, ncluding any interest
axpense, are recogrised in profit or loss. Other financial
liabilties are measured at amortisad cost using the
effective interast mathod

Financial kabilities dre non-derivative financial iabiities
with fixed or determinable paymeants and they ars
nciuded n current liabiities, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the reporting pericd where
the item is classified as a non-current iability Thne
Group's financal liabilities comprise trade and other
payables {note 215), borrowings (note 216) and ieose
iabiities (note 27} in the consolidated balance sheet.

2,15 Trade payables

Trade payables are obhgations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
ot business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
os current liabitties if payment 1s due withun one year or
less {or in the normal operatng cycte of the ousiress If
ionger). ' not, they are presented as non-current
nabilities T-ade payanies are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequantly measurad at amortisec cost
Lsing the effective nterest rmethod

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recogrised niially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred Borrowings ae subsequenty
carred at amortsed cost using t-e effective irterest
metrod

2.17 Borrowing costs

Genarai and specific borrowing costs directly
attebutame to tne acguistion, construction or
oroducton of quanfying assets whch are assets that
take a supstartia’ penod of tme to get ready for ther
mended use, are added to the cost of those assets. urtil
such tirme gs tha assets are substartialy ready for thair
ntended usa. Al other Dorrowing costs are recognised
i orofit or loss i the penod in which thev are ncuered

2.18 Derivatives and hedging activities

Dervatves are init.aly recognised af far vaie on the
date a dervative cortrdct s ertered rto, and trey are
subsequerty ereasured to ther far varue at the end
of eachk reportng oerod. Tra accourt~g for
subsequent changes in far va'ue deperds omwrater
the dervatve s desigrated as a hadgrg rstiument
and, if 50, the mature of the iterm being hedged Tne
grolLo designates certa n dervat ves as either

- nedges of apartou.an sk assoc:atad with the case
f'ows of recognised assets ard capintes and mghty
o opune forscast ramsact ons (casn fow ~adges) o
- ~adges of arst mastrertin g foreigr anaration (rat
rvestment redges)

Company nurnboer 03745726



2. Significant accounting policies continued

Cash flow hedges and derivatives that qualify for
hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
denvatives that are designated and gugiify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve
within equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffectve
portion is recognised immediatety in profit or loss, within
other gains/{iosses)

Cash flow hedges and derivatives that do not
qualify for hedge accounting

Chaongss in the fair value of any derivative instrurmenrt
that doss not qualify for hedge accounting are
recogrised wnnediately in prott or loss and are
included in other gains/{losseas).

Net investment hedges

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are
accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or
loss on the hedging nstrument relating to the effective
portion of the hedge s recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumutated in reservas in
equity. The gain or loss relating te the ireffective portion
1s recognised immediately in profit or loss within other
gﬂfﬁs,f(‘osses) Gains and losses accumuiated in equity
are reclassified to profit or loss when the foreign
operation is part.ally disposed of or sold.

2.19 Government grants

Governmaent grants are recognised at fair value when
there s reasonable assurance that the Group has
corrplied with the conditions attaching to them and the
grants will be received. Grants reiated to purchase of
assets are treated as deferred 'ncome and aliocated to
the incomea statement over the useful lives of tha related
assets, while grants related to expenises ara treated as
other income in the income statement

2.20 Share capital and other reserves

Qrdinary shares are classified as equity Incrementa!
costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary
shares or options ara shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Otrer reserves reluate to share based payment
trarsactions

2.21Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group ds d
presert legal or constructive opligation as a result of a
past event, itis probable that an outllow of resources
will pe required to settle tne obiigation, and the amount
has beer reliably estimated Restructuring provisions
cornprise site closure costs and empioyee terrmination
payvments. Provisions are not recognisad for future
operating losses.

Provisions arg ~eaasured at the present value of the
expenditures expectad to e required to settie the
obligation usirg a pre-tax rate that reflects tha tme
velue of money and the risks specific to the obligot.on

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the transaction price specified ina
conlract with g custormer for goods, services and
intellectudl property licenses provided in the ordinary
course of business net of value added and other scites
related toxes.

Standard Customer Products

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered
and have been geeepted by customers. For contracts
that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is
recognised to the extent that it 1s highly probable that o
significant reversal in the amount of revenue
recognised will not occur.

The amount of revenue recognised is adjusted for
expacted returns, which are estimated based on historcai
data fer sach specific type of product, with a refund liabtity
recognised as part of provisions. The Group roviews its
estimate of expected retums at each reporting date and
updates the amounts of any liabitity accordingly

Areceivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered, since this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional performance abligations
have been satisfisd and only the passage of time 1
required tefore the payment 1s dus.

Bespoke Customer Products

Revenue is recognised for bespoke customer products
with no dlternative use where the Group has a
guaranteed contractuat ght to payment or an over
time basis prior to the delivery of goods to the
customers’ pramisas. Revenue Is recognised on an input
basis by reference to the stage of completion of the
rmanufacturing process, d process which inciudas an
enitaxial wafer manufacture stage and a metrology
and wafer test stage whicn are both typreally
completed within a imited number of days.

SjUaIeIDIS |n!aunu!T‘

The amount of revenue recognised 1s adjusted for
expected returns, wh-ch are estimated based on
historical datg for ecch specific type of product with a
refund liability recognised as part of provisions The
Group reviews 1ts estimate of expected returns ot each
reporting date and updates the amounts of any satility
accordngly

The Group operates supplier managad inventory
arrangements for certain global customers where the
Group is responsible for ensuring that contractuciiy
agreed leveis of inventory are mairtaned at specified
locations. The Group has a guararteed cortractua!
right to payment for the bespoke customner products
rmanufactured under these arrargements with revenue
recogrised on an over time basis

Assels and wabilities ansing from contracts with
customers are separately identified. Contract assets
relate to considerat:on recognised for work cornpleted
out not biled at the balarce sheel date. Contract
iabiities relate to obligations to transfer goods or services
to a custor-ear for which the entity ~as ~eceived
corsideration (or the ar~ourt s dug) fror the custorer,
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 3} December 2022

2. significant accounting policies continued

Intellectual Property Licenses
Intellectual property license income relates to the sale
of finite and perpetual penod ticenses

Revenue is recognised for inteflectual property licenses
with a right to use over a finite penod when contro! of
the license is transferred to the customer in accordance
with the terms of the relevant lcensing agreement and
coliection of the resulting receivable is reasonably
assured.

Revenue is recognised for perpetual inteliectual
property licenses with a right to use at a point n time
when the following conditions are met:

+ when 0 signed agreement or other persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists:

+ the intellectudl property has been delivered:

- the license fee is fixed or determinable, and

+ coilection of the resuiting recewvable 1s reasonably
assured

2.23 segmentadl reporting

Operating segments are reported in g marnes
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Executive Directors, who oversee the allocation of
resources and the assessment of operating segment
performance.

2 24 Finance income and finance costs

Tne Group's finance mcome and finarce cost ircude
interest income and nterest expense.

nterest incorme or experse is recognised using the
sffective interest mathod. The effective interast rate
the rote that exactly discounts estimaoted future casn
payrments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial Instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
f narcicil assat, or the amortisad cost of tne finarcic;
licoiligy.

1 ealculating wherast 'roame and experse. the affective
interest rate is appiied to the grass carrying amnount of
tre asset (wher* the asset s not credit imﬂpoxred) ar to
tne amortised cost of the ~abiity. However, for firancial
assats that have become credht impaired subseguent
to niticn recogn:tion, nterest ncome is caicliated by
applying the effective ntarest -ate to the amrortised cost
of the financiar asset.

2.25 Pension costs

The Group operatas def ~ed comt~aution persor
schemes A defired corttbution D'an s a persior oar
urderwhicn the Groun oayvs fixed cortrioutions nto a
seporote ertty. Controutons are charged "~ the
Consoldgted incore Statement as they oecome
ooaydn.e ™ accardance with ine ruies of the scnerg
The Grouo nas ~o furtner obligat.ors once the
cortrouhors ~ove besr rrade

1B

2.26 share based payments

The Group operates a numper of equity-settled share
Hased compeansation plans under which the Group
receivas services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments in IQE ple. The fair value of the
employee services recaived in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense in the
consolidated income statement and as a credit in
other reserves in tne consolidated staterment of
changes in equity, except for the social security elerment
of the cward which is treated as cash settied with the
lictuity recogrised i other taxation and social security
withir trade and other payables in the consolidated
palance sheet Tne total amount to be expensead is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted. including any market performance conditians
{for exarnple, ar entity’s share price); excluding the
impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions {for example, profitability, sales
growth targeats and remaining an empioyae of the entity
over a specified time period) and including the impact
of ary non-vesting conditions {for exarmple, the
requirement foremployees to save or hold shares for a
specific pariod of time}

Non-market performances and service conditions are
incuded in assumpt:ons atyout the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total expense is
racogn:sed over the vesting period, which 1s the period
over which all of the specified vesting condtiors are to
e satisfied Atthe end of each -eporting pericd, the
Group rewises its estimates of the numper of optiors
that are expedcted to vest based on the non—market
vestng corditions. it recognses tha impact of the
~avision to ongiral estimates, if any in the consoldated
noome stdtement, with a corresponding adiustent to
ecuty

when the aptiors are exercised, the corrpany issuss
new shidres Tre procaeds "aceived net of ary directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
cagita' {nominal value) ard the balancs to srare
premiure.n the company’s own financ:al statemeants,
the grart of share optiors o the empiovees of
subsidicry urdertakings 1s treated as o capitai
cont~bution Spacifically, the far value of ermplayes
senices receved (measured ot the dote of grant} is
recogrised over the vestirg period as an ncrease to
invastrent o sunsidiary undettakings, with a
cor-esponding credit to eguity in the parert entty
frarc.ol statemerts

Tre socidr saourty contoutons oayas'e .n cornactor
wit™ the gratt of the shae opt ors is considered an
riegrdl partof the grant tsef and tee charge w'' ne
treqted as a cosh-settled tarsactior
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2. Significant accounting policies continued
2,27 Foreign currency

ltepns included in the financial stulerments of sach
subsichary are measured using the currency of the
prirnary economic environment in which the subsichary
operates {"the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in sterling, which is
the Group's presentatonal currency.

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the
subsickaries’ functional currency at the rates of
exchange ruling at the date of the transaction, or at the
forward currency hedged rate where appropriate.
Moneatary assets and liabilities 10 foreign currencies are
transiated intn the sukeidiarios’ functional cunenicy at
the rates ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange
differences are taken to the income statement.

The balance sheets of overseas subsidiaries are
transtated into sterling at the closing rates of exchange
af the balance sheet date, whilst the income
statements are translated into sterfing af the average
rate for the period. The resulting transiation differences
are taken directly Lo reserves

Foreign exchange gains and losses on the retransiation
of foreign currency borrowings thot are used to finance
overseas operations are accounted for on the 'net
nvestment’ nasis and are recorded directly in raserves
orovided that the hedge is sffective.

2.28 current and deferred tax

'recome tax far the yeor compnises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the income staterent, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other

cormprehensive income, or directly In equity, respectively

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year using rates substantally enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustments to tax
mayabie in respect of prior years

Amounts recevable from tax authorites in relation to
rasearch and developrment tax relief under the RDEC
schemse dre recognised within operating prafit in the
period in which the research and development costs
are treated as an experse. Where amounts are
autstanding at the yedr end and have not been
formrally agreed, an appropriate estimate of the
amrount is included within other recevables.

Deferred tax s provided i full on terporary differances
between the carryirg amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financio? staternents and the amounts used for
toxation purposes Defarred tax is calculatad at the tax
rates that have been enacted or substantially enactad
at the balance shest date.

Doferrad tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
s probable that future taxaole profits wili be available
against which deductinie temporary differences can be
Ltilised Deferred tax lawilties are "ecogrised for taxabe
ferrporary differences, unisss specifically exempt. Deferred
tax assets and sabilites are offset when there s a legally
enforceanla rigrt to set off current taxation assets against
current taxatior fabyites and it is the -ntertion to settie
these on a ret basis

2.29 investment in subsidiaries

Investrments in subsidianes are neld at cost of
investment less pravision for impairment in the parent
company financial statements.

2.30 Other equity investments

Other equity investrments are heid at cost less provision
for impairmeant in both the parent company and Group
financial statements on the basis that the Group {and
Compcmy) does not have the ability to exert significant
influence or cortrol aver the strategic and operatng
activities of the other equity investments.

2.31 Alternative performance measures

Income Statement

Alternative 'ncome statement performance measures
are disclosed sepdrately in the financial staterments
after a number of adjusted non-cash items, non-
operational iterms and significant infrequent items that
wotlld distort period on pericd cornparability, where itis
deemed necessary by the Directors to do so to provide
furtber understanding of the financial performance of
the Group. Adjusted items are materiai tems of incorne
or expense that have been shown sgparately dus to the
significance of their nature or amount The tax impact of
adjusted items is calcutated applying the relevant
enacted tax rate for each adjusted iterm. Detai's of the
adjusted tems are included in note 5

Balance Sheet

alternative balarce sheet performance measures for
net debt are disclosed separately in the financial
staternents after adjustments to exclude '\ease 1abilities
where 't1s deerned necessary by the Directors to do so
to provide further understanding of the financial
position, gearing and liquidity of the Group

Cashflow Statement

Alterngtive cash flow staterrent perforrmance measures
are disciosed sepdrately in the financial statements that
reflect the cash impact of adjusted items ircluded 'n
alternative income statement performance measures.
adjusted iterms are material iterms of income or expanse
that have been shawn separately due to the
significance of their nature or amount Details of tne
adjusted items are included in noka 5.
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Notes to the financial statements continLied

for the year ended 31 December 2022

3. Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group's principal accounting pohcies are descnbed
N note 2 The application of these policies necessitates
the use of estimates and judgements in a number of
areas. Accordingly, the actual amounts may differ from
these estimates. The main areas involving significant
judgement and estimgtion dre set out below:

a) Criticat accounting judgements in applying the
Group's accounting policies

Joint Venture - Evaluation of rights, leveis of control
and influence

The determination of the level of influence or control that
the Group has over a businass s a mix of contractually
defined and subjective factors that can pe critical to the
appropriate accounting treatment of an entity in the
Group's consolidated financicl staternents, Control or
influence is achieved through Board representation and by
obtaining rights of veto over significant decisions relevant
to the activities of the entity.

Compound Semiconductor Centre Limited (‘'CsC?)
On 9 July 2015, the Group sntered into a joint verture
agreement with Cardiff Uriversity to create the CSC In
the United Kngdom. The commercial purpose of the
CEC s the rasearch, development and rnanufacture of
acvarced compound semiconductor matericls by
metalorgaric vagour phase epitaxy {MOVEE)

The manufactunng and techmcal capabiity of the CSC
was established with the Group contributing fxed cssets,
transferring employges (including the current Managing
Diractor of the CSC) and licensing ntaliectual property, with
Cardiff University contriputing cash The Group also entered
nio an agreermert with CSC that conveyed to the Group
the rignt to Lse the CSC's assets, estabishing the Group as
the CSC's cormerstone custormer during the early stages of
the davelopment of the CSC's business (see note 30).

The Shareholder Agreement estaplshes that the CSC s
ointly cantralied by the sbareholders. ey decisions,
defned os oot of contractually agreed Board reservedd
matters, require aporova: from directors réprasentng
eden jpirt verture partner who Nave squal Board
representat on and voting rights

The Group does not control the CSC seh that 'ts 5O%
equity nvestmant 'n the joint venture 1§ accounted for
usirg the aquity metnod Ir dceordance with the
accourting oo.Cies set out in ~ote 2

ns

Joint Venture - Right of use asset

The Group estabiished CSC with its joint venture partner
as a centre of excellence for the development and
commerciaksation of advanced compound
sermiconauctor wafer products,

On establishment of the joint venture, the Group
contributed assets as part of its initicl investment and
entered into an agreerment with the joint venture that has
heen axtended in the current vear and conveys to the
Group the rgnt to use the assets of the ioint venture for o
mimmum perod up to 31 March 2024 This agrsernert,
which containg nghts attcching to the use of the ioint
venture's assets meets the definition of a legse in the
Group's udgement, due to the variable noture of the lease
payments, which are directly linked to the actual usage of
the assets, the lease payments continue to be excluded
from the measurement of right of use assets andtiease
abilities with the vanable jease costs recognised in
opearating expensas in the income statement s incursed.

Joint Venture - Classification of preterence

share debt

The Group classifies its preferance share financial assets
due from the CSC as debt instrurments, rather than
tredting the preference shares as part of the Group's nat
nvaestmeart n the CSC This is on the basis that thase
preference shares, redeemable ot par, contingent on
the generaton of cash by C5C, ae not desmead to be
tantarmount to aquity

preference share fundirg was provided to the CSC by
the loint venture partners to accalerta the
developrient and growt of the CSCs busiress. The
contractual arrargements betweaen the joirt venture
partners and the CSC require that any surbws cash
generated oy the C5C is used to redeem the preference
share funding provided by the joint venture partners as
envisaged in the CSC busiress plan contained wathin
the ongenal Jo'rt Verture Sharenoder agraement.

Upon transition to IFRS 9. the Group assessed that this
trancal asset meeats the requirenents to be measured
at amortised cost 0 ine vath the treptment previously
adopted under AS 38, The instrumert s held within a
business modeal whose so.e objectve s to coliect the
contractual cush fows, These cash flows, in turn,
represant solely payments of prircipa ard irterast on
the principas amoeurt outstanding
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Joint Ventures — Credit risk associated with
preference share debt

As explained in note 213, expected credit losses are
measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for
stage 1 assets, or lfetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3
assets. The Group has assessed, based on its joint
venture's latest forecast, that recovery of the preference
share debt within a reasonabte period remains unlikely
such that the credit risk remains at o level where the
defintion of default nas been met and the asset
continues to be classified at stage 3. In making this
assessment, qualitative and quantitative recsonadle
und supportabie torward-looking information
associated with the forecast future financial
performance and cash generation of CSC has been
used (see nots 35 for detaits of the calculation of the
loss allowance and the associated impairment of the
fincnoial asset ),

Intangible assets — Technology development costs
{distributed feedback laser technology assets)

The Group has product development costs totalling
£3,439.000 linked to its distributed feedback laser
technology where the Group has taken the decision to
discontinue the developrent and commercialisation of
the techinclogy.

Although distributed feedback laser technology has a
number of potential applications, the levet of customer
ard partner engagement that is requited to develop
the technology nas rermaired low, a position that bas
led to the decisior to discortinue the development and
commercidlisdtion of the technology given the fack of a
clear near-term route to the detivery of commercial
volurnes and cash flows.

The currentiack of visibiiity on the timeiine to
commercidiise the product development technology
assets and the decision to discontinue development of
the assets, has resuited in o non-cash intangible asset
charge of £3438,000 trat has been charged to ‘selling,
geneal and administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated income statement, foliowing the write-
down of all cistributed feedback aser product
development Cost assets to £l

intangible assets — Technology development
assets not yet avaoilable for use

Intangible assets include development cost assets not
yet avoilable for use of £4,278,000 (2021 £3,046,000)
which have been reviewed for impairment as at the
reporting date.

The Group 's cormmitted to the technical cormpletion
and commerciglisation of each of its tecnnology
development assets which are governed and controded
by refgrence to o combinaton of technical
development cbiectives ard market and customer
ralated commercial plans. The -ecoverabe arnount of
sach technology developrment project 1s determined
nased on volue in use ca'culations, using cash flow
orojections niine with the expected useful ecoromic ife
of eacr asset The valua in use calculat:ons are based
on mandagermeant approved rsk-adjusted cash ffow

forecasts for each project and comprise assumptions
that include cost to complete forecasts for each
technology development, and commercial forecasts
ralating to the level of market penetration, revenue and
cost of production for each technology.

Adjustmerits to profit

Alternative performance measures are disclosed
sepcrately in the financial statements after o number of
adjusted exceptional, non-cash, non-operational or
significant and infrequient tems that wouid distort penod
on period comparability, where it is deemad necessary
by the Directors to do so to provide further understanding
of the financial performance of the Group Details of the
adjusted tems nre included in note 5.

b} critical accounting estimates and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

3.1Goodwill impairment testing

Wireless

Folowing the assessrment of the goodwill allocated to the
wireless cash generating unit {CGU'). to which goodwil of
£64138,000 (2021 £57173000) is ciocated, the directors
consider that the current year impairment of £82.382000
{2021 £nil) and the associtted recoverable amount of
goodwil allocated to the Wirsless CGU of £nil (2021
£57173,000) to be sensitive to the achieverrent of the
Group's five-year internai forecasts which have been
adjusted to exciude the impact of expansionary capital
expenditure and certain inked earnings and cash flows.
The fiveryear forecasts comprise forecasts of revenue,
rmaterial costs and site manufacturing abour and
overhead costs, based on current and anticipated maiket
conditions that nave been considerad and approved oy
the Board. whlst the Group 's aole to manage most of its
Wireless CGU costs, significant elements of the Wiraless
revenus forecasts are inherently linked to global demand
for smartphones and the adoption of 5G technology,
where uncertanty about both the timing and level of
growth remains such that the revenusa growtn rates used
within the forecasts are a key sensitivity given current
giobal macre-economic conditions and consurmer,
market and regulatory dynamics.

S)UAWIBLDAE [DISUDBULY

The sersitivity analysis in “espect of the recoverable
amount of Wireless' goodwill is presented n note 13,
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2022

3. Critical accounting judgements and key
saurces of estimation uncertainty continued

Photonics

Following the assessrment of the goodwill allocated to
the Photonics cash generating unit ({CGUY; to wiich
goodwil of £7,990,000 (2021 £7,124,000) is allocatad, the
directors cansider that the current vear impairment of
£334,000 (2021 £ni) and the associated recoverable
amount of goodwill ailocdted to the Photonics CGU of
£7,656,000 {2021 £7124,000) to be sensitive to the
achievement of the Group's five-yaar nternal forecasts
which have been adjusted to exclude the impact of
expansionary capital expenditure and certain imked
earnings and cash flows. The five-year forecasts
comprise forecasts of revenue, material costs and site
manufacturing, labour and overnead costs based on
current and anticipoted market conditions that have
been considered and approved oy the Board, Whilst the
Group is able to manage most of its Photonics CGU
costs, significant elements of the Photonics revenus
forecasts arg inhierently tinked to global dermand for
srmartohores, the prolferation of VCSEL technology 1o
advarced sensing applications beyond existing 3D
sensing, the adeption of high definition infrared imaaging
and sensing in health monitoring and envirormental
applications and the adoption of 5G tachnalogy far
telecommunication and data communication, where
uncertainty about both the trming and 1evet of growth
remains such that the revenue growtn rates used within
the forecasts are o kev sensitivity given current giobal
acro-econoric conditions and consumer markst
and regulatory dynarnics

The sensitvity aralysis in -espect of the recoverable
amount of Photonics’ goodwill s oreserted i~ note 13

3.2 Useful economic lives of development cast
intangible ossets

The perods of amertisation used for oroduct and
process developmert cost assets require estmates to
ha made on the estimated usefu, economic ves of the
mtangible assets to determme an appropriats rate of
amrortisaton. Capitaised developrnent costs are
armortised 'nline with the expected productor volume
profile of the products to wnich they relate over the
period during which economic bensfits ars axpected to
be received, which s typ.cally petween 3-8 years

Tre carryirg value of daveloprment cost atangible
assets 's £22,888000 {2021 £27,344200) The
amort'saton charge for developmant cost ~tang bie
assets in the current year s £6,757.000 (2021 £58,49¢ 000).
T usaful aconom ¢ ives of devoloprmenrt cost rtargib'e
assats were reduced oy | vedr across the wroig portfoio
of assets, tne impact o cuant year arortisatior
wold be to increase the charge ov £122°000 {2021
£1I2G,000) to £7.694,00C (2021 £7 579,60C)

120

3.3 valuation of lease liabilities and right of use
assets

The apphcation of IFRS 16 requires the Group to make
udgrnents and astimates that affect the valuatior of
the lease liabiiiies and the valuation of right-of-use
assets that inciudes determining the contracts in scops
of IFRS 16, determining the contract term and
determining the nterast rate used for discountng of
future cash flows

The lease term determined by the Group generally
comprises the non-cancellabie pernod of iease
contracts, panods covered by an oplion to extend the
lscasea if the Group s reasondbly certain to exarcise that
cpticn, and periods covered by an oplion to terminate
the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option.

txercise of extension options, principally existing in the
Group's property leases, are assurned to be reasongbly
certain, except for the Group's Newport facilty where it
has been assumed that it is reasonabiy certain that the
Group will exercise its buy-out option ot the end of the
imtial iedse tarm The same term applied to the length of
the iease contract has been applied to the useful
economic fife of nght-of-use assets.

The present value of the lease payments applicable to
tne Group's portfoun of property and plant [sases has
been detarrnired using a discount rate that represants
the Group's mcramentdl rate of borrswing, assessed as
2.25%-265% deperding on the ledse characteristics.

it the incremental rate of borrowing decreased by 010%
the impact would be to incredse the leqase liability Dy
£205,000 (2021, £246,000)

3.4 Share based payments

Share based payment charges assaoiated with 'ong-
term rcantwve plans are calculated taking account of
an assessmert of the achievablity of ralevant
pertormance conditions The share basead payrent
charge for iong-termn ncentive owards woud be
£2,03C,000 (2621 £365000) greatar m 2022 f it wars
assumad that all perforarce critena for exsting
awards wouid bae meat
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty continued

3.5 Preference shuare debt - Calculation of loss
dllowance

The Group classifies its preference share financict assets
due from its joint venture, CSC, as debt instruments.

The carrying value of the Group's preference share debt
i1s £nil (2021, £nil} after the recognition of expected credit
losses and the application of the loss absorption
reguirernents of IAS 2838

Expected credit oss impairment continues to be
assassed at £7.822,000 (2021 £7,922,000)

When rmeasuring expected credit loss on the preference
share debt due from CSC, the Group usas reasonabie
and supportable forward-tooking information, which 1s
primarily based on assumptions about the forecast
future financial perfarmance of CSC. The ECL model
caleuiation 1s based on three key inputs: exposure at
default, loss given default, and probability of default.
Exposure at default is the carrying amount of the
preference share debt,

Loss given defauit is an estimate of the ©ss dnsing on
default Itis based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the Group
expect to receive, considering cash flows from any
collateral

Probabiity of defauit is an estimate of the likelihood of
default over a given hme horizon, the calcuiction of
which ircludes historical data, assumptions and
expectations of the future financial performance of CSC.

Default events and associated probability of default is
assessed by reference to arange of scenarios based
principally on assumphons and expectations of the
future firancial performance of CSC that have been
dernved from CSC's Board approved 2023 Budget
extrapolated over the repayment period using a long-
term growth rate of 2%

Folowing a review of a combinator of factors, including

CSC's pregress and achieverent agamnst its business

objectives, current cash flow forecasts for CSC, and the

capacity of C5C to redeen the csbt, the Group has

assessed that a postion of default continues to exist or

this instrument {ses note 3{a)) and as a result, Ifetme
CL continues to be caiculated.

ufetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that
will result from all possible default events over the
expected ife of the dabt instrument and is the
differsnce between the contractuc: cash flows due and
those that the Group expect to receive, cons'denng
cash flows from any caollateral.

The result of this assessment is that the Group considers
the ECL to equa the carrying amount of the mstrument
and therefore the financial asset -emains fully \paired

3.6 Preference share debt - Long term interest

The Group treats its preference share financial assets
due from its joint venture, CSC, as a long-term interest in
an equity accounted investee on the basis that the
factors that have led to the recegnition of an expected
credit loss impairment {note 3.5} indicate that
repayment of the preference share debt is no lenger
expected in the foreseaable future.

As along-term interestin arn equity accounted investee,
the group has applied the loss absorption requirement
in1AS 28 38 to the carrying amount of the preference
share financial asset, after the application of the
expected credit loss described in note 3.5. Application of
the lose absorption requirernents, after taking account
of expected cradit losses, continue to result in a position
where the Group recognises no further aliocation of joint
venture losses to the preference share financial asset as
the carrying value of the preference share delbt is £nil
{2021 £n1l} after recognition of expected cradit losses.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2022

4. Segmentai analysis
4.1Description of segments and principal activities

The Chief Operating Decision Maker is defined as the Executive Leadership Team The Executive Leadership Team,
consisting of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Gfficer, Chief Operations Officer, Chief Technology Officer,
Chuef People Officer, Executive VP Global Business Development, Sales, Executive VP Product Management and the
Executive VP General Counsel & cornpany secretary, consider the group's performance from a product perspective
and have identified three primary reportable segments;

- Wireless - this part of the business manufactures and setls compound semiconductor material for the wireless
market which includes radio frequency devices that enabie wireless communications

+ Photonics - this part of the business manufactures and sells compound semiconductor mdterial for the photonics
market which includes apphcations that either transmif or sense light, both wvisible and infrared

+ CMOSS++ —- this part of the business manufactures and sells advanced semiconductor maternatls related to silicon

which include the combination of the advarced properties of compound semiconductors with those of iower cost
sihcon technologies

The Executive Leadership Team primarily use revenue and a measure of adjusted operating profit to assess the
performance of the operating segments. Measures of total assets and liabitties for each reportabie segrment e
not reported to the Executive Leadership Teanr and therefore have not been disclosed

4.2 Adjusted Operating Loss

Adjusted operating loss exciudes the effects of significart non-cash, non-operationad or signficant and infrequent
iterns of 'ncome ond expenditure whick may hove ansmpact on the quolity of earnings, such as restructuring costs,
CEC recrutment costs and impairments where the impairment is the resuit of an isclated, non-racurring event
Adjusted operating loss a'so excludes the stfects of equity settisd share based payments.

Finance costs dare not allocated ta segrments because treasury and the casn position of the group s Managed
centraiiv.

2022 gy
Revenue e o E’QOD ¥ IJ/,VJ‘
Wircloss - - 75015 53217
Photonics 584537 35067
CMOS 2841 2812
Revenue ' 167,494 154,006
Adjusted operating ioss
Wiieloss ’ 4705 7,305
Photonics a2 1737
CMOS " + (1513} (585)
Central corporate costs (e (149'C)
Adjusted operating loss ’ (3,557) (6,454)
Adjusted items (seenote 5) ] ) ] ) ) ) ) 7 B
Wircless ' (63754) (2:28)
Protornics (54738} {3,041
oSt (0) {14)
Contral Zorperate costs o7 I adn)
Operating loss ' ' ' ' (72,976) (19,978)
Fironce costs {2427, 223,
Loss before tax ’ (75,403) (22.191)
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4. Segmental analysis continued

4.3 Revenue — Disaggregation of segmental revenue from contracts with customers

The group derives rovenue from the lransfer of goods, services and intellectual property over time and at a point in
time. Revenues from external customers derive from the sale of standard or bespoke compound semiconductor
material, or from the sale or licensing of INtellectuct property.

Wireless Photonics CMOSS++ Totol
2022 2022 2022 2022
_Disoggregate Segment Revenue €000 E'000 £'000 £000
Timing of revenue recognition
At g point n time
Standard custormer products 14493 14,493
intellectual property licenses 1500 1,500
Over time
Bospoke cistamor products 76015 72644 2.841 151,501
Total revenue o T 76,016 88,637 2,841 167,484
-\«\Il-n‘.\f)sx - >‘r;u[<)-me,-s RIS+ 4 lemal
20m 2021 o0 un|
_(ns:'xqgrr:gur-z S iveent R o V00 CO00 00 0006
Timing of revenue recognition
At apoint in time
Stondard customer products 1780 1,760
Intellectual property licenses
Over time
Bespoke customer products 83,217 55307 2812 142.336
Total revenue 83,217 68,067 2,812 154,096

Included within bespoke custormer product revenue s revenue of £62571000 {2021 £63.725,000) that relates to
supplier managed inventory arrangements where biling occurs from the earlier of a specified contractual backstop
date forlowing detivery, or whern the product is drawn from inverttory by the customer.

Revenues of approximaotely £78,698,000 {202} £64,522000) are derived from three customers {202k three) who each
account for graater than 10% of the Group's total revenues

2022 2022 e 0

Customer St ey £'000 % revenue s N1 Ya DL
Custorner | Wircloss 3772 23% 34,948 23%
Customer 2 Photorics 219584 13% 19.978 13%
Photorics & Wircloss 18,013 n%, 3588 5%,

Customer 37

There are No customers I the CMOS++ segment that account for greater than I6% of the Group's totar revenue.

Clstomer 37 202215 not the some customer as Customer 30in 202 .
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 20272

4.4 Geographical information
Revenue by location of customer

Americas
united States of America
Rost of Amcncas

Europe, Middle East & Africa (EMEA)
France

Sonmany

lsracl

United Kirigdom

Rest of EMEA

Asia Pacific

Pooﬁie‘s Republic of China
Japan

Tawwan

Rest of Asia Pacific

Total revenue

2022
£°000

2208

N2.284
i

16,409
2104
3288
3080
4578
3387

38,790
5,861
13037
3221

5,571

167,424

210
L 0N

99,842
09817
25

13,476
2166
3892
1598
3643
276

40,778
Caoan
THT
21247
2003

154,096

Non-currert assets by locator

Proﬁaty,pluni mdﬂgriem ) Intongible ci’ii_ _ PRightofusegssets
2022 2hi 2022 Ealt] 2022 iy
E'DOO_ AL £°000 o frn 77v*£’000 o v‘wu_
wsa T sesea an924 20475 10.060 0071
Singapore 5,283 9623
Taran 32.044 388 305 4268 36 £26
LK 48427 51435 14,582 5798 30855 3337C
127,055 ' 129,730 37,014 95,866 41,432 44,267
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5. Alternative performance measures

The Group's results report certain financial measuras before a numiber of adjusted items that are not defined or
recognised under IFRS, including adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation, adjusted
sarnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation margin, adjusted operating loss, adjusted logs bhefore
income tax and adjusted losses per share The Directors belisve that the adjusted performance measures provide a
useful companson of business trends and performance, and dallow management and other stakeholders to better
compare the performance of the Group between the current and prior yaar, excluding the effects of certain non-
cash charges, non-operational iterns and significant infrequent items that would distort period on period
comparability. The Group uses these adjusted performance measures for interndl planring, budgeting, reporting
and assessment of the performance of the business.

The tables below show the adjustments made to arrive at the adjusted performance measures and the impact on
the Group's reported financial performance

2022 ’ ’ 207)
Adjusted Adjusted Reparted Ledpustist Syeipstecy LS LRI EE
Rosults tems Results fRersults hams RosLlts
£'000 £'000 €000 SO0 [ReD] 5NN
Revenue 167,494 - 167,494 154,096 - 154,086
Cost of sales (140,962} (149} (la1) (135,325) (27 {136.452)
Gross profit - . 26,832 (149) 26,383 18,77 (1,127) 17,644
SGEA (25,780) (42,431) 32m) (25,336) (4,9886) {30322)
Impairment of INtangibles (68,155) (65,155) {7.am) (7.41)
Impairment of receivables {2.300) {2,200) 34 34
other losses (381) (381)
Profit on disposal of PPE and intangibles (628) 1316 688 77 77
Operating loss (3,557)  (69,419)  (72.976) (6,454) (13,524) (19,978)
fincnoe costs (2.427) (2427} (2213) 7 {2.213}
Loss before tax - (5.984)  (62,419)  (75,403) (8,667) (13,524) (22.19)
Taxation 54 798 862 o514 1803 (8.81)
Loss for the period (5.920) (68,621) (74,541) (12,281) (n,721) (31,002)
2022 o LI
Pre-tox Tax Adjusted rre s Ten Avlistedd
Adjustment Impact Results Addustiment IFgwact #essulls
€000 £000 £000 [0 L0y Y00y
Share based payments (223) {200) (a23) {1891) (13) (1.704)
Share based paymerts CEC
recrutment (109) (109) -
CEO Recruitrnent {98) (96) {zan) (741}
Impdirment - goodwiil (82.715) (62.716) -
Imparment  other intangdles (34395 724 {(2,n5) (741} 1.816 (5,596}
Rostructuning (482} (4,152) 3581) (3.681)
Rostructunng  protit on cisposcl of PPE 1.318 274 1,580 o -
Totat T (69,419) 798 (68.621)  (13,524) 1,803 (n,721)

The nature of the adjusted items is gs follows:

+ Share based payments - The charge {2021 charge) relates to share based payments recorded in accordance
with IFRS 2 'Share pased payment’ of which £149,000 {2021 £1127,000) has osen classified within cost of saies in
gross profit and £74,000 (2021 £564,000) has been cassified as selling, gensral and administrative expenses in
operating profit. £r1i cash has been defraved in the year (2021 £46,000) .n respect of employer sociat secunty
contriputions following the exercise of unapproved empioyee share optons

« Chief Executive Off cer recrutment - Chief Exacutive Offcer racruitment costs incide the Cheef Executive Officar's
starting bonus of £1,000,000. of which £200,000 relates to a share based award cnd £800,000 reiatas to a cash
award payabe over tre first three years of empiovment, costs associated with the transition of the former Chief
Executive to a non-axecutive role and recruitrmant fees. The chargs of £205,000 {2021 £741,000) nciudes share
award andt cash costs associated with the new Chisf Executive Officer's starting bonus of £435,000 {2G21 £nil),
settlerent costs and legal fess of £nil (2021, £319.000) associated with: the t-arsition of the former Crief Executve
Officer to a1 nor-aexecutive role a~d a cred't of £230000 (202] £422.000 fees) ralating to externa recruitment fees
Cash costs defrayed in the period total £715,000 {202t £152.000)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the vear ended 31 December 2022

- Restructuring — The charge of £4,152,000 (2021 £3,681,000) relates to restructunng costs associated with the
announced closure of the Group’'s manufacturing facility in Pennsylvania, USA and the closure of the Group's
manufacturing faciity 0 Singapore.

Restructunng charges of £1136,000 {2021 £661000) relate to smplovee related costs associatad with the

announced closure of the Group's manufacturing faclity n Pennsylvania, USA. The charge was classified as selling,

general and administrative expenses within operating loss. Cash costs defrayed in the year total £6806,000 (2021,

£342,000).

- Restructuring charges of £3,0i6000 (2021 £3020,000) consist of empioyes raiatad costs of £220,000 {2021
£1540,000), site-decommissioning costs of £1512,000 {2021 £1480,000), asset write downs of £863,000 (2021 £nif)
and asset transfer costs of £421000 (2021 £nl) relating to the onnounced closure of the Group's manufacturing
facility in Singapore. The charge was classified as ssling, general and adrrinistrative expenses within operating
loss. Cash costs defrayed in the year total £5088,000 (2021, £nil).

- Restructuring profits on disposal of £1.316,000 (202% £niij consist of the sale of gssets in Singapore followirg the
cessation of trade in the year and the sale of assets in North Caroling to faciltate the consoldaton of the Group's
manufacturing operations frorm Pennsylvanic. Proceeds recewved in the year total £6,073,000 (2021 £nil) with a
profit on disposal of £1,316,000 {2021 £ni) classified within Profit on disposal of intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment’

« Imparment of goodwit -~ The non-cash charge of £62,716,000 {2021 £nil) rectes to impairment costs associcited
with the Wirsless CGU of £62.382,000 (202} £nit) and the Photorics CGL of £334,000 {2021 £nil) - see note 13.

+ Impairment of other intangibles — The non-cash charge of £3,439,000 {2021 £7,41,000) relates to the impairment of
certain technology development costs and irtellectual property potent assets.

+ The ron-cosh mpairment charge of £3,438,000 relates to the impairment of distributed feedback laser
technology developrent costs where the Group has taken the decision to discontinue the developmenrt and
commercialisation of the technology.

« The prior year non-cash impadirmeant charge of £7.41.000 related to the impairmeant of cREO™ filter technology
developmert costs and patent assets and the impair-ant of PRotonic guasi crystal technalogy related
development cost where the Group had taken the decision 1o pouse deveopment related activites which have
not recommenced in the current period giver the lack of wisibifity over the tirneline to commercidlisaton of each
of ihe technologies.

* The cashimpact of adjusted tems in the consolidated cash flow staterment rapresent costs associated with the
recruitment of tne group's new Chisf Executive Officer (£715.000). onarous contract royalty payrments reatad Lo the
Group's cREQ™ technology (£370,000), payment of emplovee related costs associated with the announced
closure of the Group's site in Pennsylvanic (£606.000) and nayment of employee and site reldted
decommissioning costs associated with the ciosure of the Grouw's manufactunng fociity In Singopors
(£5.088,000) net of the sale proceseds associdted with certan iterms of plant and equiprrert sold as part of the
ciosure of the Group's manufacturng facility in Smgapors {£6.07300C)

Adjusted EBITDA {adjusted eamings before interest, tax depreciation and amartsat on) is ca'culated as fonows:

022 FORN
- — o Beee S
Loss attributable to equity shareholders (74.541) (31,002)
Finonce eosts 2427 2213
Tox (252) 261
Depreciation of property, plart and eguiprrent 14329 13,309
Lepreciation of nght of use ossers 398 3854
Arnortiscton of Intangible fixed assets L7B4 58047
Loss, {profit) or cisposal of PPE and irtargiblcs 528 g
Adjusted ltorrs 55473 3524
Share basod pdymoms - - ' 223 58
Share based payiments Chief Exacutive Qficer recraitren: g
Chicf Expoutive Officor rocoaintont 95 T
RosTLoLIbg 4722 358
Restructunirg  profit or disposol of PPE 3
Impormrert ohintorgibles [Slaklstsl 74T
Adjusted EBITDA 23,365 13,679
Adjusted EBITDA margin 14% 12%

Dxehocdn s tbe nd ety ont Resteninrg - ornf tar 4 ALt ERD b 3 3R atal, AeTIsnsn as oret o e g S addlstont e
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6. Operating loss

2022 v
] £°000 ¥ 000
The operating loss is stated after charging/{crediting):
Depreciation of proparty, plant and eguipment 14,529 13,309
Depreciation of right of use assets 3981 38564
Amortisation of Intangible osscts 7784 8047
Services provided by auditors 567 382
Expensos retoting to variable leasc payments not included in the measurement of the lcase
licbility 5,822 5234
Resecarch and developrment L7 1968
Exchange lasses/ {gains) 1,33 2378
Cost of raw materials consumed 62,593 59,468
(Profit) on dispasal of lixed qssets {688) {77}
Otherlagscs  fair value movements on darivative financial imstrumonts 38
Adjusted iterns (see note 5) o 50,419 13.524
Impairment of miongiblc assclts ’ ' 66,155 740
Restructunng 2836 3581
Share based payments 332 1691
95 741

VCEO recrustment

Expenses relating to vanabie lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability principally relate

to the variable cash costs of production based on usage that are payable to the Group's joint venture, CSC,

associdted with the Group's night of use of the joint venture’s assets (note 3 and 30).

2012
£000

N
¥ 00D

Services provided by auditors
Feos payable to the company's guditer and its associates for the audit of the parent compary

and consolidated financial statements 547 335

Foos payable to the company s cuditor and 115 associares for othor services

« Audit of the company's subsidiaries 20 27

« Audit related assurance services 20

Total KPMG LLP (group auditors) 567 382
127
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2022

7. Employee costs
2032 202
o X £'000 o0 _
Employee costs (including directors’ remuneration)
wages and sakanes 39410 37743
Sociol scourity costs 4,040 3,279
Other pension costs 1,969 1801
Shore based payvments 332 1691
45,751 44,514
022 0
Number PRl wer
Average number of employees (including directors)
Manutocturing 531 545
Salling, gencral and administrative 134 134
' ) ' 666 680

Directors’ emotuments, share options and other long-term incentive plan details, including details of all outstanding
options and long-term incentive awards, and the value of director pension contributions pad, are set out 'n the
Remuneration Report where the relevant disciosures hove been highlighted as audited Audited tables include
‘Single tota! figure of remuneration for Executive Directors’ on page 80, 'Scheme interest awarded in 2022, Exit
payments made in the vedr, Single total figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Directors’ an page 82 and 'LTIF

on page 83.

Key management within the Group comprises members of the Executive Leadership Team and Non-Executive
Drrectors. Compensation to key managementin 2022 totaled £2,577.91 (2021 £2,404,031), consisting of emoliments
ard other benefits in kind of £3,409,103 (2021 £2,315,815) and pension contriputions of £168,808 (2021 £88,218). The
charge for share based payment awards to key managemsant totaied £132,005 {2021 £708,681). A provision ard
charge for terminotion costs pavabe to key maragement who have 'eft the business totalied £150.00C {2021 £nil),

8. Finance (costs)fincome

Bank and other lcars
Interest expense o leasc liabilies

2022

. Foo0
(1069}
{1328)

(2,427)

ol
¥ OO

{905]
(1.308)
(2,213}
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9. Taxation

2022 v
_InGoma tax expense £000 000
Cusrent tax on profits for the year 89 1124
Total current tax charge 89 1124
Criginabon and reversat of temporary differences (73) 8199

Adjustment In respact of prior yoars ) (238) (512)
Total deferred tax charge/ (_creclii) ) (951} 7,687
Total tax chargef{credit) 7 (882)  &.an

The tax on the Group's |oss before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise from applying the
stondard rote of corporation tax in the UK of 1IS60% (2021 19.00%} as follows:

2022 anal
- £000 v 00N
Loss on ordinary octivitics botore taxation 7 7 _ (75.403) (22001}
Tax charge ot 19.00% thercor (202119.00%) 14,327 4216
Effccts of
Expenscs not acductible for tax purposes {14108) (084)
Overscas tax rate differences 2,262 196
Tax losses for which ne deferred tax assct was recognised (21859) {4135)
Darecognition of previously recognised deferred tax assets {3190)
Share option schemes (263) {428}
Agjustmonts In respect of prior yoars o 7 800 512
Total tax {charge)/credit for the year 862 (8,811)

Recognition of deferred tax assets is based on an assessment of future cash flow forecasts and the associated
profitability of the Group's operations, an assessment which has restricted the abiity of the Group to recognise
defarred tax assets for current vear UK, US and Singapore trading losses

Deferred tax asset recognition nas been restricted in the UK to reflect future forecast profitability. an assessment that
includes the impact of softress in trading forecasts as a result of the industry-wide semiconductor downturn and the
Croup's consolidation and investrient in central and functonal roles in the UK. As a result, lower utiisation of UK deferred
tax assets is projected, which has restrictad the aiitity to recogrise deferred tax assets for current year losses

Deferred tax asset recognition has been restricted in the US to reflect future forecast profitability, an assessment that
InGiudes the impact of softness in trading forecasts as a result of the industry-wide semiconductor downturnand
the Group's conselidation of its US manufacturing operations. As a result, 'ower utilisalion of US deferred tax assets is
projected which has restricted the apility to recognise deferred tax assets for current year losses

Deferred tax asset recogniton has been rastricted in Singapore due to the ciosure of the manufactunng site in 2022,

The share option schermes amount shown above represents the change in the axpected tax impact on the exercise
of options principally refliecting the reduction in future corporatior tax deductions associated with a reduction in the
rumber of options where performanrce criteria are expected to be achieved.

The Group's resutts report certain financiol measures after a number of adjusted itemswith a tax impact of £788.000
{2021 £1803,000 credit) as detaied in note 5

Deferred tox s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the relevant terrtary 0 the period whenr the
assget s realised or the lability s settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been substantively enacted at
the balance shest date.

France Act 2021, weich was substantvely enacted on 24 May 2021 included legisiation to increase the rate of corporatior
tax to 25% from 1 April 2023 In the Auturnn Staterment In Noverniber 2022, the UK government confirmed that the increuse in
corporation tax rate to 25% fror | april 2023 will go abead. Accordingly, any closing UK deferred tex assat or liability i the
francics staterents has been recognised in accordance with the rate enacted os part of tne finance Act 2021 with any
timing differances expected to reverse on or after 1 April 2023 recognised at a corporation tox rote of 25%.

2022 204

_Amountsrecognised directly in equity £'000 Y

Aggregate current ond deferred tax ansing In the period ard not recogniscd in net profit or loss

of other cornprehensive income but directly debited or credited to eguity

Doterred tax. Share options gl 193]

Total tax (charge)/credit to equity for the year 9l (93)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the vear endad 31 December 2022

10. Deferred Taxation

2022 A

Deferred tax - £D00 ¥ 000
At1January (2.080) 5787
Incame statement (charge}/credit recognised n the year a51 (7687}
Tox charge recognised diroctly in oguity L {83)
Exchange differonces ) _ ) ) (47) o {am
At 31 December ) ) ) (1.065)  (2,060)

The amount of deferred tax asset expected to unwind within the next twelve months s £nil {(202% £nit} 0 relation to
utihsation of tax losses. The movemart in deferred tax assets and habilities dunng the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction. 's as follows

Group
’ ) ) . Acoelur;ned
capital
Allowances Intangibles Total
Defarred tox labilities £000 £°000 £000
At January 2021 (9,795) (4,696) (14,491)
Cradit to incame staterment (.483) 561 (932)
Exchange differcnces _ i jB?) i (20) (02}
At 31 December 2021 " (n370)  (4155)  (15,525)
{Charge) credit to income stotoment (5986) 390 394
Exchange differences ) {4882 B (508)
At 31 December 2022 before set-off ' (12,454) (3183)  (15,537)
et off of tax” ’ 14,572
At 31 December 2022 alter set-off i (1,065)
ToxLosses " other “Yotal
Defetrad tax assets e ew00 gm0 E000
atijanuary 2021 ) 19,160 1,098 20,258
Charged to income statemont B218) {539) (5755)
Charged to oquity : (a3} {g3)
Exchange aiffercnees ) 52 3 5%
At 31 December 2021 7 12,886 469 13,465
Charged o incomo statemont 595 {134) 57
Charged 1o equity & kel
Exchange differences ) 458 1 458
At 31 December 2022 before set-olf ' ' 14,149 423 14572
set ort of tax” ' ' _ 7 7 (12572)

At 31 December 2b22 uftel: set-off' ) -

© Deterred tax assets and deterred wr ramitios can oy, b offset o the statement of financial pestior Fthe antity nas the cgat ightto satte
currert ax Amounts Lr g et basis anda the deferrec tax nts are evied by the same tang authanty —n the sarme cnoty or ditferart
anttics that intend o reause the asset 2nd sattie the iabiliny &t the same tme

Deferred tax assets ae recogrsed for tax osses camed forward 1o the axtent that the rea sation of the rexatad tax
benefit through futurs taxanie profts from tre samre trade is probabie. The Group assesses future forecast taxable
orofit as probabie oy reference to its five- year oo, using underhving casr flow forecasts bosed on those used in the
Sroun's goodwill mpairment rev ew. Any potertiar deferred tax asset assessed by refererce to the leve of future
foracast toxabie oroft over this fya-year pernod has ¢ the current yaar, baer rastroted to the extent of taxao.a
termoorary differences due to the Group's curent t ~ancial perforrmance ard recent »story of taxabie osses r ts UK
o5 and Singapcre operations,

Tre Group d'd not racogn se deferred ~come tax assets of £33 238000 {2021 £3126000C) < resnect of tax losses
greounting fo £145,204000 (2021 7124.808 00C) thot oo™ be carred forwvard agamst futu-e taxabie ncome. The
defer-ed tav asset car e recogrsed f suffoert profts from the savre trade arse n fulure neriods

Tre Groln did not recogrse defarad tax assats of £1527.060 (2021 £1268000) ir raspect of carred forward mot ordl
tox cradts o tre I&D Sxpenditure Tradt Schare n the WK
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10, Deferred Taxation continued

Tax losses in the UK totalling £75,610,000 (202 £71530,000) have no date of expiry. Tdx losses in Singapore totalling
£31,880.000 {2021 £20,714,000} have no date of expiry. Tax losses in the US can be cared forward against future
taxable income for 20 years befare expiring. Of the Group's total US tax losses of £86100,000 {2021 £95,175,000) losses
armounting to £8,462,000 and £8,071,000 expire in 2023 and 2024,

Deferred tax labilities have not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxss that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries, as such amounts are permanently reinvested.

A credit of £657,000 (2021 £376,000) has been recognised within cperating profit in reigtion to claims made under
the R&D Expenditure Credit Scheme {RDEC) in the UK.

Company
Shore Other Timing
Taxtosses Cptions Differetices Total
Defarrod tux assets £000 £'000 £'000 £000
At1Jonuary 2021 3703 283 (n 3975
Cregited/ (chorged) to income statement {3703} (124) 25 (3.802)
Charged to equity o {45) {a8)
At 31 December 2021 ' - n3 14 127
(Charged)credited to Income statement 744 (a0} (830) (128)
Charged to equity o ) )] o m
At 31 December 2022 744 72 (816) -
1. Dividends

No dividend has been paid or proposert in 2022 (2021 £rul),

12. Loss per share

Basic loss per share s calculated by dividing the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weightad
average number of shares and the dilutive effect of in the money” share options N ‘ssue. share options are classified
as ‘in the money' If their exercise price is lower than the average share price for the year As required by 1AS 33, this
cdleulation assumes that the procesads receivable from the exercise of in the money options would be used to
pPuUrchase shares in the open market in order to reduce the numbar of new shares that would need to be ssued.

The directors also present an adjusted earnings per share measure which eminates certain adjusted iterms. The
Directors believe that the adjusted earnings per share measure provides a useful cormparisor of performance and
allows management and other stakenclders to better compare the performance of the Group between the current
and prior year, excluding the effects of certain non-cash charges, non-eperatenal items and significant infrequent
tems that would distort penoed or period comparability. The adjustrments are detdailed in note 5.

022 DA

. £'000 & 140
Loss attributakle w ordimary sharcholders 74,547 (31002}

Adjustrnents ta loss after tox (note 5) o o BBAZ 172
Adjusted loss attributable to ordinary shareholders (5.920) (v9,281)

2022 o

— Number ruenter

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 804.466,357  A0L653582

Dilutive share options ) i ) RB797413 4097303

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares 813,263,770 805,750,965
Acjusted basic loss per share (07ap) (241p)
Basic ioss peor share (327p) (327p)
Adjusted diluted loss per share (D74p} (24p)
Uituted loss per share (9.27p) {357p)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 3) December 2022

13. Intangible assets
Daveloprment Customer
Goocwill Patents costs Softwore contracts Total

Group - OO0 £080 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Cost

At January 2022 54293 8.926 83,206 10332 7427 74184
Additions 26 379% 3422 7478
Disposals {354) (354)
Foreign exchonge ) 7835 e 5270 128 o903 1483
At 31 December 2022 ] 72028 8860 9227 13,882 8,330 195,471
Actcumulated amortisation and

impairment

A1 January 2022 7983 55,2562 7646 7427 78318
Charge for the year 200 6,757 817 7784
Disposals {384) (354)
Impairment 32716 3438 68155
Foroign exchange 1756 23 3835 37 903 6,554
At 31 December 2022 ' 64,472 7,852 9,303 8,500 8,330 158,457
Net book value

At 31 December 2022 7,656 1,008 22,968 §,382 - 37,014
At 31 December 2021 54,293 343 27044 2886 - 95868

sl cnd : Csgtarmer
@ i palt Hribards IRPES SOl [EE AR Y $eataal

Group o 0 TR L 1L Y it L S VAN
Cost

AU January 2021 03,732 263 79467 8494 7327 158033
Additions 3 2,954 1423 4728
Foreign exchange 551 2 w43 5 100 1423
At 31 Decemnber 2021 64,293 8,926 83,206 10,331 ' 7,427 174,184
Accumulated amortisation and

impairment

ALY Jonuary 2021 4972 43504 0298 7327 52281
Charge for the voar 213 5430 1344 8,047
IMmparment 2,795 &4.815 T
Foreign oxchangoe 2 493 & flele; 599
At 31 Decemnber 2021 Co- 7,983 55,262 7646 7,427 78,318
Net book value

At 31 December 2021 64,293 943 27,844 2,686 85,866
At 31 Decembeor 2020 53,732 3841 35,803 2596 08772

Custormer contract ntargible assets reigte to custor-er cotrasts acquired os part of a busiress combiration.

Tre arort'sation cnarge of £7,784000 (2021 £23047 0CC) nas bean c.assifed witnin saiing, gereral and
admnistratyve expenses i the Corsoiidated ircome Statemeant The mparment charge of £65155 000 {2021

£ 74N C00) hos peer clossifed withir - mparrmrent .0ss on ~tangibie assets - the Conso doted Imcome Staternent,
Development costs rode £4278500 (2021 £2,753.000) and Sottware costs no'Lele £41050CC {2021 £684C000) of
assets not subject to arortisaton

erotomcs operating segmenrt devaoprrent cost mourment charges of £3<439800 -aate ta the moarert of
d.stmbuted feedpnack 'aser tecrnology deve'ooment costs wrara tne Group nas take~ tre dec sor to discontrue
tme developrmert and commerciausatior of the tecrnology giver tre curent ack of visiouty averthe timai~e to
commrarcid sat.on of gach of the assac atsd tecmmalag es Thg et bookvaug of tne assels ~as besr woared ts
£riwaith the cnarge recogr-sed 'm 'sewng, general and adm.r strative sxpenses’ :n tre Consolidatad noome
Statement
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I13. intangible assets continued

Wireless operating segment development and patent cost impairment charges of £4,692,000 in 2021 related to the
impairment of the Group's filter related cREO™ patent and development costs. Photonics operating segment
development and patent cost impairment charges of £2718,000 in 2021 relate to the mpairment of the Group's
photonic quasi crystal patent and development costs. The net book value of the filter related cREQ™ and photonic
quasi crystal development cost and patent assets were impaired to £nil with the charge recognised in ‘selling,
general and administrative expensas’in the Consolidated income Statement in 2021

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwilt is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication of impairment at the level of the CGU
to which it is ailocated. Muitiple production facilities and production assets are included in a single CGU reflecting
that production can {and is) transferred between sites and production assets for different operating segments to
suit capacity planning and operational efficiency Given the interdependency of facifities and production assets,
goodwill is tested for impairment by grouping operational sites and production assets into CGUs based on type of
procuction.

’ T oungy o ’ 2071
2022 M2 Tosrenmn )02 2001 syl beraigr 20
Cost mparrment x¢ hanege g [ nmpoareent wrchue HRY
E'000 £000 ¥ 000 w00 § 000 + 000 £000 ¥ 00
Allocation of goodwill by
CcGU
Wireloss 84438 (52.382) (1755] 57169 57069
Photonics o 7990 (334) o 78BS 7)24 ) 7124
Total Goodwill 72,128 (62,718) (1758) 7656 64,293 - - 64,293

The recoverable amourt of the CGUs has been detarmined based on value in use calculations, using cash flow
projections for o five-year peried plus a terminal value based upon a tong-term growth rate of 2% (2021 2%) in line
with The Bank of England’s monetary policy 2% inflation target

Value in use caiculations are based on the Group's latest Board approved 2023 forecaost and five-year plan

which has been adjusted to exclude the impact of expansionary capital expenditure and certain linked earnings
and casr flows. The Group Is currantly experiencing weaker custormer demand and a reduction in customers orders
and forecasts as aresult of the ndustry downturn. Revenue assumiptions in year T reflects the impact of current
market softness, a reduction in custorner demand, orders and forecasts, prior 1o an expected improvement in
rnarket dynamics and customer demand i years 2 and 3. Revenue assurnptions in the adjusted cash flow
projections for years 4 ard b have typicaily been extrapolated from year 3 using business segrmeant growth rates
that take account of industry trends and external market research

sjuewa)bgs |pjounu|

The caloulation of the racoverable amount of each CGU I the value In use calculations is highly sensitive to small
changes in the following key assurmptions applied in the 2022 cash Fow forecast:

5 Year
Yeart Yearl Year3 Yoor 4 Yewr 5 CAGR
%022 ) % % ) % * *
Risk adjusted discount rate 18 7% 18.7% 187% 87 187% NSA
Adjusted Board Adjusted Boord
Fhotonics revenue growth rate approved forecast  approved forecast” 399% 12.9% 179% 13.8%,
Adjusted Board Adjusted Board
Wireless revenue growth rate approved forecast”  approved forocast” 127% 67, 13.4% 108%
T Adusted Board approved forecast rmiates to the Group s latest Board approved 2023 farceast and five vear plan adjusted o axclude
samings and cash ows associated waith cxpansicnary cagital oxponditure
i 7 ) LN Youar o A P LI : WA
un . - . .
Risk adjusted discount rate 155% 5,59, 15 5% 15 5%, B5%
Photonics growth rata 2022 Budgot % Yeur Plan 5 Yoar Ptan 55% 5%
Wirciess growth rate 2022 Budget S Year Plan 5 Yeor Plan 9.4y 9.4%

The assumptions and growth rates contained in the Group's value in use calculations have peen updated n 2022 to
“eflect the latest Board approved 2023 forecast and five-year plan which have bean adusted to exclude the impact
of expansionary capital expenditure and certan inked earnings and cash flows The assurmptions and cash flows
contained ir the value in use calculations nave oeen updatad ir the current year to reflact the ndustry-wide
semiconductor downturn and latest industry trends and external market resedrch Thevaiue nuse calcu.ations
comprise revenue, materal costs and site ~anufacturing labour and overhead cost forecasts that have been
assessed and updated oy reference to a cor~binatior of custormer and suppiier specific information and market
growth assurpbonrs. The risk adjustad ciiscount rate has been moreased to reflect o combiration of an nerease
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2022

13. Intangible assets continued

in the Group's cost of capital and greater risk associated with the Group's growth forecasts given the current
financial performance of the business

Wireless CGU

The recoverable amount of the Wireless CSU of £91,681000, determined based on value inuse calculatiors is iess
than the carrving armount of the associcted goodwil, other intangibie assets and property, plant and equipment
allocated to the GGU and has resulted in an imoairment in goodwill of £62,382,000 (2021 £nil). This impairment nas
arisen due to reductions in current and farecast levels of demand for wireless products as a result of the industry-
witle semiconductor downturn This downturn has resulted from geopolitical shifts, the effects of the COVID-19
pandernic in which inventory levels built up throughout the supply chain and the effacts of increasing irflationary
pressure. in conjunction with this, reductions st sales volumaes, principally linked to lower ievers of smartphone
demand ond continuing weakness in 5G infrastructure, are forecast to result in lower leveis of capacity utilisation
and opearating profitability within this CGU

The Group has carried out a sensitivity analysis on the imparrert test for the Wireless CGU, using varous
reasonably plausibie scenarios focused on changes *n business segment growth rates, direct wafer product
margms and changes 0 the discount rate applied in the valus in Lse calculations.

Growth rates in the value in use calculations take account of continuing Mmarkst demand for compound
semiconductors and associoted technology advancement, driven by macro trends of 56 and connected devices
where 5G natwork infrastructure and 5G mobile handsets are being enabled by naxt generation wireless compound
semiconductor material. if the aggregated campound annual revenue growth rate used in the value i1 use
calculations to determine the recovarable amount was to increase of decrease by 10%, the mognitude of the
wireless CGU impairment woulid decrease or ircrease by £18,000,000. There are many revenue assurmptions whicn
are nchuded in the forecast. We have disclosed the impact ¢ 1% change m revenue growth rate would have and
even small changes in other aspects of the revenue assumptions would have materialimpact on the vak.e inuse
for which we have not disciosed. A 1% change in the revenue growth rate demonsteates the significartimpact on a
wide range of these reverus assurmptions.

it direct wafer product nargins for all products used in the value Ir use caicuiations 1o determire the recoverdble
amount were recuced by 10%, the magnitude of the Wireless CGU 'mpairmenrt would ncrsase py £18,000,000

if the iscounrt rate used in the value in use calcukations to detsrming the recoverabie arount was to incradss Dy
0.5%, the magnitude of tre Wireless CGL impairment would increase by £2.300000

Photonics CGU

The recoverable amount of the Photorics CGU of £153,295000, determmined based on valua N use calculations s less
thar the carryng amount of the associated goodwh, othar mtangile assets and property, plant drd equipment
alocated to tne CGU and nas resuited In animparment in goodini!l of £334.000 {2621 £nil} This imparrent has
arisen due to reductiors 'n currant and foracast levels of dernard for photoric produdts ds d resu't of the industy-
wide semiconductor dowrturn This downturn has resufted from geopontcal shifts, the effects of the COVID-18
pandemic in which nvertary levels ouilt Lp throughout tne suoply chain and the effects of increasirg inflatonary
pressure ' conjunchian witn this, reductions « sales volumes, principally inked to lower ievels of smartphone
demand dre forecast to resuit in lower levals of capacity utissatior ard operating profitability with ~ this CGUL

The G-oup nas carried out a sensitivity andilvs s on the 'mpairment test for the Photor os CGL. Lsing varous
reqsonably piaus.bie scenanos focused on cranges ™ pusiness segrent growt™ rates, direct wafer product
rargirs and the discount rate applied n the value in Lse calcuntions

Growth rates in the value in use calsulations take account of continuing marcet demand for compound
serniconductors and assoc atad tecnnoiogy advancerrert, drven by macto trends of 56 and connected devices,
and the roredsing orotferaton of 30 gnd gdvanced sensing end wser appl cations trat require erabling
sompound sericonductor mater'a: 'f the aggregated co™pounrd arnual feverue growts rate used in the vaue in
LSe CaCLGlons to daterm pe the recovarable arrout was 10 ncretse or decrease by 10%. the ragrtuds of the
Fpotonics CGL mparment wou'd decrease or ncreass by £21,5C0,CC0 There are many "averue gssumptions anich
are inciuded nthe forecast We nave disciosed the irmpact a 1% cnange » revenie growtn rate wou'd nave and
aven sma changes notner aspects of tre reverus assumptiors wou'd nove mater a impact on the vaue ir use
forwhicn wea have not d sclosed. A 1% grange in tne -everLe growth rate deronstrates the sigr f.cantirmpact or o
#ide range of trese reve-ue assumpliors

f direct wofer product margirs for o oroducts used -~ trevaibe s use co oL ol o7s to determire the -gcovaronie
amount were reduced oy 10% tre ~agritude of the Shotories CGu mpament wolld norease Gy £21300600

ftre discount -ate Lsed ~thevalle ~ use cacuiators to detarmire the gcoveraple amount was to ncrease by
05%, tre agritude of the Protonics CGo i pairment wou'd rerease by £5800000
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13. Intangible assets continusd

Patents Software Total

Campony £'000 £000 £'000
Cost

ALT January 2022 7454 1578 9,032
Adchtions 261 3,422 3583
At 31 December 2022 7.5 5,000 12,15
Accumulated amortisation

Atl January 2022 6,614 475 7088
Charge for the year - 188 143 L
At 3) December 2022 6,782 618 7,400
Net book value

At 31 December 2022 832 4,382 5,315
At 31 Decemboer 2021 840 1103 1,943

Feitents Sothecie: potal

_Company £ onn £ 000 ¥ 00
Cost

At January 202t 7169 870 8039
Additions 285 708 993
At 3I-December 201 7,454 1,578 9,032
Accumuliated amortisation

At January 2021 3991 335 4,326
Charge for the yoar 181 140 321
IMpoirment 2442 2,442
At 3] December 2021 5,614 475 7,089
Net book value

At 31 December 2021 840 1103 1,943
At 31 Dacemboer 2020 308 535 3713

Patent cost impairment charges of £2,442,000 in 2021 reiate to the impairment of filter related cREO™ patent costs

and photonic quasi crystal patent costs The impairments arese following the decision to pause technology

development activities related to the patents, given the lack of visibility over the timaline to cormmercialisation of the

technologies linked to the patents. The net book value of the patent assets was impaered to £rit

IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 Dacemiear 2022

14. Property, plant and equipment

Landand  Shortisasehold Fixtures Plant and

buildngs  improvements and fittings muchinery Total
Group £000 €000 £000 £000 £000
Cost T
AtlJdanuary 2022 18,507 38,347 13272 202842 272,968
Additions 26 100 21589 10155 12,440
Disposals (8671 (55] (15.997) {22724}
Foreign exchange 383 3774 330 13,513 18.000
At 31 December 2022 18,916 35,650 15,705 210,513 230,584
Accumulated depreciation
AT January 2022 5,621 23487 5538 106,622 143238
Chargae tar the year 952 2523 1,005 5,349 14,529
Disposals (667 (57) {9.481) 16,209)
Foreign exchange 147 1999 226 85689 1207
At 31 December 2022 7,720 21,408 7.2 116,789 153,629
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 1,198 14,142 7,993 93,724 127,055
At 31 Decomber 2021 1,888 14,8890 6,734 95220 128,730

Froperty plant and equipment .ncludes assets n the course of construction with @ net carying vaiue of £21091,000

(202% £12,262000)

toaneteanct

Frafures

it

Foval i et e s e ey total
Growp [ (RS B R b
Cost
At danuary 2021 18,329 37797 1,500 1ac,cen 257638
Additions ) 1487 13868 15,83
Disposals {2817) (2817)
Foreign exchange 1753 38 285 w768 2316
At 31 December 2021 18,507 38,347 13,272 202,842 272,968
Accumulated depreciation
A1 Jarucry 2021 5668 20079 5,242 99,322 13,408
Charge for the vear 921 2097 1,201 000 13,309
Impawment 24 74
Disposals {2804 (2809)
Faroigr oxchange 3 154 a5 - 84n 1255
At 31 December 2021 5,621 23,457 6,538 106,622 143,238
Net book value
At 31 December 2021 11,886 14,880 6,734 96,220 129,730
At 31 Decomber 2020 12.860 EEH 5058 80,700 126229
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14, Property, plant and equipment continued

Fixtures
and httings
Company £:000
Cost
At Jonuary 2022 241
Agditions 385
Disposals (ag)
At 31 December 2022 538
Accumulated depreciation
At1January 2022 134
Chargc for the year 15
Disposnls
At 31 December 2022 149
HNet book value
At 31 December 2022 389
At 31 December 2021 107
'IXKUI‘:‘VS
carw IS
company ¥
Cost
At January 2021 138
Additionrs 08
At 31 December 202] 241
Accumulated depreciation
At 1January 2021 20
Charge for the year 14
At 31 December 2021 134
Net book value
At 31 December 2021 107
At 31 Decembor 2020 %
IQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 137
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 Decamber 2022

15. Right of use assets

Land and

Fixtures and

Plontand

buildings Fittings machinery Totcd
Group £'00p £'000 000 €000
Cost
At January 2022 50,849 23 729 61,808
Disposals {8,230} 20 {8280
Foreign oxchange 2.445 3 74 2522
At 31 December 2022 55,064 26 782 5872
Accumulated depreciation
AtllJanuary 2022 18,870 5] 389 17,334
Charge for the vear 3782 & 193 39831
Disposals (8168) {on (8187}
Foroign exchango 1.270 T 4 1312
At 31 December 2022 13,856 T on 572 14,440
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 41,208 4 210 41,432
At 3t Decormber 2021 43879 i) 370 44,267
Lanelanrs i Tictunes anel Mot tine|
Erkdings Htheys Mmics BNy fotal
Group o _ - CowymE gy s § 06
Cost
At January 2021 51050 - at3)] 3748
Additions 10.531 5] 123 10680
Disposals {558) (28) (548)
Forcign exchange {74) 3 63
At 31 December 2621 50,849 23 729 61,601
Accumulated depreciation
At [ January 2021 e, 5 255 2408
Charge for the yoar 3503 5 23] 3554
Disposals (5'9) (88) {507}
Forcign exchange {328) 5 (322)
Al 31 December 2021 16,970 5 359 17,334
Net book value
At 31 December 2021 43,879 18 370 44,267
AL 3" December 2020 38.895 = 423 37339

138

Company number 63745726



16. Investments

lives ents in
USRS

Total

Company 1000 ¥ 160
Cost
At 1 January 2022 124,279 124,278
Subsidiarics share based payments charge 79 172
At 31 December 2022 ' 124,458 124,458
Provisions for impairment
At1January 2022 48M0 48,210
At 31 December 2022 48,210 48,210
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 76,248 76,248
Al 31 Docernber 2021 76,069 76,069
[LR1N] ESUTI"[’]{S i}\

SUESKIICHHS Tty
Company ¥ 000 £ 000
Cost
ALY January 2021 123,452 123452
Subsidicnes share based payments charge 827 827
At 317 December 2021 - 124,279 124,279
Provisions for impairment
At January 202 32032 32032
Impairment 18178 8178
At 31 December 2021 48,210 48,210
Net boock value
At 31 December 2000 76,069 76,069
At 31 December 2020 41420 91420

Details of the company's subsidianes are set out in note 29.

nvestments are reviewed for impairment trigger events annually. This review nciudes o quantative assessment of
the pusiness performaonce of each investment and a quantitative assessment of any potential impact on the
carrying value of each investrment ansing from the results of the Group's value in use calculations prepared as oart

of the Group’s goodw!l impairment review

The anrounced closurs of the Group’s manufacturing faciity in Singapore was 'dentified as ar imparment tngger
evert in 202], with the plarned cessation of operatiors and closure of the manufacturing site resuittrg N the
irpairrent of the Company's INvestrent in its Singaooere subsidiories in 2021 frorm a carrying value of £5,353,060

to Enil,

The Group's vaiue in use caleulotions prepared as part of the Group's goodwillimpairment review in 2021 dentified

an irpairment trigger evert for the Company's investment in its sub-group, headed by wafer Technology

International Limited, where future financial performance was forecast to decling The decline in forecast future
profitatlity was assessed in 2021 by reference to the Group's vaiue in use cash flow forecasts and resulted in a

£10,825,000 :mpairment in the Company's investrment in its Wafer Technology sub-grouo.

‘ndicators that impairment iosses might have reversed are assessed annudlly No everts indicating a reversal of

‘mpairment losses have been identified as part of the review in the current year (2021 nona)

1QE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

17. Inventories

2022 02

Croup £000 el
Row matenals and consumables 24800 25,028
Work i progress and finished goods 236 6,582

] 14,161 31,0

The directors are of the opinion that the replacement vatues of nventones are not materially different to the carrying
values stated above. The carrying values are stated net of impairment provisions of £14,233,000 (2021 £12,388,00C).
£2,81.000 {2021 £866,000) of inventories were written down dunng 2022 and an expanse recognised in the income
staterment.

18. Trade and other receivables

2071 2022 Wit w09

Group Company PRILTAI ) CONTIRRINY

Current i £000 £°000 PO § 000
Trade receivabics 21638 20.659

Othar recealvables 3143 173 4170 704
Contract assets 17,898 - B315

Prepayrnents 2149 432 516 1421

44,828 605 38,860 2,125

2022 2022 2l Ay

Sroup Compuhy At LMy

Non-currant £000 £000 bl 0N

Armounts owed by group undertakings 135454 132877

Othor irancial ossets
- 135,464 - 132,677

Contract assets relate to bespoke manufactured customer products where the Group nas a guaranteed
contractual nght of payment. Contract assets are transferred to recevables at the point that manufacturad
products are deliverad to customers, except for supplier managed inventory arrargements where contract assets
are transferred to recevables from the earlier of a specified contractual date fotiowing delivery or when the product
is draswn from inventory by tne customer All 2021 contract assets have been transfarred to recevabies dunng 2022

amounts owed by Group undertakngs are unsecured and repayable on damand Intarest 1s charged Gt a rate of 5%
per arnum {2021 5% per annum).

The Group classif.es other financal assets at amortised cost. Other financia’ assets are classified at amortised cost
as the asset 1s neld within a business mods: whoss obyective 's 10 collect contractual cash fows and the contractual
terms give rise to cash flows that ars solely payments of princinal and interest Other iinrancial assets relate to
£3,.800.00C of impared Preferred A shares (2021 £8,2800 000 issued by the Compound Sermicorductor Centre
Lmited (CSCY), aiont venture between tne Group ard Cardfi niversity (see note 20 for further detai's) Tre
prefarence shdaras carry the following rights

+ Nowvoting mghts,

- Dwidend equivalent to the HSBC Bank PLT base rate for the appicaple perod or the amount pad Lo, suibiect to
CSC havirg avalabie prafits;

+ Repayabe n proportion to the outstanding orincipie from surpius cash generated

The estimated fair values of tracle receivatres, otner recevaobles contract assets, other f~arc.o: assets ard
amourts owed by group Lndertadngs are set cut nrote 22
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19. Trade and other payables

2022 2022 0 2t

Group Company Croun Sannxony

Curret €000 £000 y 000 ¥ 000

Trade payables 17,007 1,704 20878 2,628

Armeunts owed by group undertakings 23272 248972

Other taxation and social securty 206 282 7 277
Other payables 5,747 3195 1346

Accruals and deferred incormoe 14,585 !@OQ 14,788 2510

T i 37,545 29763 37,083 30,387

Accruals and deferred income include contract liabitities of £1454,000 {2021 £758,000)

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured and repayable on demand. interest

per annurn {2021 5% per annum).

20. Borrowings

s charged at a rate of 5%

2022 2022 201 704
Group Company IO CEOIEny
- €000 £'000 P00 ¥ 000
Non-current borrowings
Bank borrowings 20,643 6529 10,365
Leasc habilities 46,026 7 49,693
' ' 66,669 16,529 60,058 -
Current borrowings
Bank borrowings 5,225 3230
Lease kabilites 4843 4,684
’ ' 1,068 - 10,924 -
Total borrowings ' - 77,737 16,529 70,982 -
i 2022 2022 | 0
Group Compcmy Croup TOmpIny
Bank Borrowings £'000 £000 CON0 s 000
Bank borrowings fall due for repayment as follows
Wwithin one year 65225 6,230
Between ore and five vears _20.@543 5,529 10,365
26,868 16529 16,595 -

On 30 December 2021, the Company refinanced its £28.88800C {$35,000.000) multi-currency revolving credit focility,
provided by HSBC Bark pc. The facility s secured on the assets of IQE ple and its subsidiary companies with o
committed term to 30 April 2023 and an option to extend the facility for a further 12 months On 8 Dacember 2022,
the Campany exercised Its option and with the consent of HSBC Bank plc extended the committed term of the
facilty to 30 April 2024. Intarest on the facility is payable at a margin of between 200 and 2.80 percent per annum
over SONIA on any drawn balances The facility was £i6,528,000 (320,000,000} utilised ot 31 December 2022 (2021

Lndrawn).

Onr 29 august 2019 a subsidiary of the Group agreed a new £30,000,000 asset finance facility, provided by HSBC Bank
plc, which is secured over various plant and machinery assets The facility has a five-year term and aninterest rate

margen of 165% per annum over base rate on any drawn balances.

The Group's bank facilties provided oy HSBC Bank pic are subject to certan everage ard interest cover finrancia
covenants The Group has cormplied witn all the financial covenants of its borrowing faciities dunng 2022 and 2021

IQE ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
Company number 03745726
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

20. Borrowings coniinued

2022 ROPT
Lease liahilities €000 ) Fooy
Lease liabilities fall due for repayment as follows
within one year 4843 4584
Betweon one and five years 15,056 121,666
After five yoars 30970 35027
50,869 54,387

Leqse liabities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets recognised in the financiol staterments
revert to the iessor in the event of default. Lease fiabitties principally relate to property.

21. Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Onerous warranty ’ 2022 s )

Restructuring Contract Provision Other Total e lrcineg i ontroct totey|
Group €000 £'000 £:000 €000 £'000 » 1100 ¥ 0 £000
As at 1 Jaruary 3434 1,702 5136 B2 1840 2002
Charged ta the moome
staterment 2.868 31 150 3049 3.817 3,617
Transfors 265 354 g
Utilised dunng the year (5.6804) (z70) (9) (8,073) (342) (138) (480)
Foreign exchange 379 22 401 (3) {3)
As at 31 December 1,252 1,332 838 150 3,632 3,434 i,702 5,136

Transfers relate to £265,000 of restructuring provisions reclassified from acoruals and £854.000 of waranty
provisions reclassified from trade recevables within the year

Oterous Waranty 2022 Orerous 210
Restrugturing Contract Provision Other Tota  Lodre b Cemitnow | loten

Growp  g000  gg00  €god  €gg0 0 €090 wous  eodo LU
Cutiont 52 4i5 508 150 15325 2,946 740 3,888
Non current 1,090 $7 2007 488 952 1450
Totol 1,252 1,332 898 150 3,632 3,434 1,702 5,136

The restructuring provision reiatas to costs relating to the announced closure of the Group's manufacturing facility in
Pennsylvama, USA and the Group's manufacturing facility :n Singapore

+ The restructurng provision of £1090,000 {2021 £488,000) associated with the announced closure of the Group's
manufactunng facility in the USA relates to empioves related costs that are expectad to He utilised over d period
up to 30 June 2024

« The restructurng orovision of £162,000 (202): £2.948000) gssocioted with the announced ciosure of the Group's
manutacturing facility m Sngapore -elates to employee related costs of 54,000 (2021 £1540,000) and site
decomimissiomng costs of £168.000 {202V £1406.000) that are expectad (o be uti sed over a period up to
30 June 2023

The orerous contract orovisior represents te cost of rinimur guararteed future ~ovaity oayments associated
with the cREG™ technaiegy acquired from Transkucent irc. The onerous contiact provision s expectsd to be Lilised
over o periad up to 31 Decembear 2024

The warranty provision relates to the costs of axpectad ret.-ms under war-arty that are expected to be utilsed over
& perod up to 30 sune 2023

Tre other provision ~2'atas to a charge for terminat.on costs pavabie to wey management wihro nave ‘sft the
ous ress The provsion s axpected to be Ltilsed over apenod up to 28 Feouary 2023,
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21. Provisions for other liabilities and charges continued

onerous Orerols

Contract Other 2022 Contren b vl
Company £000 £000 £'000 ¥ 000 ¥ a0
As gt 1 January 1,702 1702 1840 1840
Charged o the income statemoent 150 150
Utilsed during the year (370) (370) (138) (138)
Forcign exchange _ )
As gt 31 December ' 1,332 150 1,482 1,702 1,702

2022 20n

_Company £000 ¥ o0y
Curront 573 740
Non current 909 962
As gt 3] December 1,482 1,702

The onerous contract provision represents the cost of minimur guaranteed future rovalty payments associated
with the cREG™ technology acquired from Translucent Inc. The onerous contract provision is expected to be utilised
over a period up to 31 December 2024,

The other provision relates to a charge for termination costs payable to key management who have left the
business The provision is expectad to be utilised aver a period up to 28 February 2023

22. Financidl Instruments

Financial instruments by category

Trade and other receivabies (excluding prepoyments) and cash and cash equivalents are classified as financial
assets at amortised cost Borrowings and trade and other payables are classified as financial lakilities at amortised
cost Both categories are initially measured at fair vaiue and subsequently heid at omortised cost. Financial
instruments are classified as level 2 oer the farr value hierarchy with the exception of preferance share instruments
which ara classified as level 3

Derivatives (forward exchange contracts) are clussified as derivatives used for hedgirg and accountad for at fair
valua through profit and loss inthe consolidated staterment of comprehensive iIncome

Financial risk and treasury policies

The Group's finance team maintains liquichty, rranages relations with the Group's bankers, identifies and marages
foreign exchange risk and provides a treasury service to the Group's businesses. Treasury dealings such as
inrvestrments, borrowings and foreign exchange are conducted only to support underlying business trarsactions. The
Group has ciearly defined policies for the management of foreign exchange rate risk The Group finance tearn does
not urdertake speculative foreign exchange dealings for which there is no underlying exposure. Exposures resulting
frorm saies and purchases in foreign currercy are matched where possible and the net exposure may be hedged
by the use of forward exchange contracts

Creditrisk

Credit risk s the nisk of firancial loss to the Group if ¢ custorner or counterparty to a iinanciai instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, ard arises principally from the Group's receivables and contract assets due from
customaers, and enonies on deposit with financial institutions

Customer credit risk is managed at the Group and site level with credit sk assessments complated for all
customers. if no independent credit ratirg is avalabie, the credit quality of the customer is assessed by reference to
the customers financial position, nast experierce ard other relevant factors. Individua credlit limuts are set based on
internal or external ratings N accordance with the Group's credit risk policies. Where the Group assessas 4 potential
credit rsk, this is dealt with either oy up-front payment orior to the shipment of goods o7 by other credit risk
mitigation measures

Counterparty nisk associated with moniss on deposit with fingrcial institutiors is managed at the Group level in

accordance with the Group's treasury poficies. The credit qualty of banks nas been assessed by refersnce to
extarnal credit ratings, based on reputable credit agencies’ long-tesrn issuer ratings.

Trade receivables and contract assets

Tre credt quarity of trade receivables and cortract assets that are rot impaired have deen assessed based o
astorica! information about the courterpa-ty default rate. The Group does not noid any receivable baiamces with
custormers wit a histary of past defauit
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 3] December 2022

22. Financial Instruments continued
Cashat bank

The credit quality of cash has been assessed py reference to extarnal credd ratings based on rgputable credit
agencies' long-term issuer ratings. Tne Group has cash at pank balances totaling £10,486,000 (2021 £9,068,000) with
banks with Al credit ratings and cash at bank balancas totalling £1134,000 {2071 £1722,000) with A2 credit ratings.

Prefarence share receivables

The Group has assessed, based on its joint venture's latest forecast, that recovery of the preference share debt
wittyn a reasonakle penod remaing unfikaly such that the cradit risk remains at a level where the definition

of default has peen met In making this assessment, quaktative and gquantitative reasonable ond supportable
forward-looking inforrmation associated with the forecast future financial performarnce ard cash generation of C3C
nas peen used (see note 3.5 for detaiis of the calcuiation of the loss allowance and the associated impairment of
the financial asset}

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carnying vaiue of each ciass of financial asset as
set out below, In terms of trade recevabiles, the terms of sale provide that the Group has receurse to the products
soid in the event of non-payment by a customer

2022 2022 v apm
Group Comparny Lataugy L orpany
Assats as per balance sheet o . o £°000 €000 ] w00
Carrying amount
Cash and cash cquivalents 1,620 24306 10,791 262
Trode recovobles 21538 20559
Arnounts owed by gtoup undartakings 135454 132677
Other receivables excluding prepayrents .04 173 13085 704
Financial Assets (Proforence share receivables)
54,299 128,073 44,535 133,643

Inciuded in other recevaoles are controct assets of £17.888,000 {2021 £8.915060)

The Group is exposed to credit concentrator r sk with its trree largest customers which represent 46% (2021 47%) of
outstanding trade recenables and contract asset Salances. Custorer cradit rskis mranaged according to strct
credit control policies. The majority of the Group's "evenues ars derived from large muit.nationa! oryanisatior s that
are established customaers of the Group with ro prior nistory of default. The Group rronitors custorer credit ratngs
and bas had ro matenal defaults in the past

Gross Provision Neat Ao SN it
2022 2022 2022 u i o
Goop 00000 &000 gooo €000 ' .
Not post duc 5933 16,833 16028 15,029
Past due 0 3C 4,621 452 3439 3439
Past due rrore than 30 3,797 (2713) 108 1606 (15) Lial
24,351 (2.n3) 21,638 21,074 (415) 20,659
2022 P
Allowance for bad and doubttul debt £:000 Bl
At Janudry 415 452
Crarged to tho ncome statemont 2308 (34
Ltilised curnng the vecr i5)
Foroigr oxcrarge iy 2
213 48

As at 31 Decembe- 2022, 35% (2021 78%) of trade racewvables were w t 1 ters. Of the ot-er tade rece vables 55%
{2021 68?{) wearg lass than 30 days past due. AN al'owanca ~as oear mads for estimated rrecovaraols amounts
from tre sale of goods of £2713,000 (2021 £4150C0) Tris alowance »0s paen dete'rmimed or an axpectad cradit oss
oasis by reference to past defaut expererce The rdviduaty Imparad recenaoies nainly raate to a ~umber of
~deperdent custoners, A portan of trhese recevabies s exnactad 1o e racovered

Tre carmy:ng vesues of trade and other recenabies aso represent ther estmated fair varLes Trade "eceivain’'ss ard
cortract assets ars onmar « denor.natad . LS donars, as are trade pavasies imiting the exposure of the Groun to
“noverents n foreign excnarge rates. Bused or the baia~ces neid at 21 December 2022 a ore cent movement .n
the US dolar to Sterlirg rate would mrpact the net vaiue of trase instrumerts oy £142C600 (2G21. £72000)
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22. Financial instruments continued

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk 1s the risk that the Group will pot be able to meet its financial obikgations as they fall due. The Group
manages its funding to ensure, as far as possible. that it will always have sufficient fiquidity to meet its liabilities when
due. under botih normal and stressad conditions, without incurring unacceptable (osses or risking damage to the

Group's reputation.

The Group uses weekly cash flow forecasts to mornitor cash requirements and to optmise its borrowing position. The
Group ensures that it has sufficient borrowing facilities to mest foresecable operational expensas. At the year-end
the Group had available undrawn faciities of £17,285,000 (2021 £30,500,000}

The following table ilustrates the contractual maturities of financial liobilties, including interest payments where
appicable, and exciuding the impact of netting agreements on an undiscounted basis.

’ G-roup Grr;upi Group
Contractuck cash flow maturities — Carrying Caontractual Less than Group Group Geoup
Other financiol liabilities at dmortised cost omount Cash fiows 12Zmonths 1-2Yoars 2-5Years 5+ Yoars
31 December 2022 £000 €000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E'000
Trade and other payables 22754 22754 22754
Accruals 14,585 14,085 14585
Bank borrowings 26,868 26,950 6.250 20,700
Lecse iabilities RO.869 56,437 6,069 5065 8,038 28265
115,076 120,726 49,658 26,765 18,038 26,265
Included in aceruals are contract liabitties of £1,454,000 {2021 £758,000).
B C LU ) LRIV B (;;';i.p
Conlme Sualcosty s mictunties Caarryineg CLorthrexctuel Lo Thesn e Lroup Ciraup
it Bowars el bobiiios ot oo ost et Lorst o s 7 neiths |7 oescus SRy YOO Tt oyeaars
S e ier 221 ¥ OO0 ¢ NGo ¥ 00 ¥ MY ¥ 008 <00
Trade end other payobles 22224 22,224 22224
Accruals 14788 14,788 14,788
Bark borrowings 16,005 16570 5,250 6220 4170
Lease liabiltics 54,387 51,007 5,955 5823 7670 31559
107,894 114,689 49,217 12,073 21,840 31,559
) Company ém‘npmy Company
Controctual cash flow maturities — carrying Controctual Less than Company Company Company
Other financial liabiities stamortised cost amount cash Hows 12 months 1-2 Yoars 2-5Years 5+ Yeurs
31 December 20122 €000 £°000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and otter payabics 4399 4,899 4889
Armmounts owed to group undertakings 23272 23272 23272
Accruals 1300 1300 1300
29,471 28,471 298,47 - - -
Coorpienny FGnp Iy LMy Iy
Sontroectie e ashy o nactunties (B LITY) Sonbrer Do Lo than ORIy LTV IR, CRATI Ty
b firvears 1o e gt b s s gt omorlisect - s cirwnant o8k Howes oy |2 s 2 boveors Bt rexrs
,‘” Swerermibwes W2 s i 000 I35 [ EToT] [Tl + 08
Trade ardg other payobles 2628 2828 2528
Amcunts owed to group undertakings 24972 24972 24,972
Accruals 2510 2510 250
3010 30,110 30,110 - - -
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the vear andad 31 December 2022

22, Financial Instruments continued
Financial risk management

Market risk — Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates interationally with operations in the United Kingdom, Linited States of America and Tdiwar, and
1s exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily relating to fluctuations n
exchange ratas between UK sterling, US dollars and Tawgnrese dollars. The Group's presentational currency is
sterling and foreign exchange risk anses from a combination of future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabiities denominated « a currency that is not the funcbonal currency of the relevant groupR entity and net
invastments in the Group's foreign oparations

The majority of the Group's sales are denominated in US dollars and therefore the Group's cash flows are affected
by fluctuations in the rate of exchange between US dollar and UX Sterling and Tawaness dollar exchange rates
given that the Group is required to fund certain costs at its operations in the United Kingatorm and Taiwan in iocal
currancias Foreign exchange risk of this nature is managed using a combinaton of the natural currency hedge
within the Group's operating maodet given that a significant proportion: of the Group’s costs, 'Ncluding the purchase
of certain key raw rmoterials, are denominated in US doilars, and via the use of derivative foreign currency forward
exchange contracts

Deornvative forcign currency forward exchange contracts are only used for cconemic hedging purposes and not as
spccukative investments Dorwvative forergn currency forward exchange contracts that do not meet the hedge accounting
criterio are classified as ‘held for trading’ for accounting purposes and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
Thesc derfvative instruments arc prosontod as current assets or irabiities to the axtent they are oxpocted to be sottlad
within 12 months after the end of the reporting penod. As at 31 December 2022, the fair vaiue of forcign currency forward
exchange contracts held for trading was a ilabiity of £381000 {202% £10.000; The forcign cumency forward exchange
contracts are clossified as Lovel 2 financial instrurmerts. The foir value of tevel 2 financal instryments has been determined
using observablc market data based on guoted market pnces or market quotes for simitar instruments f ail significant
inputs reguired to fair valuc the instrument are observabile, the instrment s inciuded in level 2 The group's aecounting
polcy for s cash flow hodges s set outin note 218

The Group hos certain mvestments N foreign operations in North America, Taiwan and Singapoere, whose net assets
are exposed to foreign currency transtation risk Trarsiation exposures that arse on convarting the results of
averseas subsidiares dre not hedged As a gude to the senstivity of the Group's results to moverents ' foreign
curency exchange rates a one cent movement in the US dollar to Sterfng rate would impact annudl earnings by
aporoxmately £6685,000 (2021 £239,000)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Board s aware of the risks associated with changes n ‘nterest rates and does not speculate on futurs changes
in interest rates. Histoncaiy. the Groun has not undertaxen any Heddging dotivity in this drea, although the Board
keeons this urder regular review.

Tne Group's INterest rate sk arses from its cash and cast equivaerts, its preference share findncidl assets and
from its park borrowings. Cash ard cash equivalents, ncluding foreign currency cash depasits, ean interest at
prevoning variable market rates of interest wh st the preferance snare debt earns interest at HSBC Bank =Ic
base rate

Tne Group's bank borrowings consst of a varable rate asset finarce oon secured aganst ine assets o which 't
relatas, and a varable rate multi-currency revoiving credit facility secured against the gssets of the Group

Tre varable rate UK stering £20,000.000 asset finance facility, which kas a pracioat outstarding of £10.41500C (202
£16,870.000) has a five-year term ard an nterest -ate margin of 165% per arnurn over pase rote on any drowne
balances. The iodn 's repayobie by monthly nstaiment comrercing on the first anriversary of the faciity.

The variaole rate US dol'ar $35,0008C0 (£28,688‘OOO) mult-currercy revalarg cradit tacility, wrich s §20,000000
1216 393,000) Ltfsed at 31 Decerrber 2022 nas a cormtted tarm ta 30 Apri. 2024 Interest or the faciity s noyvab's
ata margin of betweer 200 ard 280 oercent per annum ovar SONGA.

The Group's policy 's tG equiary review s exoosura to ~terest rate ms< and » particw'ar tre mx oetweer fred and
floatrg rate irarcias assets and f narcial sablites. Tre cercentage of fraral assets ard  narcial sastties
seanrg varaoe ~ate ‘mterest was Gr (2021 0% and 34% (2021 43%) resoect vew
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22. Financial Instruments continued

As a guide to the sensitivity of the Group’s results to moverments in intersst rates, a 50-basis point (0.5%) movernsnt
In Interest rates on the intarest-baaring financial assets held at 31 Decernber 2022, would impact annual interast
Income by approximately £ni {2021 £ni}. A 50-basis point (0.5%) movement in interest rates on the mterest-bearing
liapilities held at 31 December 2022 wouid impact annual interast costs by approximataly £134,000 (2021 £33,000}).

Capital riskmanagement

The Group’s main obiectives whan managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optirnal
capitdl structure tG reduce the cost of capital

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk The Group manages the capital structure and adjusts it in
the light of changes in economic conditions and the characteristic of the underlying assets. The Growp monitors
capital by reviewing ret dept against shareholders' funds. The position of these indicators and the moverment
during the year is shown in the Five-Yeqr Financial Summary.

The Group defines tatal capital as equity in the consolidated balance sheet plus net delbt or less net funds. Total
capital at 31 Decemper 2022 was £241558000 {2021: £294,812,000). The Group monitors capital on the basis of a
gearing ratio. The geanng ratic is calculated as net debt divided by total capital and at 31 December 2022 was 27.5%
{2021 20.4%)

All covenants in reiation to the Group's borrowing facilities have been complied with during the year.

Fair values

Fair values of financiol assets and abiities, together with the carmrying amounts shown in the balance sheet, are as
foliows:

2022 | w2 07 221
Canrying Fair et Fear
amoeunt value crresunt vl
Group e €°000 €000 ¥ 0L S NGO
Cash and cash cquivalents 1620 1520 10791 10,791
Trade rcecivables 21638 21638 20,659 20669
Other recenvobles 343 3143 4170 4170
Contract assots 17898 v B98 8915 2,915
Financial Asscts {(Preforonce share receivabios) B3 183
Trade and other payables (22754} (22784} {22,224) {22224)
Bark borrowings (26.868) (o8,868) {(18,595) (15,595}
Dorivative financial mstruments {amn (381) o
4,296 4,459 5,716 5,879
2022 2022 —t et
Ccarrying Fair RIS Feur
amount vaue ALt e
Cempany €000 £'000 ¥ Onn ¥ 00
Cash and cash eguivalents 2436 2436 252 262
amounts owed by group undertokings 135,464 135484 132,677 132077
Other recervables 173 173 704 704
Trade and other payables (4299; {4899) {27.6007 (27600
Derivative finoncial nstruments (3an {381}
132,793 132,793 106,043 106,043
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Notes to the financial statements continuad
for the year ended 31 December 2022

22. Financial Instruments continued
Basis for determining fair value

The following summarises the significant methods and assumptions used N estimating the far values of inancial
instruments reflectad in the fable above:

cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents earn interast at prevailing variaple market rates of interest such that the carrying value
af cash and cash equivalents is deamed to reflact fair value

Trade receivables, other receivables and contract assets

Trade receivables, other receivables and contract assets are short-term assets with o remaining iife of less than one
year such that the amaortised cast carrying value of the assets is deemed to reflect far vaiue.

Financial Assets (Preference share receivables)

Tne fair value of preference share receivables was calculated by reference to assumptions apout forecast future
finaricial performance of CSC and the associated leve! of expected credit iosses.

Amounts owed by group undertakings

Armounts owed by group undertakings are long-term assets with @ remaining life of greater than one year with
outstanding balances accruing interest at a rate of 5% per annum such that the amorbised cost carrving value of
the assets is deemed to reflect fair value.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables dre short-term ligbilties with o remaining life of less than one year such that the
arnortised cost carrying value of the tiabilities is deerred to reflect fair value

Bank borrowings

The carrying verue of bark porrowings is deemad to reflect far vaiue as interest poyable on bank Dorrowings 1s
charged at a variable rate assessed as close to currert market rates.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of denvative foreign currency forward excrange contracts wos deter~ ned using observal'e market
data based on guoted market prices or market quotes for sireilar instrements
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23. Share capital

2022 200
Number 2022 Murntwor 20
Groiip and Company of shaves £'000 ol sheres, 3 0G0
Allotted, cailed up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of Ip cach 804,841,965 8048 803555756 8,036

The movement in the number of ordinary sharas durnng the yaar was'

2022 20

N Number Fusrmibor
At January 8035557556 800364559
Employee share schemes 702,500 3191187
Chiof Executive Officors starting bonus — share award ) 583709
At 31 Decemnber e 804,841,965 803,555,756
1286209 ordirary sharss (2021 3181187 ordinary shares) were issued during the year as foliows

7 7 2022 T 2029
Mumber 2022 Murntwar a2
of shares Coftsidetation ol shwirms Coangselerelion
Employee share schemes 702,500 0p 230p 3191187  L0pto 230p
Chlef Executive Officer's starting bonus  share award 583,709 1.0p _
o o - 1,286,209 3,191,187

The share premium arising from consideration received from employee share scheme exercises and the Chief
Executive Officers starting bonus share award of £100,000 (2021, £472.000) was £88,000 {2021 £447,000)

24. Share based payments
The tetai amount charged to the income staterment in 2022 in respect of share based payments was £332.000 (2021,
£1.691000).

Long-termincentive plan

The |QE Pic Share Option Scheme was adopted on 25 May 2000 and amended by shareholders at the Annual
General Masting on 17 May 2002 Under the scheme, the Remuneration Committee can grant long-term incentive
awards over shares - the company to directors and employees of the Group.

Long-term incentive share awards are granted with contractual fives of between three and ten years with o fixed
exercise price of one penny, equal to the nominal value of the ordirary share.

Directors

Long-term incentive awards become exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant supject to
contnued employment and achieverment of perforrnance conditions relcting to growtn m earnings per share and
totan shareholder return targets over a three-year vesting period that cannot be extendsd. The Group has ro legai
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

Details of the Directors long-term incentive plan are set out in the Remuneration Report.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

24, Share based payments continued
Employees

Long-term incentve awards become exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant, subject to
continued employment and the achievement of performance conditions relating to a combination of:

« growth in earnings per shdre targets over athree-year vesting period that cannot be extended,

» growth in eamings per share and totat shareholder return targets over a three-year vesting period that cannot be
extendead,; and

- qachievement of strategic group wide and personal objectives

The Group has no legal or constructive obhgation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

Ltong term incentive awards are vaiued using either the Black- Scholes option-pricing modke! or the Monte Carlo
simulation model with the total fair value of the award that is to be expensed charged to the income statement over
the vesting period of the iong-term incentive award.

Share option scheme

The IQE Plc Share Option Scheme was adopted on 26 May 2000 and amended by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting on 17 May 2002 uUnder the scharms, the Remuneration Committee can grant options over shares in
the company to employees of the Group.

Options are granted with o contractual ife of ten years and with a fixed exercise price equat to the market vatue of
the shares under option at the date of grant or as otherwise disciosed in the remuneration report. Options become
exercisable between one and ten years from the cate of grant, subject to continued empioyment and the
achievermant of performance conditions, including growth in adjusted EBITDA ard earnings per share against
various targets. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settie the options in cosh

Share options are valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the total fair value of the award that s
to be expensad charged to the income staternent over the vesting period of tre share option

The principal assumptions used in the calculation of the fair vaue of long-term Ncentve awards and share option
awards are as folows:

Principad assumptions e ) 2022 o
Weighted agverage share price at grérwt date T am 4984
Welighted averago oxercise price 441 599
waighted average veeting penod (years) 3 3
Optior life {years) Ko} o]
weighted average expected iife (years) 3 3
Weighted average expocted valatility factor 3% 0%
waoighted avorage risk free rate Co% Cov
Dividlend vield 0% K

The expected voiatlity factor s based on historcal share price voiatlity over the three years immedatey preceding
the gra-t of the option The expected fe s the average expectadt period to axercise The risk-free -ate of return is the
vieid of zero-coupon UK goverrrert bonds of a term consistent with the assumed option life

Nor-market performanca condtions are ncorporated mto the calculation of fair value by estimat~g the proport.on
of share options that wil: vest and be exercised based on a combingtion of hstorcal trends and future expected
tradirg oerformance Thess are "eassassed at the end of sach oenod for each tranche of urvasted ootions.

The fa- value of iorg-term™ rcantive awards and share optors grarted dunng the vear ended 31 Decermber 2022
was £AB03.0C0 (2021 £4487.000)

e wa.gnted average far va'ue of ong-ter~ roertve awa-ds granted durng the vear erded 21 Decerne 2027
~as 32 8p (2021 Mip)
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24. Share based payments conlinued

The movements on long-term incentive awards and share options during the year were as follows:

2022 2021

2022 Average el A wfe

Number axorcise price Murmbse:r SIS DI

of options (pence) o opteons (P e}

At1January 24408015 598p 22,081,637 W0 08p
Granted 14213210 105p £A437146 100p
Exoroiscd (898594) 1M05p  (2506993) 17.64p
Cancelled/lapsed (8,95,101) 259p  (1,503.575) 24.43p
At 31December 28,970,530 4.41p 24.408115 5.99p

The weighted average share price at the date share options were exercised was 360p (2021 57.2p).

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of long-term incentive awards and share options held by employees was

28,970,530 {2021 24,408 15) as follows.

2022 071
Number of Hurribwer af
Gption price pencefshare Option period ending optons oplicns
100p 2817p 31 Deccember 2022 430423
100p  2775p 31 December 2023 35181 4150.061
100p  2383p 31 Decermber 2024 2840474 3,321,245
1842p  2517p 31 December 2025 3871827 20,250
00p 3792p 31 December 2025 193,500 252,000
*00p 16950p 31 December 2027 362,500 407500
100p 143.30p 31 December 2028 240,000 240,000
100p 1250Cp 31 December 2029 7,500 3408779
100p 31 becermnber 2030 4,555,709 5.895,388
100p 31 Decomber 2031 3,301.783 5,091,469
100p o 31 December 2032 9,885,425 _
At 31 Decemnber ) 28,970,530 24,408,115

25. Parent company profit and loss

Az permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 20G8. the income statement of the parent company is rot
presented as part of these financiar statemants. The parent company's loss for the financial year amounted to

£8,297.000 {2021 £28,272000 loss).

1QE pic Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

26. Cash generated from operations

2022 1)
Group ) £000 £000
Loss befaro tax {75.403) {22)91)
Fincnco costs 2427 2213
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,529 13.309
Depreciation of nght of use assets 3981 3854
Amortization of intangible assets 7784 8047
imparment of Intangible dssots 86,155 741
Impairment of PP&E Fel
Inventory wite downs (note 17) 280 856
Non cash movemoent on trado receivoble oxpected crodit losses (note 22) 2300
Non cash provision movements 3449 3.817
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (588) (77)
share based poymaents 332 1681
Cash inflow from operations before changes in v&brking capital 27277 18,814
Increase in INventories (2904) {1368}
(Increasc)/decrease in trade and othor receivoliles (5,534) 2930
Decrease i trode ond other poyables (3893) (,013)
Decrease in provisions (5073) {ag0)
Cash inflow from operations 8,873 18,883
2022 2
Company o e - E'DDO Yoon
profit / (Loss) before tax (971 (25.470)
Finance income (5748) (493}
Finance costs 505 445
Fareign exchunge 2454 307
Deprociation of property, plant and equipmaent 13 4
amortisation of Intangible assots kil iedl
Impairmert of ntangibic assets 2442
Impairment of investmaents 18178
Non cash movement on tfrade recewvable expected credit losses 15,484
share based payments 23 N5
Cash outflow from operations before changes in working capital 4,083 (10.341)
{increascej/decrease in traac and other recevabios (24085) 3529
{Decregse) [ increase in trode andg other pavables {2580 4078
Cash outflow from operations (1n.004) (2,337)
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27. Reconciliation of net cash flow to movernent in net funds/{debt)

2022 2i¥)
£000 5 100
Decroose in cosh in the yoor {53} {14,08Q)
Increase m borrowings (15814)
Repaymaent of borrowings 5,256 3,145
Repayment of leases ) 4,926 3708
Net movement resulting from cash flows (4.685) (4,230)
Net debt at 1 January (s0,191) (45,101)
Net movernent resulting from cash flows (4685) {a4.230)
Not movement on fair value of derivative nstruments (381)
Other non cash mevernents ] (1241} (10,86@)
Net debt gt 31 December {66.498) (60,191)
Other non-cash moverrents include £64,000 of lease disposals (2021 £11,397.000 new iease fiapilities) and the
Impact of foreign exchange of £1305000 (2021, £“537,000)
28. Analysis of net debt
7 7 ’ 7 At 7 Oitker Al
January Cosh ron cosh D ennibner
2022 fha HETEHAABINEY 200
€000 5 D S8 ¥ 0nn
Bank borrowings due after one year {(*0.365) {(i5.814) 5536 (20,843)
Bank borrowings dus within one year {8,230} 5.256 {6281 (6,22%)
lease licbitics due after one year {49,603) 3667 {48,028)
Leasce liabdites duc within one vear [4504) 4,925 (5.075) {4843}
Total borowings (70,982) {4.632) (2123) (77,737
Fair value of derfvative INstrarients (z81) {381,
Cash and cash equivalonts 0,791 {53 #82 1620
Net debt (60.197) ' (4,685) (1,622) (66,498)

Cash and cash equivalents at 21 December 2022 and 2l December 2021 comprised balances held in instant access

Dank accounts and other short-term deposits with a maturity of iess than 3 ronths

Other non-cash mMmoverments InciLde £640C0 of lease disposals {2021 £1397,000 new lease abiittes) and the

impact of foreign excrange of £1,305,000 (202% £537.000).
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the yvear ended 31 December 2022

29. subsidiary undertakings

Name of company

1QE (Europe) Limited

IQE inc

IQE KC we

IQE Tawwan ROC

IQERF LLC

ICQE Silicon
Compounds Limitcd

MBE Technalogy Pte
Ltd

CsDC Private Limited

wafer Technology
Limited

NanoGal Limited

Galaxy Compound
Semiconductors Inc

EPI Holdings Linmited

KTC Wircloss LT

IGE LSA ING

1GE Scicr LS

'QE Properues irc

Wwafor Techrology
Irterraoonal Lirited

Class of capital

Ordinary shares
of 1

Commor stock of
$0001

Limited iability
cormpany

Crdinary shares of
NT$IO

Lirmited liabiliy
company

Orcinary shares
of €1

Freferred sharcs
of 8§ Ordinary
shares of 1

Cormrmon stock of
$1 par value
Qrainary shares of
|

Orchinary shicros of
£0.001

Comrrorn steck of

$0CO par value

Ordinary shares of
il

Lirritoa habihty
cornpany

Lerniteo liakiny
company

Lirited iabihny
cormpary

Liruted bakilty
corpory

Ordihary shoros of
!

Proporiion of

shares held

100%™

100%.

100%-

100%

100w

100%

i00%

L00%

100%~

100%

[
¥
2

100%

15C%”

Activity

Manufacture of
advanced
semiconductor matenals
Manufacture of
advanced
scmiconductor materials
Monufacturc of
actvanced
sormiconductor rmatenals
Manufacture of
advanced
sermiconductor rnatenais
Manufacture of
advanced
semicenductor matanials

Manutacture of slicon
opitaxy

Manufacture of
advanced
scrmiconductor matenais
Resecrch, development
and manufacture of
soriconductor matenals
Manufacture of
scmiconductor
corrpodnds and Lirg
Righ purity matenals
Developroent of
advanced
scriconductor matenals
Manufacture of
semiconducter
cormpounds and uitia
high purity matenats

Dormant helding
conpary

Daorrmant helding
company

Dormant holaing
COPIRany

Lormort corrpany
Freperty holaing

coropary

Heoloing cartpary

Caountry of
incorporation

Registerod Office

UK

[S7:

USA

Tarwagr

UK

Singopore

Sirgapore

Uk

UK

LsA

UK

LiSA

UsSA

LSA

LK

Pascal Close, St
Melions, Cardiff CF3
OLW, UK

19 Technology Drive,
Bothlohom, PA IBGIS,
USA

200 John Harcock
Road, Taunton, MA
02780, UsSA

No. 2 1.0 Hsin Rood
Hsinchu Science Park
Hsinchu 300, Taiwan
285 Dovidson
Avenue Somersct, NJ
08873, USA

Pascail Ciose, St
Mohions, Cardiff CF3
OLwW, UK

30 Tampines
industrial Avenue 3
Sihgapore 528775
20 Tampines
industnal Avenue 3
Singapare 528775

Pascal Close, &t
Mellons, Cardif* CF3
SLwW UK

Pascal Close. St
wiclions, Cardiff CF3
OLW, UK

9922 E Montgomery
AverLe #7 Spokanic,
WA 98208, UsA
Poscol Close, St
Mollons, Cordiff CF3
Olw, UK

12 Techrology Drive,
Bethloborm PATEOS,
usa

18 Tochnclogy Drive,
Bethlichom, PA 18315,
usa

13 Tectnology Brive
Bottlcher— PA1SO'E
LSA

I's "echrology Dnve,
Botrletorn, PA 2018,
LSa

Pascal Clese, St
Melicrs Cardiff <F3
LW, LK

DR g

Tre oroport o~ of vot rg nghts of subsd'ares ~ed oy the Group s tha same as the proportior of s—ares Fald

A UK subsidares aa sxerpt from the equrerments (o fle audted kranoial statemerts by votug of section 4754 of
tre Cormpanes Act 2006, In adoptrg the exemptor, GE olc ~as orovided o statutory guarartes to these
suosidares N accordance witk sectior 478C of the Compares Act 2005
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30. Joint Venture
The Group hoids investrents in one joint venture as follows:

Proportion ol Country of

Name of company Class of capitatl shares heid Activity incorporation  Registerad Cffice
Compound Rosearch, development Pascal Close, St
semiconductor Cormmon stock of and manufacture of Mellons, Cardiff CF3
Centre imited £l par vaiue 50%* scmiconductor Matenals UK OLw, UK

= ndirect haidings

Compound Semiconductor Centre Limited (‘CSC’)

On 9 July 2015 the Group entered into a joint venture agresment with Cardiff University to create the CSC in the
United Kingdom. The shareholder agreement establishes that the CSC is jointly controlled by the sharehaolders, who
have an equal share of the voting rights, such that the Group's investrent in the joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method in accordance with the accounting policies sot out In note 2 and note 3.

Tha commercial purpose of the CSC is the research, devalopment and manufacture by metal organic vapour
phase epitaxy (MOVPE) of advancad compound semiconductor materials in Europe.

The business was set Up by the joint venture partners to provide a bridge between early stage research and hign-
volurme manufacturing and was established in a manner to provide the CSC with the capability to deliver specialist
compound semiconductor product development, prototyping and early stage manufacturing services to
academic and industnal custorners from tts own compound semiconductor foundry.

an the formation of ths joint venture, the Group contributed fixed assets, independently valued ot £12,000,000.
transferred employses and licensed intellectual property to establish the CSC's manufacturing and technical
capability whist at the same time entenng into an agreement with CSC that has been extended in the current year
and conveys to the Group the nght to use the assets of the joint venture for a minimum period up to 31 March 2024
{see note 3a) Cardiff University contributed cash

The intellectuai property license resates to fechrical know-how and s licensed to the CSC under the terms of o
perpatuat icence that can only be terminated in a limited number of circumstances, none of which currently apply
gs the CSC is not In breach of the licenss agreement. The Group has no obligation to enhance or develop the
icensed intellectual propesty. The licence fee of £20,000.000, mutuaily agreed by the Group and Cardiff University,
was recognised as license income in accordance with the Group's revenue recognitior policy for perpetual licenses
{see note 2) in 2015 and 2018 when the intefiectual property was transfer-ad to the CSC.

The contractual nght granted by the CSC to the Group to use its assets provides the Group with access to
ranufacturing capacity and de-risks the initol establishment of the CSC as the Group operates as a cormerstone
customer during the early stagss of the development of the CSC's business when it fs recjuired to fund running costs
associated witn its foundry whilst developing ts business and own ndepandent reverue streams,

Costs associated with the rignt to use the assets of tre CSC are charged to the Group of a mutually agreed prce Dy
the Group and Cardiff Unwvearsity The price refiects the Group's nght to use the assets and is varnable based on the
CSC's cash cost of production {including direct .abour. matenals and other foundry costs} which provides the CSC
with o low cost, low nsk route to oputid its business whilst covering its manufacturing reated operating costs.

The arrangements between the joint venture parties, structured to provide the Group with its required level of
manufactunng copacity and to provide the CSC with sufficient flaxbility to deveiop its busmnass, envisaged that
refiance on the Group as the comnerstone customer would reduce. The CSC continues to achieve key business
milestones, including the devaippment of its own independant cormmercial custormer reiationships and funded
coitagborative research and development projects which have resulted in its relionce on the Group gracdudlly
reducing s these indapendent relatiorshios and revenue streams continus to develop, with external revenue
totalling £1528,000 (2021 £1,732,0600). The CSC s financial year erd is 31 December which is co-terminus with tne
Group and has Deen used to prepare the consolidated Group financial staterments and tne summary CSC inancial
information set out Delow. Ne dividend has been racewved by the Group from the CSC (2021 £nir).

Summary information for Compound Semiconductor Centre Limited

S]UBWIAYD)}S {DIUDULY |

2022 s
£'000 E£'000 vnon
Revenue T ' A5G 8222
EBITDA 12 90
fLoss): Profit from continuing operaiicrs (.778) 1219
{Loss) ' Profit for the pericd 0.77) 1219
Total comprehensive {expense) income for the period (1778} 1,219
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the vear ended 31 December 2022

30, Joint Venture continued

w002 “azl
Summory balance sheat €000 ¥ 000
Non current assets i - T a3z sps?
Current assets 1751 2037
Current Liabilitios (1998) (1848)
Non current Liabiitics (10870} (10,212)
Equity attributable to Joint Ventures (6,742) (4,964)

2022 N
Carrying value of equity Interestin CSC Ltd £:000 ¥ NN
‘Nothiabities of ©SC Led T {8742)  (4964)
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest 5U% 50%
Group's share of net Hgbilities (337) (2.482)
Ebmingtion of unrealised gains on ransactions with CSC Lid {(12,000) (12,000)
Cumulative absorption of 3¥ losses against long term Jv preference share dobt (note 5) 163 163
Cumulative unrecognised losses 15,208 14,319
Carrying amount of the Group’s interestin the JV - -

2022 w07
Summaky of totve unr Q) > E'ODD ¥ 000
7Lmrecognisod losses brought forward T - (17.032) (‘7,645
Unrecognised unreahsed gains on transactions with CSC Lkd
{Loss) ! Profitin the year (r839) B
Roversaliabsorption of JV losscs against forg term Jv preforence share debt (moto 5)
Cumulative unrecagnised losses cartied forward {17,921} {17,032)

Caornparative financial information has been adjusted to reflect the final audited 202} CSC firarcial staternents The
adjustment to the disciosure has nad no mpact on the Grou's consolidated loss for the year. total net assets or
cash position.

31. Related party transactions
Group

Transactions with Joint Venture — Compound Semiconductor Centre Limited

CS5C was estabisned by the Graup ard its joint venture partrer as a centre of excelience for the development and
commercialisation of advanced cormpound semiconductor wafer products in Europe On its formatior, the Group
contributed assets to the joint venture valued at £12000000 as part of its nital investment.

Tre activities of CSC nclude research and development into advanced compound sermiconductor wafer products,
the provision of contract rmanufactunng services for compound semiconductor wafers to certain subsidianes within
the :QF D Group and the arovision of compound semconductor manufactur ng services te other third partes.

CSC operates from its manufacturng facibties i Cardiff, Untad Kingdom and leases certain additonal
administrative building space from the Group During the year, the CSC lsased this space from the Group for £113,000
{2021 EHS,OOO) and procurad cartain administrative suoport services from the Group for £235.000 (202i: £235,COO) AS
part of the admiristrat.ve support services orovided ta CSC the Group procured goods and senvices, recharged to
CSC at cost totaling £4031000 (2021 £3882.000})

CS5C ertared rito an agreemert with the Group foliow ~g s formatior whoh ~as peer extended 'r tre curent vear
a~d corvevs to the Graoup tha “ght to use t™e assets of the [Nt verture fora rymirum penod up to 31 Mare 2024
Costs assocated win the right to use the CSC's assets a-e treated oy the GroLs as operatirg isasa costs {see ~ote
20} Costs are cnarged oy tie CSC ot a proa that refacts the CSC s casn cost of oroducton {incuding direct anowr
matanas and site costs) but exc udes any raated depracatior or artortsat o of tne C5C's property, o -t and
zqupment ard rtangibie assets respectively Lnder the terms of the :oint venture agresr-ent betwee~ the part.es
Costs assoc ttad with the rgnt to use CSC's assats totared £5822,00C (2021 £522400C) in tme veur

At 21 Decerber 2022, ar arrourt of 212 °CCC {2021 £183C S0 owed fror} was owed fror the CSC at year end

ir the Group's palarce sheet A’ Pratersrce Snares vate a nom ol vawe of E8.3C02000 (2021 £8806020) ars ~cwudsed
v frarcial assets at an arrortised cost of £ {2621 £ 1 and tra Group nas < sharehoider ioan of £247000 (262
£24400C) due fram CSC
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3%. Related party transactions continucd
Compdny
Transactions with Group Companies

Trade Trade " Loom “Loan

Income Expense Receoivable Payable Recelvabla Pgyable
2022 £000 €000 £000 £'000 £'000 €000
IQE (Furope) Limnitod 734 (108} 597 (217) 8,224
IGE Silicor Compounds Limited 913 1012 (49) 25329
Nonogan Limited {1.750)
Water Technology [nternationaot Limited 8,263 253
wafer Technology Lirnited 230 (a1} (1336)
{QE LSA InC 8987
IGE Inc 573 (54) 564 {46) N4,364
IGEKC LLC 3552 (3237 3630 () (4,588}
¥3E RF L1 - 38
KTC Wirciess LLG {19.268)
Galaxy Compound Scmiconductors Inc 84 59 (7.526)
KJE Taiwan ROC 21
MBE Technology Pte Limited 13

CSDC Private Limited

IQE ple has a futly impaired ioan recevable of £9,232,0C0 {2021 £11,614.000) due from MBE Technaology Pte Limited
MBE Technology Pte Limited repaid £2,383,000 (2021 £nil) of the ioan following cessatior of operations and closure of
the singapore manufactunng facility in 2622

IQF plc has a fuly mpaired loan receivable of £8,337000 {2021 £7,472.000} due from CSDC Private Limited,

IQE plc has recogrised an expected cradit .0ss of £15.454,000 (2021 £nil) in respect of ‘oan receivables from
Group Compdanies,

Trowges Trewier Lo Lexar:

e v FYpSe Bee bk Foyear er Frcg el b Poryeshiler
il 1 DN 0 el L N0 V00 £ N0o
IGE {Europe) Limited 327 {68) 767 £2)) 4403
IGE silicon Compounds Limmted L0007 1424 28502
water Technolagy Limired 27 (33} 389 ) (8,319)
IQE USA Inc 8050 -
IGE Inc 819 (2} 370 (2) 103,386
IGE KC LLC 935 1,048 {5,582)
IGERFLLC 220
KTC wirelass LLG (18,523)
Galaxy Compound Semiconductors Inc 29 144 (6.753)
IQE Taivwan ROC ] (m 20
MBE Tcchrology Pte Limited 22 G4 14814
CSDC Private Limited {2938)

32. Commitments
The Group had capital commitrents at 31 December 2022 of £1,740,000 (202]: F7R0,000)

33. Postbalance sheet events

On 17 May 2023, the Cormpany refinarced its £28.688,000 (535 600.00C) multi-currarcy revolving crecht facility
crovided by HSBC Bark plc. Tha faciity ‘s securad on the assets of '\QE plc and its subsdiary companies with
committed term to 1 May 2028 interest on the faciity is pavable at o margin of between 2 50 and 3.50 per cent per
arnum over SONIA or any drawn balances and the facitty is subiect to quarterly leverage and Interast cover
covenants tests which commence at 31 Secember 2023

On 18 May 2023, the Company compieted o successful equity furd raise through o firm p'acing for £30,000,000
ard REX retail offer for £1098.5486

iQE plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 157
Company number 03745726

S}UBWBYD)S |DIJUDUY



Glossary

Artificial intelligence
(an)

Augmented Reality
(aR)

Compound
semiconductor

Cloud computing

CMOS++
CMD
cvD

Device structure

Dilute Nitride

Epitaxy {epitaxial
growth}

Epiwafer or epitaxial
wafer

GaAs
GoN
GasSb
Ge
InP

internet of Things
{toT)
IQepiMo™

1QGeVCSEL150™
IQDN-VCSEL

LiDAR

MBE

158

A simulation of human inteligence in machines, ncluding machines which are
programmed to mimic human action or exhibit humanistic traits such as learning
or problem-solving

A technology that superimposes o computer-generated image on o user's view of
the reat world to provide o composite view

A semiconductor formed from more than one element, typically comprising o mixture
of elemants from Groups il and V of the Periodic Table

A network of remaete sarvers nosted on the internet to store, manage and
process data

Compound materiais on Silicon
Capital Markets Day

Chemical Vapour Deposition. (QF's technigue for making Advanced Silicon/Group 1v
apiwaters, characterised by using compound sources flowed across a hot wafer
where they are ‘cracked” {reacted) to get the desired material

The term used to describe the particular series of epitaxial ldyers on d substrate
crystal They are typically specified by their thickness, composition. electnca; and
opto-electronic properties

A material where srmall amourts of Nitrogen are added to GaAs in order to enable
GaAs to be used in applications typically resarved for INnP

Depositior of high guLality, crystailine fayers on a substrate. 8y specificaily choosing
the composition ard sequence of the ‘avers in aodtaxial growth, the optical and
alectrical properties of the epiwafer are abie to be tuned and tnese ndwv-dudilayers
are referred to as epilayers’

Tre term used to describe the substrate crysta. with epitaxian iaye-s deposited
thereon {see also "wafer")

Sallium Arsenide
Galliurr nitr de
Sallium Antmon.de
Germanum

ndium Phosobice

Network of physica’ objects - “tnings” when are able to colsct and transfer data over
awiraless network without nu~an intervertior

A template technology developed by Qt for RF fiters and other appucations requiring
iow resistance bured electrodes

Atechrology devewoped oy 'QE for 8” VOSELs o- Ger—an'u™

A teckrology deveoped oy 'QE for the growtr of iong waveigngtn (3 136G nm} VCSEs
or GaAs substrates

nfrared

gt detection and ranging - a metned for ~measurirg distarces oy lu ratrg tne
rarget wih o qser fght

MO 2cu ar Beam totaxy Or-e of 1QF s primary techrn gques for marx ng comoound
serconductor enwafars cnaractensad oy denost on usng eismentd’ sources
mpagng or g cot wafer where areactor occurs o get the desred —ater an MBS
occurs af extremaw 0w pressura {k~own as Lisa-b o1y \cxcuu,’ﬂ) whch.s compardbhe
to that of outer space
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MIMO

MOCVD

OEM

Opto-electronic
device

PHEMT

Reactor

RF
Semiconductor
Si

SiC

Structured light
scanner

Substrate

Time of Flight (Tof)
camera

VCSEL

Wafer

WiFi 6

3D Sensing
5G

Multiple-input, multiple-output. Two or more transmitting or receiving antannas ares
used on a wireless device to optimise the speed, range and reliability of that device

Matal Organic Chemical Vapour Deposition. One of IQE's primary techniques for
making compound semicenductor epiwafers, characterised by deposition using
compound sources that are flowed across a hot wafer where they are “cracked”
(reacted) to get the desired material. MOCVYD occurs at much higher pressures than
MBE and also goes by the name MOVPE {Metal Organic Vapour Phase Ep\toxy)

Orrgmgl equwpment manufacturer

A device or structure in which i\ght and electr\mty mteroct to produce detect or
mhar \Ipu\ulr:; ligtit

Pseudomorphic High Electron Mobt\\ty Transistor. A comrr'on!y used device for
high-speed sthchmg for wireless commumcotlons

The equwpment used to produce ep4tc;x1c1| \oyers ona substrote
Radio frequenov

A materiai with resistivity which lies somewhere betweer that of a Conductor
oand an insulator

Sihicon
Silicon cGrbnde

A 3D scanning device which measures an object using proj ected fght patte nsand
camera system

The term used to describe the base wafer used for the epstaxial substrate crystal
growth process

A camera which calculates the distance between the subject by measuring the trip
time of ar ortmcm\ light signal emltted Dy a iaser or LED

Vertical Covrty Surfoce Emitting Laser, ar opto-electronic compeonent used N a vcmet\/
of opo\:conons

The term used to describe the substrote Crysto\ n the form of thinly sliced d\scs or the
substrate disc with one or more ep\taxm layers deposited upon it

Sixth generation of wirgiess iocai areg networsng technologies charactersed b‘/
improved performance choractenstics

Three-dirmensional depth sensing techrology whick is enabled by IQE's VCSELs

57 gererdtion mobile network designed to provide ennanced connectivity and
higrer spgeds
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Investor information

Registered Office Nominated Advisers and Brokers
Pascal Close NOMAD and Joint Broker

(S:tor_\j;?fo g§3 oLw /:ee;g':rm L

Jnited Kingdom 1C0 Liverpool Strest

Investor Relations London EC2M 2AT

Arny Barlow Joint Broker

Phone: +44 {0)2820 838 400

Investors@iqep.com Numis Securities

45 Grasham Street

Principai Bankers tondon £C2V 78F
HSBC Bank Pic Registrar
8 Canada Sguare Equiniti
London £14 SHG o
Aspect House
Auditors Spencer Road
Lancing
KPMG LLP - Wast Sussex BNES 6DA
3 Assembly Sguare
Britannia Quay Financial Public Relations

Cordiff CFIO 4
ardiff C AX Haadland Consultancy

Cannon Green,

1 Suffolk Lane

tondon ECAR OAX
ige@headiandeconsultancy com

Share price information

txchange: Londor Stock Exchange
FISE AIM Index

Ticker. IQELN

ISIN: GBOO0DYEI9924

Share price performance

as at 3 December 2022
Loss per share (¢ 27p)
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